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As a local bank established for over 77 years in Hong Kong,
Dah Sing Bank is committed to building operational and
financial strength and resilience through different business
and economic cycles, delivering on our promise to create
sustainable and stable growth for our customers, employees,
shareholders and other stakeholders.
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AT E

WUBEEBTST  HKS Million 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
REEE Shareholders’ funds 28,441 29,913 29,914 32,578 33,512
BIMERMETR Additional equity instruments 899 899 311 311 311
BERK Subordinated notes 3,828 4128 3,801 5917 4,147
REEX Deposits from customers 190,340 196,135 199,792 207,234 201,568
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,126 6,590 4229 2,428 4,295
FaiaE Total deposits 198,466 202,725 204,021 209,662 205,863
BEEE Total liabilities

(BEREER) (including subordinated notes) 217,951 218,168 221,861 227,855 222,516
XRER Advances to customers

(FEEEZZE) (excluding trade bills) 137,577 144313 136,530 143,049 138,374
BERE Total assets 247,306 248,979 252,086 260,744 256,339
R EF Profit attributable to shareholders 1,493 1,658 1,609 1,860 2,060
EERERE Total dividend distribution 422 478 548 843 928
LB SR HKS
SREART Basic earnings per share 1.06 1.18 1.14 132 147
SRKE Dividends per share 0.30 0.34 039 0.60 0.66
Vil Percentage %
ERBEMLEZ S Loan to deposit ratio " 69.3 71.2% 66.9% 68.2% 67.2%
5 Note
1. EXYEERLEAERENERE FEEESE 1. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total

%) HIFIAREE (BIEEETHENGEE) 2= advances to customers (excluding trade bills) to total

deposits (including certificates of deposit issued).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Paul Franz Winkelmann

David Wai-Hung Tam

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Paul Franz Winkelmann
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Richard Tsung-Yung Li

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.F.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 340 to 344 of this annual report for
respective lists of branches.)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 84, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Company in 2004. He is also the Chairman
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a
substantial shareholder of the Company as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company), Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah
Sing Insurance Company Limited and Macau Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President
of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was the
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology
and has over 60 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong,
an Executive Director and the Group General Manager
of DSFH and the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of DSB.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 72, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in 2004 and promoted as
the Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed
as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the
Company in June 2017. Mr. Wong joined Dah Sing Bank,
Limited in 1977 and has served and managed various
departments before appointed as a Director in 1989,
promoted to the Managing Director in 2000 and then
appointed as the Vice Chairman in April 2011. He is
also the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and a
director of various major subsidiaries of the Group.
He was the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
for the period from June 2008 to August 2023. He is a
Non-Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of Bank of
Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai)
in which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest.
Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers
(U.K.) and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council
of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has
over 45 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 84, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in
2004. He is also an INED of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and
Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited. He is currently
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
(“AC”) of the Company, DSFH and DSB. He served as the
Chairman of the AC of the Company, DSFH and DSB until
December 2023. Mr. Sze is an INED of Nanyang Holdings
Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited.
He was an INED of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
(delisted) and resigned in February 2022. Mr. Sze is a
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a former partner of an international
firm of accountants with which he practised for over
20 years.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in
December 2017 and a member of the Audit Committee
(“AC”) of the Company in June 2021. He was also
appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
in December 2017, a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of DSB in August
2018 and the Chairman of the RMCC of DSB in June 2020
and a member of the AC of DSB in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member
of the Finance Committee and Human Resources
Committee of Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which
is listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an INED and a
member of the Finance Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of First Pacific Company
Limited (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)), a member of
the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of
Hong Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust whose units are
listed on the Stock Exchange) and a member of the
International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business
and Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of
Hong Kong from December 2008 to November 2014
and a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing
Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the AC
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent
company of the Company) from June 2013 to December
2017. Mr. Pickerell was also an INED, a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment
Trust (listed on the Stock Exchange) during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2025.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as
the Head of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in
2010 and served as the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset
Management Company until July 2015. He joined
Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group.
In 2003, he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong)
Limited (now known as HSBC Global Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited) as Chief Executive, Asia Pacific.
From 2007 to 2010, he served as Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies)
and a BA degree (in Political Science) from Stanford
University, U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 69, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company
in January 2024. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED
and the Chairman of the AC of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”). He is also a member of Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of DSB. Mr. Winkelmann
joined PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and
was admitted to partnership in 1990 to become a
member of the first group of partners to set up PwC’s
financial services practice in Hong Kong. He specialized
in the audits of financial institutions, both local and
international. He was partner-in-charge of PwC’s risk
and compliance matters for Greater China for 14 years
up to June 2014. He was also the leader of PwC’s Greater
China Risk and Quality function overseeing auditing
and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined the
governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
subsequently was appointed to the Management Board
of PwC China and Hong Kong. Following his retirement
from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was
engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on risk
and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to
December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED
and a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee
of the Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the
Non-IA Eligible DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool
of the Insurance Authority. He was the Chairman of the
Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
from 2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009.
In 2005, he was appointed to the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform and served for a period of 6 years.
Mr. Winkelmann was the Chief Executive Officer of
Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong (now known
as the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council) from
April 2016 to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the
HKICPA. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree
from Trinity College, Dublin.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024
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Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in
June 2021. He was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in March 2019 and a member of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company and DSB in January 2024. Mr. Tam was an
INED of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent
company of the Company) during the period from
December 2018 to June 2021 and a member of the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of DSB from
March 2019 to December 2023. Mr. Tam started his career
with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited in 1968 and held various senior positions until
February 1999. In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng
Bank Limited and was the Deputy General Manager and
Head of Commercial Banking during 2003 to 2008 and
the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement in
2012. He was a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial
bank in Yantai, from December 2012 to June 2017.
He resigned as a Non-Executive Director of Nameson
Holdings Limited in April 2022 and retired as an INED of
Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Chartered Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an
associate of The Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University
of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years
of experience in commercial banking industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the
Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company and Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in January 2024. From March 2022
to December 2023, she was an INED and a member of
the AC, the Connected Transactions Control Committee,
the Risk Management Committee and the Strategy
Committee, and the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of DSB. Ms. Chan
joined Bank of Communications Co. Limited, Hong Kong
Branch (“BOCOM”) as a management trainee in July
1981. She was the Assistant General Manager of BOCOM
from April 1992 to June 1998, primarily responsible for
the formulation and implementation of the operation
procedures for trade finance, loan administration and
bancassurance business, and she also led the trade
finance and loan operations centralization project.
Ms. Chan was the Deputy General Manager of BOCOM
from July 1998 to March 2021 responsible for overseeing
the daily operation of trade finance, loan administration,
remittance and retail banking business and the launch
of private banking business. She was appointed as
Alternate Chief Executive of BOCOM in August 2002.
Ms. Chan was a Director of Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited from September 1999 to October 2019
and was appointed as the Chairman in June 2006. She
was the Vice Chairman, Director and Chief Executive of
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited before
her retirement in June 2021. She has over 38 years of
experience in the financial industry. Ms. Chan is an
associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers,
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
(“HKIB”). She is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a Certified Banker of HKIB. Ms. Chan
holds a Master of Science degree in Information and
Technology Management from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Corporate Finance degree
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company and
an INED and a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank, Limited in
January 2024. Mr. Cheung worked with DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited (“DBS”) from July 2009 to December
2022 where he served as Managing Director and Head
of Institutional Banking Group in Hong Kong from June
2011 until his retirement in December 2022, responsible
for growing DBS’s franchise in the corporate and
commercial banking businesses in Hong Kong. He was
also the Alternate Chief Executive of DBS from December
2012 to December 2022. Prior to joining DBS, he was the
Regional General Manager, North East Asia and General
Manager of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Prior to such appointments,
Mr. Cheung held senior positions in corporate
commercial banking and risk management with major
international banks including Citibank, Hong Kong, ABN
AMRO Bank N.V., Hong Kong and Rabobank, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Cheung has over 40 years of corporate and
commercial banking experience. Mr. Cheung is currently
as an INED of K. Wah International Holdings Limited
and Yuexiu Property Company Limited (both are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He is
the Chairman of the Board of Governors of World Green
Organisation, a member of the Hong Kong Academy of
Finance and a member of the Advisory Committee on
Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was a member of the Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation from
2011 to 2016 and a member of the Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee from 2021 to 2023.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 64, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in 2004. He joined Dah
Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in
1997, responsible for the overall financial management
and control, operations and IT functions of the Group
for a number of years. Mr. Wang was promoted as
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSB
in May 2011 and was re-designated as the Deputy
Chief Executive and Alternate Chief Executive of DSB
in August 2017. He is also an Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited), a Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”),
Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited and Macau
Pension Fund Management Company Limited,
the Chairman of DSB China and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, DSFH and DSB. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Company,
DSFH and DSB until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified
accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 40 years of
experience in financial management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 57, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Deputy Chief Executive of the Company
in June 2017. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
in 1998 and is currently an Executive Director, the Deputy
Chief Executive and Alternate Chief Executive of DSB and
a Director of Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited and
Macau Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Mayhew also
serves as the Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and Group
Head of Treasury, Global Markets & Corporate Finance of
DSB, responsible for its treasury and corporate finance
activities. Mr. Mayhew was an Executive Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company
of the Company) during the period from August 2004 to
May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
(Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the University of
London. He has over 30 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

13



14

SEEEAS

FHELE
AFRTTE IR A B8 Z /5 ~ EFAATERT T AR,

T 5558 AKXMIBITERAR (TAHIRITY) BlE
[&~ BRI RITEARE o B F2000F DA KFIRTT
FeFR2005 F ER T AMITESZ L 2010F38 ERTEA
BEGRITE FAEMN2017FEB ER T A KHIET
2 E BB RITEAEE o 102011548 £201756 8
HEERA AR ZHITES ESECERITEES
W20 F4AREZEAKRMEMERBRAR (TKH
R AEBBAERZFARARES EmRAFR
EZRNBEERR) 2 £ WH2024F1 5%
ZEABRKMEMZAITES - BWINABKHIRTT (FEH)
BRABVEPIEERITROBRAE - KRR E
RABVEPRERERDERABMEFIBRARESEIE
BRNDBRABIZESZ - TRERAFTBRTEGZE
EEHENARAREERETIXESEE T ITXE
SBHEE g2 E 8 c TR ER20185F6H £2024F58
HEEEREEEERRINRIPERERBHEZE
B2EFRB ERAREEERHBAZIEHER
B2 hGHETEREE LRSI WARE
REARBBIUREBEZ GEBEM  EEEBER
ENAHIRITRANMEMEETE TR ITEREZR
%o

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

S22 %
AFIRITEIRA ST TEFFR B TEAEE

F 15858 R2012F 28 A KMIBITHERAE

(TRHIRIT) HEZERITRFE SELERERE
TERT - BITRR -TEZH UEEEER RBA
RITR A B ETNET o 12012653 R A KR
THITEERN2014F58 B EAKXMBITEET
BUBE, - 18102022 F4 B E S A RIIRTRIT AR
REBEARTEE TRITHEREHERNTAS
(#Henley Management College) T EEE L REB A
BB LB HEERNFTE REARITESRL
5 BEBEMESBLE ZIRT BFSITIRITRF
EIRITEIRR o

BieER L
ARRTTBIRA S TEFRE TR

Bt 585 iR2020F 28 I A KHIRITERA

(TR#ERT1T)) HEEBGERTETE FEEER
BEIBMEIFITER - WH2021F 28 EHE A KHIRIT
ZHITEESREBETITHES -BEBAEREE
BEMREFHEZENRTRE T EAEREREER
TERINER -BEXTRHEMABUARERR 2K
ERIPB LB ] o



SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 55, is currently a Vice Chairman,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”). Mr. Wong joined DSB in 2000,
and was appointed as an Executive Director in 2005
and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. Mr. Wong was
appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive
of DSB in August 2017. From April 2011 to June 2017,
he was an Executive Director, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of the Company. He was appointed
as the Group General Manager of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) in April 2011 and appointed as an
Executive Director of DSFH in January 2024. He is also
a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited and
Macau Pension Fund Management Company Limited.
Mr. Wong is currently an Executive Committee Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a Non-official
Member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of
Trade and Industry Department under Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau. He was a Non-official
Member of the Industry Advisory Committee on Long
Term Business established by the Insurance Authority
from June 2018 to May 2024. Mr. Wong holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Harvard University,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in
England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son
of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards
of the Company, DSB and DSFH.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Wong, aged 58, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) as Head of Retail Banking in February 2012,
responsible for the development and management of
overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage,
wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief
Executive of DSB in May 2014. She was further appointed
as a Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and Group Head
of Personal Banking in April 2022. Ms. Wong holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from Brunel
University (UK) via Henley Management College and
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong
Kong. She has over 30 years of experience in retail and
personal banking business with other banks operating
in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and
CITIC Bank International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Ma, aged 58, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as Group Head of Corporate Banking in February 2020,
responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive
Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in
February 2021. She has over 30 years of solid banking
experience in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the
United States, mainly in commercial and corporate
banking with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors.
Ms. Ma attained a Bachelor of Science in Economics from
The London School of Economics and Political Science.
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Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Chan, aged 53, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) as General Manager and Head of Wealth
Management in 2009, and was appointed as an
Executive Director of DSB in March 2019. He was further
appointed as an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in June
2022. Mr. Chan is Group Head of Wealth Management
and is responsible for the formulation and execution of
overall business strategies of DSB’s wealth management
business, including securities brokerage, retail wealth
management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from the University of Cambridge and
a Master degree in Business Administration from the
Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private
Wealth Professional of the Private Wealth Management
Association. Mr. Chan has over 25 years of extensive
experience in various areas including financial services,
manufacturing and public administration.

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) in July 2007. He was the Head of Corporate
Development, Strategy and Investor Relations of the
Group before the appointment as a Director of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating
subsidiary of the Company, in November 2018. He was
then appointed as an Executive Director of DSB China in
June 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China
in July 2021. Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience
in finance and banking industry in China and Hong
Kong. He worked for investment bank, international
commercial bank and international accounting firm
before joining DSB.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 60, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) and was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and a Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. (incorporated in Macau), a key subsidiary of the
Company, in January 2020. Mr. Lau has over 38 years
of solid banking experience in Hong Kong, Malaysia,
the United States and Macau. He started his career in
banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and immediately before
joining DSB, he was the CEO of HSBC Macau Branch.
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In 2024, we reported an improvement in profitability
despite a year marked by both opportunities and
challenges. Higher interest rates were generally
supportive of our net interest margin and net interest
income, whilst loan growth and credit quality both
remained challenging. Our teams continued to work
diligently to explore and seize opportunities for growth.
At the same time, we maintained a prudent approach
to expense control and risk management for greater
resilience while navigating through a high interest rate
environment and relatively sluggish growth in our core
markets.

Our wealth management segment delivered a robust
performance year-on-year driven by our bancassurance
business, with the exclusive agreement with Sun Life
Group for the distribution of Sun Life products in Hong
Kong completing its first full year. The new partnership
achieved a strong result in 2024, which has enriched our
wealth management offerings and allowed us to better
address customer needs.

Our trading performance was strong, and our funding
swap expenses were lower compared to last year,
while our foreign exchange ("FX") related business for
customers also grew steadily.

Loan growth was weak due to sluggish demand. The
property-related loan market in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China remained challenging during the year.
We increased credit impairment provisions against
Mainland China property developers and the Hong Kong
Commercial Real Estate sector, and will stay vigilant in
monitoring the credit quality of our loan portfolio.

During the year, we continued to upgrade operating
networks and optimise our services in our three business
locations including Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau. Additionally, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(“BCM”) celebrated its 50th Anniversary in November
2024, underscoring its enduring value and importance to
the Group since becoming a subsidiary of Dah Sing Bank
("DSB") in 2005.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In a challenging year, our Group’s profit attributable
to shareholders in 2024 increased by 11% to
HK$2,060 million, mainly driven by both higher net
interest and non-interest income, whilst higher credit
impairment charges were offset by a lower impairment
loss on the investment in our associate.

DSB’s net interest margin widened by 16 basis points
to 2.17% benefiting from the higher interest rate
environment. Net interest income rose by 10% reflecting
the impact of elevated interest rates and our attention
to funding cost management. However, overall loan
balances declined slightly by 3% from the previous year
due to subdued loan demand in our core markets.

Our bancassurance business, underpinned by our
exclusive distribution agreement with Sun Life, achieved
robust growth, and fee and net commission income
increased by 53%. Net trading income rose by about
57%, supported by enhanced collaboration between
our Personal Banking and Corporate Banking teams in
connection with FX-related services for customers.

Operating profit before impairment losses grew by 31%
mainly due to a 50% rise in non-interest income and a
relatively stable operating cost.

Our share of the net profit of our associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”) was HKS$677 million for 2024.
An impairment loss on the investment in BOCQ of
HK$16 million was recorded, a decrease of 97% from
2023. It should be noted that the provision made relating
to BOCQ is non-cash and does not affect our capital
adequacy.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Hong Kong’s economic growth in 2024 was moderate,
constrained by weak loan demand and consumer
sentiment as higher interest rates persisted. However,
higher rates and volatile market conditions continue
to benefit our net interest margin and FX trading
operations. We remain cautious on credit risk, although
we have already taken action to make appropriate
provisions for credit loss. As we have built up a more
diversified revenue base in our business over the years,
we will be better positioned to respond proactively and
effectively to evolving market dynamics.

That said, Hong Kong as our core market continues
to maintain its stable economic fundamentals and
competitive advantages, including well-developed
infrastructure, low taxation, strong institutions and a
robust financial system. Banks in Hong Kong have also
introduced new measures to support local small and
medium sized enterprises for their necessary financing
and other banking services. As a local bank in Hong
Kong, we will continue to render our strong support to
the SME community.

Furthermore, our Greater Bay Area strategy leverages
synergies across our “three locations, four platforms”
framework, spanning DSB in Hong Kong, Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited in the Mainland, and BCM in Macau,
as well as our Shenzhen Branch. Being the first foreign
bank in Mainland China with a dual operating licence
to operate a local branch in addition to our locally
incorporated subsidiary bank, enables us to capitalise on
increasing cross-border flows and economic integration.

Looking ahead, we anticipate ongoing challenges for
the banking industry in the near term. In particular,
elevated credit risks and sluggish loan growth are
expected to continue across banks and the financial
system as a whole. In order to maintain a healthy asset
quality, we have been consistently managing credit
risk within our loan and asset portfolios in a prudent
manner. Both our robust capital adequacy and liquidity
positions enable us not only to meet the challenges of a
difficult business environment, but also to seize growth
opportunities when conditions improve. Hong Kong’s
liquidity conditions and our funding base primarily
comprising diversified local customer deposits have
stayed strong. Hong Kong banks have seen and learned
from various challenges over the past decades, and the
well-regulated banking system has the resilience to face
future challenges.

On behalf of the Board, we have declared a final
dividend of HK$0.39 per share, representing a total
dividend for the whole year of HKS$0.66, an increase
of 10% compared to the HK$0.60 in 2023. Last but not
least, | extend my gratitude to my fellow directors for
their invaluable contributions and to the management
team and employees of the Group for their dedication
in overcoming challenges and ensuring operational
excellence. My appreciation also goes to our customers
and shareholders for their unwavering trust and support.
| am confident that the commitment and adaptability
of our colleagues will drive the Group’s success in
achieving our strategic goals and enhancing business
performance.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for the year are summarised in the table below:

HKS$ Million 2024 2023 Variance
Net interest margin 2.17% 2.01%
Operating income 6,934.9 5,916.1 17.2%
Operating profit before credit impairment losses 3,594.9 2,747.2 30.9%
Operating profit after credit impairment losses 1,803.5 2,015.9 (10.5%)
Profit before taxation 2,395.4 2,141.6 11.9%
Profit for the year 2,060.3 1,860.3 10.8%
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the 1,398.6 1,723.3 (18.8%)
investment in an associate
Advances to customers 138,374 143,049 (3.3%)
Deposits from customers 201,568 207,234 (2.7%)
Certificates of deposit issued 4,295 2,428 76.9%
Total deposits 205,863 209,662 (1.8%)
Subordinated notes 4,147 5,917 (29.9%)
Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit 67.2% 68.2%
(including certificates of deposit issued) ratio
Cost to income ratio 48.2% 53.6%

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Hong Kong’s economic growth slowed to 2.5% in
2024 from 3.2% in 2023, as a recovery in exports was
overshadowed by weaker domestic demand.

The total export of goods increased by 8.7% in 2024,
recovering from a 7.8% drop in 2023. This improvement
was partly due to exporters increasing shipments in
advance to avoid potential new tariffs on US imports
from Mainland China.

Despite a 30% rise in inbound visitors to Hong Kong in
2024, domestic consumption remained weak, with the
overall consumer expenditure falling by 0.6% in 2024.
This decline was due in part to northbound consumption
by domestic residents and uncertain economic outlook.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024
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Government expenditure growth remained stable,
growing at 1.0% from a year ago, helping to alleviate
overall economic pressure.

Private capital investment was weak, partly due to
elevated interest rates and the uncertain business
outlook.

Residential home prices dropped by slightly over 7%
in 2024, and are now 27% below the peak in 2021,
according to the Rating and Valuation Department, as
higher mortgage rates continued to weigh on housing
demand, despite Hong Kong’s prime rate falling by
62.5bps from September to December 2024, following
the Federal Reserve’s rate cut actions.

Mainland China reported GDP growth of 5% in 2024,
successfully achieving its growth target of “around 5%,
albeit lower than 2023’s 5.3%. Strong export growth
helped buffer soft domestic demand as the property
market only started bottoming out in late 2024 after the
government announced multiple rounds of stimulus
measures since late September 2024.

Although the pace of economic recovery was slower
than expected in 2024 and the business environment
remained challenging, our Group’s profit for 2024
increased 10.8% to HK$2,060 million mainly due to
higher operating income and lower impairment loss on
the investment in an associate, which offset the increase
in credit impairment charges.

Amidst the challenging business environment, operating
income was 17.2% higher than 2023, mainly driven by
higher net interest income from a wider net interest
margin and higher asset yields during the year, and
stronger net fee and commission income, in part from
the resumption of retail insurance distribution business.
Net trading income rose in the year due to higher sales
income and improved trading results, and a lower
funding swap cost when compared with the prior year.

Operating expenses grew by 5.4% due to increases in
wages and computer expenses as we continued to invest
in our human resources and IT related infrastructure,
improving our banking services and customer experience,
while partly offset by lower other operating expenses.
Credit impairment charges increased significantly by
145.0% year-on-year, as a result of higher provisions for
credit losses on our exposures to the Mainland China
property developer sector and Hong Kong commercial
real estate sector.

The market value of our investment in Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”) was higher than the carrying value
of the investment as at 31 December 2024, resulting
in no further need for an impairment charge for the
second half of the year. This followed an impairment
charge of HK$16 million made at mid-year 2024, which
was HKS$536 million lower than 2023. The operating
performance of BOCQ remained satisfactory, and our
share of its net profit was HK$677 million, slightly below
the prior year.
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The Dah Sing Multi-Currency Mastercard® Debit Card is positioned as
an all-in-one, multi-functional card that provides convenience and
value-added features to meet customers’ fast-paced lifestyle needs
and to enable them to capture cross-currency opportunities anytime,

anywhere.



Our businesses in Macau and Mainland China delivered
weaker results due to much higher credit impairment
charges. Amidst the challenging business environment,
both businesses were able to generate total operating
income similar to last year, despite lower loans and
deposits balances.

Our return on shareholders’ funds increased from 6.0%
in 2023 to 6.2% in 2024. Cost to income ratio decreased
from 53.6% in 2023 to 48.2% in 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the consolidated Common
Equity Tier 1 ratio of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
increased to 16.9%, 0.7 percentage point higher than the
level of 16.2% at the end of 2023. Taking into account
DSB’s outstanding Tier 2 subordinated debts, DSB’s
consolidated capital adequacy level at year end was
21.0%, slightly lower than the prior year of 21.2%. Our
Bank continued to operate well above the minimum
Liquidity Maintenance Ratio of 25%, reporting an
average level of 64.2% during the year. We believe that
our capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels
within the market range for both peer banks in Hong
Kong, and for banks internationally.

@D 5 i iR 1T
€4 DAHSING BANK

HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business delivered a robust
performance, achieving over 70% growth in net profit
in 2024. This was driven by higher net interest income
with widened margin, increased non-interest income
from our Wealth Management business and Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises (“SME”) segments, and strong
cost discipline.

In 2024, we continued to focus on building our
transactional CASA balances by expanding our target
customer bases, deepening relationships with existing
customers and launching our multi-currency debit card.
As a result, our Retail SME and YOU Banking customer
bases grew year-on-year by 15% and 9% respectively,
with increasing customers in-take through the digital
channel.

To better serve the needs of SMEs, we enhanced our
offerings and capabilities, and expanded our SME
network from 16 to 18 SME Banking Centres this
year. Additionally we introduced a new SME remote
onboarding and digital PIN services to improve our
SME account opening efficiency and enhance customer
experience. These initiatives have strengthened our
franchise and contributed to 44% year-on-year growth in
our SME deposit balances.

G

KHTIRIT MBI A D 1702024578 [ERBAZE o fEABERE /)
PIRITARE O ZATRS M EA BRI TRy £ B R
VIPSRITARFE R0 AZ @I E A KRR/ N B R HEIRITRTS
Strategically located in the Kwun Tong industrial and commercial
area, DSB’s new Chong Yip Street branch was officially opened in July
2024 to serve as its flagship SME banking centre. It also features a VIP
Banking centre, and offers banking services to both retail and SME

customers in the area.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

27



28

BARITEHBBEBEE R EEBEIRETEGF
DaREHHBME E > R AR EIRFEMAEGRRER
THIBHE - AENEEREERERFERE EAR
TEAEMERABREREREN REEHEGEERE
HEREESESERENTEE

MEEERBNARBARITHZOER  SEFIRE
HBEBESTEALERERNZBEANMERERIREERT
H - LHERAEBREFTAKRATRE] LIRITRERRS
HEFCETEMES BERETREI EMES
EGRERDE MEEEBWAREIFEN—{E-

. (1 d 7
/iuﬂ{il ]élgi [N uxm?)sinfg;z»m
ASREEARES

K #EL Sun Life 5%BB
BB R KN RIEERE

UthimEL R REIEEE

-G
KEIBITEKAEMIN0UFEFIENBRBRSIE—AE
BFEAREEE - BE-FENBRKRAFENSTEEERR
Em mEE R NEALERBENSBNRERE -
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exclusive bancassurance partnership in mid-2024. The diverse range
of high-quality insurance products under the partnership covers life,
health, savings and retirement solutions to meet customers’ financial and

protection needs across different life stages.
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We maintained our market share for unsecured personal
loans and credit cards, through active promotions and
collaborations with various social media platforms to
enhance market awareness. To better manage year-
on-year increase in credit impairment, we proactively
adjusted origination criteria and portfolio management
strategies. These measures ensure the overall resilience
of our portfolio.

Wealth management services remained a key focus
for Personal Banking, offering a diverse range of
personalised investment and insurance solutions
tailored to customers at different stages of life. In
particular, our Bancassurance partnership with Sun Life
Hong Kong has enriched our product range, allowing
us to better meet customer needs, which in turn led to
a strong business momentum. All this resulted in our
wealth management fee income doubling compared to
last year.

In November 2024, Dah Sing Bank sponsored the
inaugural launch of the “Our Hong Kong Foundation -
Dah Sing Bank Greater Bay Area Industry Development
Index” which analyses the performance of the “9+2”
GBA cities across six key industries. “We believe
the Index’s valuable insights and recommendations
on the complementary advantages of the cities will
help businesses and other audiences make informed
investment and business decisions, in turn promoting
further economic and financial market integration

Moreover, by continuing our efforts in enhancing our
product capabilities for our Private Banking customers
and through our successful cross-selling initiatives to
our Corporate Banking customers with an improved
personalised service model and customised offerings,
our Private Banking business also recorded a strong
year-on-year growth.

We continued to accelerate our digital transformation
efforts. This year, we further enhanced our award-
winning “Next Best Action” Al solution for personalised
product recommendation and was the first bank in the
market to launch a streamlined identity verification
service for SMEs through the “Interbank Account Data
Sharing” pilot programme. These efforts have resulted
in a surge in digital transactions by 42% year-on-year in
2024.

As part of our omni-channel strategy, we started a
programme to gradually renovate and/or relocate our
branches, to improve customer services and digital
experience, and enhancing our brand image. We took
this opportunity to improve operational efficiency by
enabling a gradual transition to paperless operations at
our branches. As at the end of December 2024, our retail
presence in Hong Kong comprised 42 branches across
Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories, including
27 VIP Banking centres and 18 SME banking centres.

within the region. Dah Sing Bank will continue to
harness our unique strategy and presence through our
four operating entities across GBA, capitalising on the
financial resources of our combined platform to deliver
exceptional banking services to our customers,” said
Mr. Harold Wong, Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank.
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DSB has been recognised in the “Best SME’s Partner Award” of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business since
2013. Last year, DSB was honoured in the Gold Award category of
this industry recognition for the third consecutive year, celebrating
its achievement in delivering quality services and support to SMEs in

Hong Kong.



Corporate Banking

The operating environment for the banking industry
continued to be challenging in 2024. While investment
sentiment somewhat improved towards the end of the
year, concerns over geopolitical tensions and macro
uncertainty remained. Global inflationary pressures
began to subside, and economic recovery momentum
held steady across the DSB’s major markets. However,
conditions faced by property developers in both the
Mainland China and Hong Kong remained difficult.

Loan market activity in Hong Kong has mostly been
subdued during 2024, with some slight pick-up
observed in fourth quarter of the year. Overall, the
full-year loan volume has dropped by approximately
3% year-on-year according to the statistics from Hong
Kong Monetary Authority. Loan demand was primarily
driven by refinancing, as the needs for new expansionary
or growth capital remained limited. Given the extensive
monetary easing in the Mainland China coupled with
the strengthening U.S. dollar post-election, Chinese
corporates have increasingly shifted their financing
needs onshore to take advantage of significantly lower
borrowing costs. Locally, the volume of CNH loans has
nearly doubled year-on-year during 2024 according
to the statistics from London Stock Exchange Group
Loan Connector, indicating a growing market share
for Chinese banks, adding headwinds for non-Chinese
banks.

The Hong Kong commercial real estate (“CRE”) sector is
experiencing its worst downturn since the Asian financial
crisis. As property-related loans in Hong Kong accounted
for approximately 16% of total lending in the first half of
2024 according to statistics from Standard & Poor, any
sector-related pressure would weigh on banks’ asset
quality, and no market player in the territory would be
immune to this trend.

Our Corporate Banking business continued to focus on
implementing customer account strategy across a range
of existing and targeted customer segments as part of
the execution of our medium term strategy, aiming to
provide diverse corporate banking products and services
to our customers.

Against the background of continued weakening
economic environment, high interest rates and fierce
competitive landscape in the market, our Corporate
Banking business reported negative loan growth in 2024
mainly from decline in trade finance.

Net interest income declined compared to the previous
year, primarily due to the decrease in financing demand
from SME customers. Moreover, the reduction in
market interest rates since the second half of 2024
also contributed to the year-on-year drop. With the
slowdown in our loan growth momentum, we had
proactively managed our deposit mix to reduce the
higher-priced deposits.

Credit impairment provisions were significantly higher
year-on-year, both due to additional provisions made
against the Mainland China property developers and the
deteriorating conditions in the Hong Kong CRE sector.
We remain vigilant in monitoring the credit quality of our
loan portfolio to ensure its resilience and to mitigate any
potential risks that may arise.
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In a webinar co-organised with Hong Kong Economic Times in
December 2024 on “Global Economic Trends: A Comprehensive Guide
to Cross-Border Financing for SMEs”, DSB brought together specialists
to share the latest economic dynamics and actionable business

strategies for entrepreneurs looking to expand into the GBA.



By offering onshore account opening witness services,
our Mainland Chinese corporate customers are able
to open Hong Kong bank accounts without needing
to travel across the border. This added convenience
enhances our Mainland Chinese corporate customers
banking experience and creates opportunities for
establishing effective banking relationships.
Furthermore, DSB was the first foreign bank to receive
dual operating licenses to operate a new Shenzhen
branch in addition to our DSB China subsidiary
operations. This has fostered further growth of our
corporate banking business in both Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. This is one of our major focuses to
encourage cross-platform referrals and to develop cross-
border solutions.

Investing in digital solutions and enhancing our
digital banking platform remained our key priorities.
By continuously advancing our product capabilities
in cash management and digital channels, we have
significantly enhanced our customer experience. In
addition, by further streamlining internal processes, we
have achieved improved efficiency and service quality,
in alignment with our goal of delivering best-in-class
services to our customers.

Notwithstanding the challenging operating environment,
we continue to lay the ground work for building a
stronger corporate banking business by onboarding
quality clients and upholding customer centricity.

Treasury and Global Markets

Our Treasury and Global Markets business reported
higher profit in 2024, with an increase in attributable
profit of 35.9% to HK$1,013 million. Benefitting from
generally higher investment interest rates during the
year, net interest margin increased from 1.25% to
1.59%. Average interest earning assets grew by 3.0% to
HK$92.9 billion. With both higher margin and higher
asset volumes, net interest income grew by 31.4% to
HK$1,478 million for the year. Funding swap expenses
decreased in 2024 and together with our overall trading
performance, the non-interest income recorded an
increase for the year.

With the support of other business units, our customer
related sales and marketing performance grew steadily
mainly attributable to FX customer-flow related business
and structured deposits.

Operating expenses increased by 29.9% for the year.
This was mainly driven by a higher allocation of central
expenses to Treasury and Global Markets. A modest
impairment charge of HK$21 million was reported for
the year. Underlying credit quality remained good,
and the investment portfolio continued to comprise
predominantly of high grade bonds, and was well
diversified with a good balance between bank, corporate
and government bonds.

Liquidity was prudently managed with the average
Liquidity Maintenance Ratio for the year being maintained
at 64.2%, similar to the level for 2023. We maintained
our high quality liquid assets portfolio and managed
the cash flow of DSB in a conservative manner given the
overall challenging operating environment and volatile
market conditions faced during the course of the year.
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BCM celebrated its 50th Anniversary at a gala dinner in November 2024
under the auspices of Mr. Tai Kin Ip, the current Secretary for Economy and
Finance of Macau SAR (centre), alongside Mr. Harold Wong, Vice Chairman,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSB (right), and Mr. Pak-Hung Lau,
Chief Executive of BCM (left).



Banco Comercial de Macau

In 2024, businesses recovery in Macau had been
uneven. The gaming and tourism sectors experienced
revitalization, whilst recovery of other industries
continued to be at a slower pace. The local property
market remained stagnant mainly because of the high
interest rate environment and the overall economic
uncertainties. Although there was indication of a gradual
recovery in the economy, it would take time for the
business environment to fully recover to pre-COVID level.

Inevitably, Macau’s banking industry was being
adversely impacted. The weak loan demand and weak
investment sentiment caused banks to adopt a cautious
approach in extending credit, prioritizing prudent risk
management and significantly increasing provisions.
As a result, the industry recorded a notable decline in
lending and profitability, along with a much higher Non-
Performing Loan ratio.

Despite facing various challenges, Banco Comercial
de Macau (“BCM”) managed to limit the year-on-year
decline in loan balance to just 3.0% year-on-year,
outperforming the market. Meanwhile, in line with our
strategy to manage down the cost of funding, deposit
balances remained flat compared to the previous year.

Notably, the enhanced customer deposit mix and growth
in average interest earning assets contributed to a 2.5%
rise in net interest income compared to 2023, in contrast
to a double-digit percentage drop in the Macau banking
industry. The decrease in non-interest income of 11.1%
as compared to 2023 was mainly due to a one-off special
dividend received in 2023. Operating expenses mildly

increased by 3.1% year-on-year owing to the continued
investments in technology and infrastructure as well as
higher staff cost. Consequently, operating profit before
impairment decreased by 3.8% year-on-year, whilst
net profit dropped by 58.6% year-on-year because of
increased credit impairment charges. BCM was able to
maintain its Non-Performing Loans ratio at 1.72%, well
below the market average of over 5%.

During the year, BCM continued to prioritize the
development of its VIP Banking portfolio, while focusing
on the Wealth Management business. A new project was
initiated to expand the Premium Financing business
to high-net worth customers. This initiative marked
a significant milestone for BCM in capturing new
opportunities within the Greater Bay Area, which held
significant potential for both VIP Banking and Wealth
Management.

BCM continued to promote a culture of customer
centricity and operational efficiency. Throughout the
year, various system enhancements and procedural
changes were implemented to improve operational
efficiency and customer experience. This resulted
in a significant increase in the number of customer
compliments, enhancing staff engagement and greater
customer satisfaction.

2024 marked the 50th Anniversary of BCM, and a series
of celebratory activities were organized throughout the
year to commemorate this significant milestone. These
activities had yielded impressive results in enhancing
our corporate image in the local market, reinforcing our
commitment to ESG principles, and driving business
development and network expansion.

anD
EARPIBERTOBFEBEEH 2 — ZT8MW
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BCM organised the BCM Cup - Kids Street Dance
Competition 2024 as part of its 50th Anniversary
celebration, empowering 173 young dancers aged

3-14 years old to demonstrate their talent and creativity.
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DSB China’s Shenzhen Nanshan Branch celebrated
the significant upgrade of its services with the
grand opening of its Prestige Client Centre in the
GBA. This milestone marked DSB China’s renewed
commitment and enhanced presence in the
bustling GBA market.



Dah Sing Bank (China)

Mainland China’s economic recovery in 2024 had been
marked by uncertainties and uneven progress. The
GDP growth in the first quarter was on track but in the
second and third quarters, it fell short of the level as
initially projected by the Mainland Chinese government.
With various monetary and fiscal supports from the
government, the GDP growth in the fourth quarter was
higher than market expectation. As a result, Mainland
China reported a 5% annual GDP growth for 2024.
One of the measures to support the GDP growth was
the decision made by the People’s Bank of China to
implement an expansionary monetary policy by cutting
the Loan Prime Rate. Although this policy had yielded
a good result for the country’s GDP, it caused greater
pressure on lending yield in general. Uncertainties in the
real estate and related markets also induced a flight to
quality and intense peer competition, which also added
pressure on the lending yield.

Overall loan demand during the year was weak, and
Dah Sing Bank (China) ("DSB China") experienced higher
level of early repayments from customers in addition
to the intense market competition. Consequently, DSB
China’s loan balance reduced during the year. As a result
of lowering the Loan Prime Rate and loan balances, DSB
China’s average net interest margin reduced from 1.44%
to 1.20%, and net interest income declined by 21.7%
year-on-year. However, the shortfall in net interest
income was partially compensated by a strong 41.5%
year-on-year growth on non-interest income which was
achieved through active promotion of cross border
trade and foreign currency related services. Together
with effective cost saving initiatives, DSB China was
able to report an operational equilibrium before
credit impairment losses for 2024. However, with the
emergence of non-performing property-related loans
during the year, additional credit impairment losses
were recorded due to write-off and disposal of some
existing non-performing loans, which resulted in a net
loss for the year.

DSB China operates in 6 major cities in Mainland China,
with a network comprising Shenzhen Headquarters,
branches in Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou
with sub-branches in Foshan and Shenzhen Nanshan,
offering a wide range of commercial and retail bank
lending, deposits and other related banking services to
customers in Mainland China. Specifically for customers
in the Greater Bay Area, DSB China offers various cross-
border banking services to meet their needs.

Bank of Chongqing

BOCQ delivered improvements in both business and
financial performance in 2024, with its profit attributable
to shareholders increasing by 3.8%. Loan and deposits
grew by 12.1% and 14.3% respectively. It recorded
higher operating income, which was mainly the result
of higher interest income and higher net fee and
commission income. Its non-performing loan ratio and
non-performing loan coverage ratio at the end of 2024
were 1.3% and 245.1% respectively, compared to 1.3%
and 234.2% at the end of 2023.

Our share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognised
on the equity accounting basis, which amounted to
HKS$677 million in 2024. As at 31 December 2024, since
the market value of our investment was higher than its
carrying value, no Value in Use assessment was required
and the total impairment charge recognised in our 2024
consolidated results was HK$16 million, compared to
HK$552 million in 2023.

With the impairment charge being lower than our
share of BOCQ net profit recorded in the year, the
carrying value of our investment in BOCQ, net
of the total impairment allowance, increased to
HKS$2,533 million as at 31 December 2024 as compared
with HKS$2,215 million as at 31 December 2023. This
is mainly due to our share of the profit and other
comprehensive income of BOCQ which was partly offset
by the depreciation of RMB against HKD during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk appetite and tolerance limits are set for the major
risks inherent in the Group’s banking, insurance and
investment operations, including both quantifiable risks
such as credit risk, reinsurance counterparty risk, market
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, insurance risk as
well as less-quantifiable risks, which include operational
risk and reputation risk. These limits and tolerances
are monitored regularly by management and reported
to the Board level Risk Management and Compliance
Committee to achieve proper risk governance and
oversight.

Global markets and economies continued to face strong
headwinds in 2024. The “higher for longer” US dollar
interest rates had dampened economic growth, whilst
geopolitical risks heightened further. The war between
Russia and Ukraine deepened while the Israel-Palestine
conflict continued. Trade conflicts between US and
China continued to intensify. These factors have led to
reduced economic activities, including international
trade. Domestically, repayment ability of Mainland
property developer segment continued to put pressure
on local banks. On the other hand, as the local property
market weakened coupled with the higher interest
burden as interest rates stayed at a higher level, certain
commercial real estate exposures showed difficulties
in meeting their debt servicing obligations causing
further uncertainties to the local banking sector. To
manage the risk exposures, particularly those in the
credit and market risk areas, the Group conducted
various reviews and took necessary actions to manage
the potential financial impact on the Group arising from
such risks. Cautious credit management and investment
management were adopted throughout the year, in
response to the challenging market and weak credit
demand.

To assess the amount of the impairment provisions
required for the credit portfolios, the Group adopts a
set of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) models and other
tools, which take into account macroeconomic factors,
risk characteristics of portfolios, as well as forward-
looking elements during the ECL calculation process.
Regular reviews were conducted to assess the possible
developments in the macroeconomic environment, with
updated situations of borrowers that have experienced

deterioration in credit performance or may expect
weaker credit quality. This ensured that major issues
which could affect credit losses in the future are properly
and fairly evaluated, with appropriate regard to the
forward-looking assessment and reasonable provisions
for ECL being maintained.

The Group’s insurance operation is exposed to risks
arising from natural catastrophes and other perils, it is
the Group’s strategy to have appropriate reinsurance
arrangement to manage the insurance risk within the
Group’s appetite. During the year, although Hong Kong
and Macau had been hit by some major typhoons and
other events that caused material losses, the impact
on the financial position of the Group’s insurance
operation was immaterial, on the strength of the Group’s
prudent underwriting philosophy as well as reinsurance
arrangement.

The Group continued to strengthen its internal controls
with the established dedicated control officer function
in the major divisions. These dedicated control officers
work closely with the control functions of the Group, to
ensure that adequate and effective internal controls are
in place for daily operations of respective divisions to
comply with internal control requirements of the Group
as well as regulatory guidance. End-to-end process
reviews were conducted to identify areas for control
enhancements and areas for further improvement. The
Group also has a fraud risk management framework in
place with a dedicated fraud risk management team to
help improve fraud awareness, detection and prevention
amidst the rapidly changing market environment and
more diverse business channels.

On green and sustainable finance, the Group continued
to develop its climate risk management capabilities
with a view to supporting clients on their transition
journey. A framework for green and sustainable finance
has been set up for the offering of green and sustainable
products. The Group has completed the second round
of Climate Risk Stress Test on its banking operations,
the result of which indicated that climate risk profile of
DSB remained low. Nevertheless, DSB has strengthened
its data collection to pave way for upcoming disclosure
requirements and has started to roll out a greenness
assessment mechanism for DSB to better understand
the preparedness of clients on climate risk and transition
planning.
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CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY

Group 2024 2023
Capital base of banking subsidiaries (HK$ Million)
At 31 December
- Common Equity Tier 1 29,309 28,726
-Tier1 30,476 29,893
-Tier2 5,899 7,725
Total capital base after deductions 36,375 37,618
Capital adequacy ratio*
- Common Equity Tier 1 16.9% 16.2%
-Tierl 17.6% 16.9%
- Total 21.0% 21.2%
Liquidity maintenance ratio (average for the year) 64.2% 64.0%

*

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 represents the consolidated position of DSB

(covering BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel lll basis with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. This consolidated
capital adequacy ratio takes into account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity
maintenance ratio of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China) for the 12 months of the financial year, computed in accordance

with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Group continued to maintain healthy capital
adequacy ratios over the year.

Our Group continued to maintain throughout the year
a high liquidity maintenance ratio, backed by a strong
pool of liquid assets including high quality liquid assets
(such as Hong Kong Exchange Fund bills and notes),
cash and placements with banks, and other diversified
marketable securities held for investment and liquidity
purposes.

Stress testing on our capital and liquidity positions
is a regular and ongoing exercise conducted by our
risk management function, with the results reviewed
by Management on a periodic basis. Regular update
and high-level reporting on our capital and liquidity
positions, including the results of stress testing, are
submitted to the Board-level Risk Management and
Compliance Committee and highlighted to the Board.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

“Customer Commitment” has been one of the core
values since the introduction of the Group’s Culture
and Values. Significant effort has therefore been made
to promote customer experience for both external and
internal customers. From the perspective of human
resources, we have also been committed to enhancing
our employee experience through better engagement
with staff and the implementation of different initiatives
including on their development and wellness.

In terms of employee development, we offered a
learning curriculum and training covering a wide range
of topics such as leadership capabilities, digitalisation,
customer experience, environmental, social and
governance, green and sustainable finance, Greater Bay
Area and cross-border businesses, which would better
prepare our colleagues with different development
needs for future prospects and opportunities. The
Group’s dedication has been fully demonstrated by the
increased average training hours per employee in 2024
as compared with that in 2023.

On top of these, 4 different themed weeks with focus
on staff wellness, Culture and Values, Employee
Value Proposition (EVP) and customer experience
were organised during the year to heighten staff’s
awareness and knowledge on these topics. Reinforcing
our commitment to our EVP, we redesigned the set
of EVP visuals as part of the celebration of the fifth
anniversary of our EVP in 2024. A new “Open Day” event
was launched to facilitate our staff to gain a deeper
understanding of different units within the Group.

In the area of employee wellness, further to the annual
“Wellness Week” that was mentioned above, staff
medical coverage has again been enhanced, while the
various flexible work arrangement and leave options
continue.

Regarding employee communication, the Group carries
on with its commitment to promote the speak-up culture
by conducting a group-wide culture survey in October
2024. Cumulative increase in both the participation
rate and the overall positive perception score has been
observed since the group-wide survey launched in 2021
for the first time. A new initiative “Happy Hour with CE”
kick-started in June 2024 offering opportunities for the
Chief Executive and employees to communicate and
learn from each other.

In view of the challenging markets in recent years, a
prudent approach has been adopted during the talent
acquisition process, with careful consideration on
the mix of revenue generating and mid or back office
positions. It is encouraging to note that staff turnover in
2024 improved significantly when compared with the
2023 turnover rate.

More detailed information on our human resources
development is included under the section “Workplace”
in the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“Company” or “Group”)
are committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices within the Group and
devote considerable effort to identify and formalize
best practices. We believe that sound and effective
corporate governance practices are essential for
delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of
business integrity and maintaining investors’ confidence.
Good corporate governance promotes and safeguards
the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders,
thereby enhancing the credibility and reputation of the
Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company has applied the principles and complied
with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Part 2 of
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code provision
F.2.2 as explained in the following relevant section. This
Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules, and explains how the Company
applies the principles of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group promotes its corporate culture in alignment
with its core values and vision, which enables the Group
to deliver its long-term strategies and create sustainable
value for its shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Group is committed to ensuring that its businesses are
conducted lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and in
accordance with high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance.

The Directors take the lead in promoting the desired
corporate culture and ensuring that it is reflected
consistently in the policies and operating practices of
the Group. Corporate culture and expected behaviors
are clearly communicated to employees of the Group
through orientation and training and they are also freely
accessible on the intranet of the Group.

More information about the Group’s Vision, Mission,
Culture and Values is available on the website of Dah
Sing Bank (About Group profile section).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company has established a Board Governance
Policy and Procedures (“BGPP”) which covers corporate
governance structure and practices and is subject to
review on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company so as to promote its success and continued
growth. The Board plays a leading role in setting the
corporate values, culture and standards for the Group,
and promotes a sound corporate culture which reinforces
the values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the
Company has sound systems of risk management,
internal control and regulatory compliance. The
Directors, collectively and individually, have a duty to
act in good faith, and to take decisions objectively in
the interests of the Group. The Board sets the business
objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution
of those objectives by the Management of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
of running the Group to the Management, and has
delegated responsibility for certain matters to a number
of committees, which are described more fully in the
following sections. As defined in the Board’s terms
of reference, there are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not
be delegated to the committees of the Board or the
Management. These reserved matters include:

+  setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies
of the Group

«  approving annual budget and business plan, and
monitoring performance and execution of plan

«  establishing and overseeing risk governance

«  appointment and oversight of senior management,
and ensuring competent managementis in place

«  setting corporate values, culture and standards,
and promoting a sound corporate culture which
reinforces the values of acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly
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ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate
structure

ensuring effective audit function and internal
control

ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness
in respect of the structure, operation and risk
management

matters involving conflict of interest of substantial
shareholders or any Director

+  to review the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

+  to review the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors

«  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and approve disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report

The following is a summary of the matters relating to
the above corporate governance duties reviewed and
discussed by the Board in 2024:

«  material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the
ordinary business or operation of the Company),
investments and business reorganization

«  appointment of Directors and also appointment of
individual Directors as the chairman or members of
Board Committees

«  corporate governance functions in respect of the
development and review of policies and practices
on corporate governance

«  overseeing management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) strategy and reporting, risk
management (including ESG risks) and internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness

« evaluating and determining the Company’s
ESG-related strategy and risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems are in place

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties including:

« to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance

«  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management

Corporate Governance Report of 2023

ESG Report of 2023

Management’s confirmation on effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the

Group

ESG development and progress made against ESG
strategy

Annual Review of the BGPP

Annual Review of the Shareholders Communication
Policy

Annual Review of the Board Diversity Policy
Annual Review of the Director Nomination Policy
Revised Group Remuneration Policy

Connected Transactions

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

47



48

ERGZEN

R2024F 128310 EEEFHI0FESFAN 2181
HITEESITERE TR FHEREE REE &
FERKIBRITHER) - TRELERERERE B
ITHARE) ; URBIFRTEELBMEAE ERSE
RE-BERELE ERERE RESLTIRERESE
JEo

R2024F 18 BHEREE BES XTI REREEL
TEZEAERRB 2ES > WH2023F 12851883
(ETRAI) 553.09D1R MY B R EVIG — B 1R BN B FB P AY
FERR FECHIBBEREARRBEENEE

EFEHABEENER TR E IS BB
BITHEE I EFEEREFITHEARENES
BREROKREPIH LRFRENELSREE EF2
BABEBNHNAFRZ EFhSEEEAER
MR RABEBDRIRKIMIRITRE B S RGBT
BRAE ((BBRZ) NEER LHARBNRNE
EEE (ORSEFEINACNRE UREEREE
BIFRITES A RBENFIAREFILRTDESFY
BHEEEAR FRAREIIFRITESNS M

FERATE AR

AABRAEXEEEEMEIEER  EFELE
BREP(EXBZABEE-BEETEREMEDETEN
HERE T RIER 2 T MAREEAEAREE R
IR ZRERE -

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

EEAETBRR BB OB ETERENTERS
FHEE-BEZEDABRAEEIENEFETES
REABRITBBENABEBNEERS  UHER
BONRED I EEETBEEFTETTRERSE
At UEREFSEMMBTHEE EFAERARERK
HREESUEEEERRNRE - TEREERITZSE
SEFRNER ENREARE -THERAEER
AEZABEE AXEECENDIEEEB AR
RELE EeRREBEREFRRNISEZEREE

IFHITES (BIERILIFITES)

FATES—WHMESEHE BBTHHETZ
B2 RAOLEKE - EXNHAKREERNEER
REE /REFERHSEZEREZEGTHRER K
FHRERRBHIESEEH TERBHERAR
ZREARGHURRFIAG - FFRITEFTEBIRME
T BERERNBEZERREZR /AERBZRER
HRERFLHEESNFR

RNFIB6RBIUIFRNITES -BBIUIENITEEIE
2 EHRADBIBEZREBRABBBEB L
1220245128310 » A B B BT (L H#RAI) 583.10(1)
F(M& R FE3.10AK BB B EFHBESTEER LK
BB JEMITESE Ao

PREBILIFATESRIIRIR(LEMRA) H3.131% 5 7
Bt 255 EITIBII R EHE o SRR  EFE R
AHERBYIFNTERIITEHIUER UL AAF
TFEWEIRBIYIFNTESAREBIIE B FRES

=



Board Composition

As at 31 December 2024, the Board comprised
10 Directors, namely Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
(Chairman), Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice
Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive),
Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
(Deputy Chief Executive) as Executive Directors (“EDs”),
and Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell,
Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam,
Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan and Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung
(Alex Cheung) as Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDS”).

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
and Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung), who were
appointed to the Board in January 2024, had obtained
the legal advice from a firm of solicitors as required
under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 18 December
2023. Each of them has confirmed his/her understanding
of the obligations as a Director of the Company.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies
and qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately
and effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has
adequate knowledge and expertise relevant to the
business activities of the Company in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight. Brief biographical
particulars of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual
Report. The Company has maintained on the respective
websites of Dah Sing Bank and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) an updated list of
its Directors including their roles and functions and
whether they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names
of the Company’s Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key
aspects of its management - the management of the
Board and the day-to-day management of its business,
and that there should be a clear division of these
responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that no single individual should
have unfettered powers of decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
are held separately by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and
Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) respectively. This
segregation ensures a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and
the Chief Executive’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business and a balance of power and
authority. The Chairman mainly provides leadership
for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges
its responsibilities effectively, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. The Chairman possesses the requisite
experience, competencies and personal qualities to
fulfill these responsibilities. The Chief Executive is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Company to provide business direction and operational
leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,
enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal
control.

NEDs (including INEDs)

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or
extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of
the Company. The NEDs make valuable contribution to
the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed
comments and suggestions.

The Company had 6 INEDs. Each of the INEDs has
provided to the Company confirmation of his/her
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2024, the Company
has complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules with sufficient number of INEDs who
possess the appropriate professional qualifications and
experience.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Following such assessment, the Board
considers all the INEDs to be independent. Further, the
Company has also received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his/her independence.
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The NEDs of the Company are not appointed for
a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of
the NEDs (including INEDs), setting out the terms and
conditions of their appointment.

Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board Independence
is key to good corporate governance. As part of
the established governance framework, the BGPP
contains effective mechanisms that reinforce a strong
independent Board and that independent views and
input from Directors are conveyed to the Board. The
Board conducted annual review on the BGPP and
considered that such mechanisms were properly
implemented and is effective.

To maintain a strong independent element in the Board
and to ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board’s decision-making, meetings of the Board/
Board committees are held in an inclusive environment
where open debates and constructive challenges are
encouraged. Directors/committees’ members are
free to contribute their views at meetings. Dissenting
views of Directors on any matters discussed at Board/
committees’ meetings will be properly recorded in the
minutes.

The Chairman of the Board meets with the INEDs
annually, without the presence of other Directors and
other management staff, to facilitate open and frank
discussion.

There is a strong independent element in the Board
to ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board’s decision-making process as well as the
thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s oversight of
the Management.

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least 4 times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board
meetings are held as necessary. Details of Directors’
attendance at the Board meetings and the annual
general meeting in 2024 are set out in the section on
Attendance Records of this Corporate Governance
Report.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice is given
in advance. Directors may submit to the Company
Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. Minutes of the Board and
committees of the Board are kept by the Company
Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committees,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board
Committees are prepared and maintained to record in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board Committees, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors
or Board Committee members as appropriate for
comments, approval and records. Board records are
available for inspection by any Director upon request.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. In circumstances where Directors
believe that independent advice is needed, they
should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company
Secretary or the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify
and engage an appropriate professional adviser at the
expense of the Company. The Company maintains
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after his/her appointment. All new
Directors are subject to election by shareholders of the
Company at the next annual general meeting after their
appointments have become effective. All other Directors
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

In the recruitment of INEDs, the Company will consider
the selection criteria as set out in the Director Nomination
Policy, which include time commitment, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and
qualification of the candidates.

Delegation by the Board

To ensure the efficient and smooth operation of the
Company, the Board acknowledges the need to delegate
certain power to Board committees and Management.
The roles, responsibilities and reporting lines of
Management are set out in the BGPP.

In particular, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee were set up under
the authority of the Board, to assist the Board in carrying
out its responsibilities.

As at 31 December 2024, the composition of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit

Committee is as follows:

EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive)

INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze
Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Franz Winkelmann
David Wai-Hung Tam
Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)

A

Nomination and

Remuneration Committee
(majority are INEDs)

Members:
«  Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
»  David Wai-Hung Tam
»  Gary Pak-Ling Wang

A

Audit Committee
(all are INEDs)

Members:
«  Paul Franz Winkelmann (Chairman)
«  Robert Tsai-To Sze
«  Blair Chilton Pickerell
« Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Company in August 2005 with specific written terms of
reference setting out its roles and responsibilities. The
Committee was reconstituted as the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in
August 2006 with a set of updated terms of reference.
The terms of reference for the NRC are available on the
websites of Dah Sing Bank and the HKEX.

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the NRC set out the
requirement for a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the
Board. The terms of reference also explicitly prohibit
the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment
of new directors to sub-committees of the Board or to
the management of the Company, and require that such
appointments are made after deliberation by the full
Board.

The NRC performs the following duties:

« To make nomination or review and endorse
the nomination for appointment as directors,
and to review and endorse the nomination for
appointment as senior management

. To review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and also its committees at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board

«  To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board and also its committees,
particularly in respect of the composition of Board
and committee members

«  To review if the individuals nominated as Directors
are suitably qualified

«  To assess the independence of INEDs

«  Toreview the Director Nomination Policy

«  To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related
measurable objectives and the progress on

achieving these objectives

+  To advise and assist the Board in discharging its
culture reform and related responsibilities

Director Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the
Board in May 2019 which is subject to regular review to
ensure its effectiveness. The Director Nomination Policy
describes the process for identifying and evaluating
potential candidates for appointment to the Company’s
Board of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of the candidates for
nomination as Director, the NRC shall consider the
candidates on the basis of the selection criteria set out
in the Director Nomination Policy which includes his/her
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience
in the financial services industry or other industries,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest, diversity perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
independence and length of service, and independence
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in
respect of proposed appointment of INED.

For appointment or election of a new Director, the NRC
shall take the lead in identifying candidates suitably
qualified to become a Director. The NRC may solicit
ideas for identification of candidates from a number
of sources including present members of the Board,
senior management and individuals personally known
to the members of the Board. The NRC and senior
management will also consider information and
comment on individual candidates coming from other
sources, including but not limited to well regarded
senior business executives or professionals, professional
firms, and business associates. Any shareholder of the
Company may nominate a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a
general meeting by lodging a written notice with the
Company. The nomination procedures and process are
set out in the Procedure for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders which is available on the website of Dah
Sing Bank.

The NRC shall consider candidates recommended as
nominees for directors submitted to the NRC by any
directors, senior management or shareholders of the
Company, provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such nomination shall comply with
the notice requirements set forth in the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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The NRC shall endeavor to consider and select
individuals who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively make contribution to the Board.
In conducting the assessment, the NRC shall take into
account the selection criteria set out in the Director
Nomination Policy as well as the prevailing structure,
size and composition of the Board to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills
amongst members of the Board. The NRC shall then
make recommendations or endorsement to the Board
on the appointment of the candidates for directorship.

For retiring directors who are eligible for re-election
at general meetings, the NRC shall determine if the
incumbent directors consenting to re-nomination
continue to be qualified and proposes the retiring
directors for re-election.

The NRC shall include in its recommendation to
the Board for consideration the justifications for
re-appointing an INED who has served more than nine
years. The recommendation for re-appointment should
state why the NRC believes that the director is still
independent and should be re-elected, including the
factors considered, the process and the discussion of the
NRC in arriving at such determination.

Remuneration of Directors
The NRC has the following roles and responsibilities:
«  To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility

for the design and operation of the Company’s
remuneration system

«  To review and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the Company’s remuneration policy
and practices

«  To ensure that regular review of the Company’s
remuneration system and its operation is conducted

«  To review and endorse matters relating to share
schemes

«  To review and endorse the specific remuneration
packages of directors and senior management

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair
and competitive packages for its employees, which are
commensurate with market terms, and are based on
business needs, expertise and quality of the individuals,
and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the
Board of Directors, market rates and factors such as each
director’s workload and required commitment will be
taken into account. The following factors are considered
when determining the remuneration packages of EDs:

«  Business needs and performance

+  The economy and business conditions in general
«  Eachindividual’s contributions to the Group

«  Riskrelated performance

. Involvement in ESG and climate-related risk
management

+  Reference to market pay level commensurate with
the individual’s responsibility

«  Consideration of regulatory guidelines

. Retention considerations and each individual’s
potential

During the process of consideration, no individual
director will be involved in decisions relating to his/her
own remuneration.

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the
members are INEDs.

The NRC held 3 meetings in 2024. The attendance record
of the NRC members at NRC meetings held in 2024 is
set out in the section on Attendance Records of this
Corporate Governance Report.
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The following is a summary of the work of the NRC
during 2024:

«  Reviewing and endorsing the remuneration levels
for EDs and senior management

« Reviewing and endorsing the re-election of
directors

«  Reviewing and endorsing the adjustment of fees
payable to the INEDs and NEDs

«  Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration
policy and related systems and practices

+ Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s
remuneration systems and practices

«  Reviewing the Board governance of the Company
and Dah Sing Bank

+  Reviewing the 2023 Board evaluation of Dah Sing
Bank

«  Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for
the Chief Executive and Division Head positions of
Dah Sing Bank

+  Reviewing and endorsing the Board Diversity Policy

«  Reviewing and endorsing the Director Nomination
Policy

«  Reviewing the culture enhancement initiatives
pursued by the Group

«  Reviewing and approving the revised Code of
Conduct for Staff

«  Reviewing and endorsing the appointment and
remuneration package of a member of senior

management of Dah Sing Bank

«  Receiving relevant update on the Phantom Share
Option Scheme

«  Reviewing the Terms of Reference of the NRC

BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board
of the Company, is responsible for ensuring the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting,
reviewing the internal control system and compliance
with regulatory requirements, and approving audit
plans and reviewing findings and reports of the internal
and external auditors, and that in presenting results
to the shareholders, the Directors have exercised
the care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and
that appropriate accounting and financial reporting
standards are followed.

The AC has the following roles and responsibilities:

+  Makes recommendations to the Board regarding
the appointment of the head of internal audit
and reviews the effectiveness of the internal audit
function

+  Makes recommendation to the Board on the
selection, oversight and remuneration of external
auditors

+  Reviews and monitors the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards

+ Reviews and monitors the integrity of the
Company’s annual and interim financial
statements, including significant financial reporting
judgements used in producing the financial
statements

+  Reviews the Company’s internal controls and
reports its major findings and comments to the
Board

Descriptions of the Company’s internal control
system are set out below. Information relating to
the Group’s risk management including appropriate
financial quantification is set out in the Financial Risk
Management sections as notes to the annual financial
statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available on the
websites of Dah Sing Bank and the HKEX.
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All members of the AC are INEDs with extensive experience
in banking, finance and business management. Mr. Robert
Tsai-To Sze is a qualified accountant and was a partner of
a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”)
up to June 1996. Mr. Winkelmann was a former partner
of PwC up to June 2014 and assumed the role as a senior
advisor of PwC from July 2014 to December 2015. Save
for the above, none of the other committee members are
employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or
existing external auditors of the Company.

The AC members meet at least 4 times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal
audit and the external auditors. In 2024, a total of
4 meetings were convened. The attendance record of
AC members at the AC meetings held in 2024 is set out
in the section on Attendance Records of this Corporate
Governance Report.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions
and decisions of the AC, members of the AC who also
attend meetings of the Board will advise on matters of
significance relating to the financial statements and the
internal control system of the Group discussed in the AC.
In addition, a report highlighting the matters reviewed
and dealt with by the AC is submitted to the Board on a
half-yearly basis.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during
2024 in discharging its responsibilities:

+  Review, and providing advice and recommendations
to the Board for the approval, of the 2023 results
announcements and audited financial statements
of the Group, and the 2024 interim results and
interim report

«  Review of external auditors’ findings and comments,
and management’s reports on major accounting
and financial disclosure matters in respect of 2023
audit and financial statements

«  Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2023
for inclusion in the Company’s 2023 annual report

«  Approval of the reports to the Board providing a
summary of the issues, focuses and discussion
reviewed and dealt with by the AC in the second
half of 2023 and the first half of 2024

+  Review of connected party transactions and
disclosure

+  Review and approval of the appointment and
remuneration of external auditors

+  Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit
plan

+  Review and approval of internal audit plan

«  Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and
recommendations

«  Review of updates from the Compliance Division of
the Group on the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s
recommendations

+  Review of the highlights of major new accounting
and financial reporting standards and guidance
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and impact to the Group on their
adoption

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the
independence of the Company’s external auditors,
PwC, for performing the audit of the Group’s financial
statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC
only when the Company can benefit in a cost-effective
manner and the independence and objectivity of PwC
as the Company’s external auditors can be maintained.
Otherwise, professional services from other firms are
used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on
agreed-upon procedures, provided the Group non-audit
services during 2024 including review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s
interim financial disclosure, and review of the update
on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank’s USS$2 Billion
Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk
management and internal control of the Group.
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The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended

31 December 2024 is set out as follows:

Fee paid/payable
Services rendered for the Company (HK$’000)
Audit services 13,656
Non-audit services:
+ Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) and 300
professional work on new subordinated note issue of Dah Sing Bank under the Programme
+ Compliance reviews and independent assessments on operational risk management, 3,979
technology risk management, new IT system projects etc.
+ Tax compliance review on taxation computation and advisory service on compliance with 5,141
new tax regulations relevant to the Group
+ Others 680
Total 23,756

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient
explanation and information to the Board to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. As at
31 December 2024, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Group on
a going-concern basis. The responsibility of the Group’s
external auditor on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to the
Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in annual and
interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory or regulatory

requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to evaluate
and determine the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such risks include,
amongst others, material risks relating to ESG and
climate-related risks. The Board is also responsible for
overseeing Management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. Management has to provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Such systems
comprise a well-established organisational structure
and comprehensive policies and standards. Areas of
responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances.
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Procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring
the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud. Procedures have also been
designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to
identify, control and report on the major types of risks
the Group encounters. Business and functional units
are responsible for the assessment of individual types
of risk arising under their areas of responsibilities,
the management of the risks in accordance with
risk management procedures and the reporting on
risk management. The Group maintains an effective
risk management framework through the setting
up of specialised management committees for the
oversight and monitoring of major risk areas and the
establishment of risk management departments for
relevant functions of the Group.

Risk management reports are submitted to the
relevant committees and ultimately to the Board
or its delegated Board committee for oversight and
monitoring of various types of risk associated with
the Group’s businesses and operations. The Group’s
risk management policies and major control limits
are approved by the Board or its delegated Board
committee. Operating and risk performance are
monitored and reviewed against relevant risk limits
regularly according to established policies and
procedures.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the
responsibility to develop and maintain a sound internal
control system. The internal control system, operating
through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended
to allow the Board to monitor the Group’s business
performance and financial positions, to control and
adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against
fraud and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, and to exercise oversight on and
provide guidance to management in achieving the
Company’s objectives. However, it should be recognized
that the Group’s internal control procedures can only
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to
maintain an effective internal control system are as
follows:

+ A clear management organizational structure
is set up with well-defined lines of authority,
accountability and responsibilities.

«  Specialized committees are formed to oversee and
control significant risk factors, such as credit risk,
liquidity and interest rate risks, operational risk and
compliance risk.

«  Regular reporting of the performance of the
Company’s businesses to senior management and
management committees. Actual performance
results against budgets are closely monitored. The
Board reviews the Group’s business and financial
performance on a quarterly basis.

«  Written policies and procedures are established to
facilitate proper assessment of customers, services
to customers, segregation of duties, accuracy
and completeness of transaction processing,
safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures,
compliance control and monitoring (including
anti-money laundering (“AML”)), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information
security, business continuity planning, financial
control (including accounting, regulatory reporting,
financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management
accounting and budget control, reconciliation of
accounts), and system of management oversight
including the operations of various functional
committees.

+  The independent internal audit function monitors
compliance with management policies and
procedures, as well as regulatory requirements. It
conducts a wide variety of internal control reviews
and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the
integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems
of control. The Head of Internal Audit reports
functionally to the AC and administratively to the
Chief Executive, with direct access to the Executive
Committee.
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«  The independent group risk function monitors
and reports the Group’s risk positions and analysis
to senior management, Risk Management and
Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk
control in the portfolio of the Group’s businesses
with due consideration of a proper risk and return
balance.

« The Group continues its ongoing upgrade of
risk management framework and capabilities to
strengthen its risk control and effectiveness, which
are key to the maintenance of sound internal
control process of the Group.

« The Group Compliance Committee at the
management level serves to uphold a high level
of awareness and accountability of compliance
requirements. It is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and
enhancement of compliance system, policies and
practices to ensure compliance with all statutory
requirements and regulatory guidelines. The Group
Compliance Division performs an independent
on-going monitoring and advisory role on the
Group’s compliance with relevant rules and
regulations, while the AML and Financial Crime
Risk Department manages and oversees AML and
financial crime risk of the Group.

« A Guideline on Group Functional Reporting
is in place to promote collaboration between
Group functions and subsidiaries, align Group’s
policies, practices and standards, and allow
Group functional heads to exercise proper control,
supervision and monitoring of subsidiaries’
operations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control
system, the Board has considered reviews performed
by the AC and Management, and the findings of both
internal and external auditors.

Under the direction of the AC, the Group’s Internal Audit
conducted an assessment covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management practices. The 2024 reviews
included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the comments made by both
internal and external auditors, policies and procedures
of the Group, regulatory guidelines and the CG Code
regarding internal controls. The Group is committed to
continuously enhancing its internal control system and
processes.

Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented a robust risk management
and internal control framework with ongoing monitoring
and regular reporting of risk profiles, risk positions
and internal control issues to the Management and to
the Board. Based on the ongoing reviews and regular
assessments, the Management including the heads
of business units, financial control, risk management,
compliance units and operations management, and
the senior management of the key subsidiaries of the
Group have evaluated the existing status of the risk
management and internal control system and confirmed
that they remain effective with reference to the
requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules. These
statements of Management have been reviewed and
endorsed by Internal Audit function, and reviewed and
confirmed by senior management of the Group.

The results of the 2024 review, which have been reported
to the AC and the Board, concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function.
The primary role of the Internal Audit function is
to help the Board and Management to protect the
assets, reputation and sustainability of the Group.
The Internal Audit function provides independent
and objective assurance as to whether the design and
operational effectiveness of the Group’s framework of
risk management, control and governance processes,
as designed and represented by the Management, is
adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of
the overall risk management and control framework are
reported to the AC or the Board as appropriate and at
least annually. The Internal Audit function also reviews
the Management’s action plans in response to audit
findings and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of
the controls before formally closing audit issues.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting held in 2024 are as follows:-

Attended|/eligible to attend Attended
Nomination and Annual
Audit  Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong ™ot 4/4 _ _ _
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4/4 = - 4
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4/4 - 33 V4
Nicholas John Mayhew 4/4 - - v/
INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze 4/4 4/4 3/3 Vs
Blair Chilton Pickerell 4/4 4/4 - Vs
Paul Franz Winkelmann (appointed on 2 January 2024) 4/4 4/4 - v
David Wai-Hung Tam 4/4 _ 33 _
Nancy Ha-Fong Chan (appointed on 2 January 2024) 4/4 4/4 = v
Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) (appointed on 2 January 2024) 4[4 - = ./

Seng-Lee Chan (resigned on 2 January 2024) = - - -

Note: Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
The Chairman of the Board, having attended the lengthy board meetings of the Group held immediately prior to the 2024
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 31 May 2024 (the “2024 AGM”), was unable to attend the 2024 AGM due to
other business engagement. The Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Company, was directed by
the Chairman to take the chair of the 2024 AGM.
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INDUCTION AND TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction handbook and materials relevant to the Company and
briefed by the Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding of the operations and business of the
Group and that he or she is aware of his or her responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations. The Company
also organized continuous professional development and training to its Directors to ensure that they are fully aware of

their responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the year, the Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors provided to the Company Secretary a

record of the training they received in 2024.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the year:

Training Areas

Corporate Group’s Risk
Governance/ Business and Governance and

Directors Regulatory Management Management
EDs

David Shou-Yeh Wong 4 v v
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) v v v
Gary Pak-Ling Wang v 4 v
Nicholas John Mayhew v v v
INEDs

Robert Tsai-To Sze 4 v v
Blair Chilton Pickerell v v v
Paul Franz Winkelmann 4 v v
David Wai-Hung Tam 4 v v
Nancy Ha-Fong Chan v v v
Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) 4 v v
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GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical,
personal and professional standards of Directors and
employees of the Group. All employees are required to
adhere to various Group policies that reflect the core
values and corporate culture of the Group.

Code for securities transactions by directors and
employees

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’
securities dealing (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the prevailing required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) under
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry, the Directors of the Company confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Directors’ Dealing Code during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

All employees of the Group, including the senior
management and selected members of the employees,
are obliged to follow the Company’s restrictions on
dealing in securities, which are on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code, as set out in the Staff Securities
Dealing Policy.

Code of Conduct

To ensure the Group operates to the highest standards
of ethical conduct and professional competence, all staff
are required to strictly follow its Code of Conduct for
Staff (“Code of Conduct”) which sets out at its outset the
culture and values that are to be upheld at work and also
lays down the guidelines on ethical values and business
conduct that staff shall follow, which include, amongst
others, anti-corruption measures to curb corruption and
bribery.

All staff are required to observe a strict code of ethics
with no tolerance for any form of corruption or bribery
as stipulated in the Code of Conduct. Moreover, our staff
shall comply with our Policy on Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Financing of Terrorism (“AML Policy”),
which provides, amongst others, guidance to our staff on
how to identify and report suspicious money laundering
and terrorist financing activities. The Group uses various
communication channels to periodically remind its staff
of the requirement to adhere to the rules and ethical
standards set out in the Code of Conduct and AML Policy.
The Group offers anti-money laundering, conduct,
anti-bribery and corruption training programmes to its
staff regularly, and requires them to attend refresher
training mandatory on an annual basis to ensure that
staff are aware of the Group’s zero-tolerance stance on
bribery and corruption, and to strengthen the financial
crime risk and management culture.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

In maintaining and supporting the Group’s corporate
values and ethical standards, the Group has in place
a Whistle-Blowing Policy, which sets out procedures
for its staff to communicate and report, in confidence,
material and bona fide concerns or any violations. These
communications can be elevated to the Group AC and/or
the Board (via the Group AC).

Policy of Handling of Confidential and Price-sensitive
Inside Information

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside
Information is in place, which sets out the guiding
principles, procedures and internal controls for the
handling of confidential inside information, and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner
so as to allow all stakeholders to be aware of the latest
positions or price sensitive information of the Group and
its subsidiaries.

In addition, the Group has implemented the Policy
on Handling of Unpublished Price-sensitive Inside
Information. The policy adopts additional precautions
which should be taken by employees who are in
possession of unpublished and price-sensitive
information or confidential information, including
identification of project by code name and dissemination
of information for stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis only.
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DIVERSITY
Board Diversity
Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board
in December 2013 which is subject to annual review
to ensure its effectiveness. The Board Diversity Policy
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of its
performance which in turn should benefit the Company
and its business as a whole.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board in supporting the attainment
of its sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence
and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the factors on personal attributes outlined above,
expectation on contribution to the Board, and the
benefits of diversity of the Board.

OUR BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY:
Key Highlight: INED representation of 60%

Gender

INED Ratio ED (4)

Ethnicity Chinese (7)

Below

Age Group 60 (1)

61-70 (5)

Board Tenure

(Vears) Below 3 yrs (3)

Other listed
company
directorship
(no. of co.)

0 co. (3)

Male (9)

3-9yrs (3)

1co. (3)

The Board currently has one female Board member. The
Board targets to maintain at least the current level of
female representation and will consider opportunities
to increase the number of female members over time
with the assistance of the NRC in selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board
appointments, subject to the availability of suitable
candidates. The Board will endeavour to achieve the
appropriate gender diversity with reference to local
regulatory requirements/recommended best practices.

The Board, through the NRC, has reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure the composition of the
Board complies with the CG Code with an appropriate
mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant to
the Company’s strategy, governance and business and
contributes to the Board’s effectiveness and efficiency.
The implementation of Board Diversity Policy was
considered effective.

Female (1)

INED (6)

Non-Chinese (3)

Over 70 (4)

Over 9 yrs (4)

2 co. (2)
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Workforce Diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive
environment for all employees. We have established
policies in our Code of Conduct for Staff and Policy
on Equal Opportunities on Employment in strict
compliance with applicable laws and regulations that
unequivocally prohibit any form of discrimination,
harassment, victimization, or vilification based on
gender, pregnancy, breastfeeding, marital status,
disability, family status, or race. We ensure decisions
made with respect to recruitment, promotion and any
development opportunities are based on individual’s
qualifications and merits. We monitor our workforce
diversity on an on-going basis to maintain a balance mix.
To maintain diversity in our workplace, we have ongoing
monitoring on our diversity mix. For 2024, we have set
a target of 45%-55% for gender ratio in the workforce
and plan to maintain this target ratio. As at the end of
2024, we achieved gender balance among our full-time
employees across the Group, with 54% women and 46%
men.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication
with shareholders. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board
and all Directors make a strong effort to attend. The
Chairmen of the Board Committees and a representative
of the external auditors also attend the AGM to take
shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts
in connection with the Company’s annual and interim
results. Apart from the above, designated senior
executives maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s development, subject to compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers shareholders convenient access to the Company’s
financial information, announcements/circulars and
information on the Company’s corporate governance
structure and practices, in addition to business and
corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company may put forth requisition
to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of
the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the
meeting, (ii) be signed by the requisitionist(s) and
(iii) be deposited at the Company’s registered office at
26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or in electronic form. It may
also consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of
the requisitionist(s), (ii) the contact details of the
requisitionist(s) and (iii) the number of ordinary shares
of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
meeting is given.

If the Directors fail to convene the EGM as aforesaid,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene the meeting. Any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
3 months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
by reason of the failure of the Directors to duly convene
a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders, or not less than
50 shareholders, who are entitled to vote on a resolution
at a general meeting, may:

- putforward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement
with respect to matters to be dealt with at a general
meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
further details on the shareholder qualifications and the
procedures and timeline in connection with the above.
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Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the
Board’s attention to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. Questions about the procedures for
convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or
EGM may also be put to the Company Secretary.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining
on ongoing dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the framework to promote effective
communication with shareholders and to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner and
is subject to review on an annual basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company communicates with its shareholders
and the investment community through a wide range
of channels and means including publications (e.g.
annual reports, interim reports, notices, circulars, and
announcements), website (e.g. publication posted on
the Company’s website including the ESG reports), and
in person (attending shareholders’ meetings and analyst
briefings or press conference).

Having taken note of the multiple channels in place for
shareholders to communicate their views, the Board
considered that the Shareholders Communication Policy
was appropriate and effective.

The Policy is available on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com).

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims to pay sustainable
dividends over time. In determining dividend distribution,
the Company takes into account factors such as
general business conditions, financial results, business
growth prospects, capital requirements, regulatory
requirements applicable to the Company’s businesses,
shareholders’ interests and any other factors the
Directors consider to be relevant.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional
documents in 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the board and
that Board procedures are followed.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary who possesses the relevant
qualifications and experience pursuant to the
requirements of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The
Company Secretary had taken more than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skills and
knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2024.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions
as set out in Note 43 to the financial statements, all
the INEDs of the Company have reviewed the said
transactions and confirmed that the said transactions
have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2) onnormal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors,
PwC, to report on the Company’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PwC has issued an unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out in Note 43 to the financial
statements in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter needs to be
submitted by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) considerations are intricately woven into the fabric of our business
strategies and operations. The Group remains attentive to evolving market trends and is proactive in refining its
sustainability practices. Guided by its comprehensive ESG strategy, the Group focuses its efforts on the following key
areas, striving for continuous improvement and working towards a sustainable and resilient future for itself and the

broader society.

ESG Governance

Strengthen ESG positioning and oversee the development of our Climate
Transition Plan under the Board’s oversight

Governance

Communication

Reporting

Green and Sustainable Banking (“GSB”)

Establish clear accountability on ESG oversight and strategy implementation

Communicate our ESG initiatives regularly to our internal and external
stakeholders

Improve disclosure quality and performance tracking as a continuous process

Provide oversight on the implementation of GSB and their relevant strategies
within DSBG

Governance Define and implement the overall GSB and climate-related framework and the
relevant strategy

Customer Centricity Improve customer experience and reinforce customer centricity

Customer Satisfaction Build long-term and trusting relationships with our customers with superior
customer experience and high quality products and services

Marketplace Differentiate with focus on small and medium enterprises (“SMEs”)

SME Support Increase outreach to and encourage SMEs in ESG transition

Digitalisation Optimise customer experience and operational impact through digital
transformation

Workplace Build an engaged workforce to enhance employee loyalty

Culture and Ethical Behaviours

Training and Development

Health and Well-being

Promote ethical behaviours to uphold the Group’s Culture and Values

Enhance organisation and leadership capabilities for future-ready workforce

Promote health awareness and provide flexible and healthy work environment
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Community

Enrich our community strategy to enhance impact

Youth Education

Youth Sports

ESG Awareness

Volunteering

Environment

Support youth education with a focus on STEAM (Science, Technology,
Engineering, Arts and Mathematics) and targeting under-privileged children

Promote sports as a means of nurturing all-round youth development

Raise the awareness of ESG matters in the community for promoting
sustainable development

Engage our employees to contribute to the society through volunteering

activities

Sharpen our focus on environmental Key Performance Indicators for
strategic impact and operational efficiency

Environmental Footprint

Paperless

Staff Awareness and Engagement

Reduce our environmental footprint and influence our supply chain

Reduce paper consumption through digitalising operational processes and
engaging customers on digital adoption

Promote environmental conservation to our staff for a greener planet

We continuously review our ESG Strategy to ensure alignment with the Group’s overarching business objectives. In
2024, the Group updated the ESG governance structure, elevating the Green and Sustainable Banking Implementation
Taskforce and the Customer Centricity Committee to the same level as the Marketplace, Workplace, Community and
Environment Workgroups. This update highlights our increasing emphasis on these crucial areas and ensures that clear
roles and responsibilities are established within the organisation. We also continue to systematically implement our ESG

strategy in business decisions and actions with notable achievements made across the Group as outlined below:

Green and Sustainable Banking:

Successfully piloted the certification process
for a client’s green building project under the
Sustainable Finance Certification Scheme
organised by the Construction Industry Council
(“CIC”)

Developed the new product framework on Green
and Sustainable Loan (“GSL”) in December 2024 to
support eco-friendly and sustainable projects of
corporate clients

Developed the Greenness Assessment framework
to evaluate climate-risk readiness of borrowers

Customer Centricity:

Hosted Customer Experience (“CX”) Conference
attended by 330 staff members to enhance
customer centricity through insights from esteemed
speakers and discussions on Dah Sing Bank's
Customer Satisfaction Survey

Held 3 CX Speaker Series events for 600 employees,
featuring industry experts sharing best practices
in customer experience across tourism, data and
artificial intelligence, insurance, and digital payments
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Marketplace:

Collaborated with different industry organisations
to support SMEs in ESG transition, including
the support for Hong Kong Small and Medium
Enterprises Association (“HKSMEA”) to launch the
SME ESG Charter 2024 to promote ESG practices
among local SMEs

Streamlined and improved customer digital
onboarding experience with the adoption of iAM
Smart form filling and address proof features
for individual customers, and the launch of
SME Remote Account Opening and adoption of
Interbank Account Sharing (“IADS”) as a market-first
use case for Know Your Customer (“KYC”) processes

Workplace:

Celebrated the fifth anniversary of our employee
value proposition of “NOT JUST A BANK. AHOME.”

Hosted a Culture Week to enrich staff awareness
and understanding of the Group’s Culture and
Values for the third consecutive year

Registered 106,705 employee training hours for
staff development

Registered 2,139 training hours on ESG topics,
such as climate-related risk, green and sustainable
finance

Environment:

Recorded 22% reduction in paper usage, compared
to our baseline in 2020

Initiated our Scope 3 greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions inventory scoping and estimation
exercise with a roadmap to conduct pilot
calculations of financed emissions

Achieved 89% completion in the signing of
Environmental Responsibility Undertakings by
suppliers

Community:

Recorded 2,318 volunteering hours contributed by
807 volunteers

Engaged 1,779 beneficiaries in community
programmes and activities

Celebrated BCM’s 50th Anniversary with the BCM
Cup Kids Street Dance Competition 2024 and
engaged 173 young dancers aged 3-14 years old to
demonstrate their talent and creativity

Conducted 5 financial education workshops
for students in Hong Kong and Macau to enhance
financial literacy of the community

The 2024 ESG Report provides an annual update on the initiatives, plans and performance of the Group in ESG aspects

in 2024. During the year, the Group has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements and provisions of the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2024.
In addition, the 2024 ESG Report is prepared with reference to the IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures, the disclosure
requirements of the HKMA’s Supervisory Policy Manual GS-1 Climate Risk Management and the HKEX New Climate
Requirements, noting that the Group will progress towards full compliance of the New Climate Requirements over
time. For more details of the Group’s sustainability initiatives during the year, please refer to the Group’s 2024 ESG
Report, which is published on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com) (About Us - Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) - ESG Report & Achievement).
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(the “Company”) is banking investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis
of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and
geographical segments are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 117.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.27 per
share which was paid on 26 September 2024.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.39 per share in cash.

For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfers
Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)
Record date

Annual General Meeting

4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2025 (Monday)
27 May 2025 (Tuesday) to 30 May 2025 (Friday)
30 May 2025 (Friday)

30 May 2025 (Friday)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend*:

Latest time to lodge transfers
Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)
Record date

Expected final dividend payment date

4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2025 (Thursday)
6 June 2025 (Friday) to 10 June 2025 (Tuesday)
10 June 2025 (Tuesday)

18 June 2025 (Wednesday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share transfers will be registered. For registration, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge transfers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis on the Group’s future business
development are provided in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this
Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing can also be
found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. The objectives
and policies of financial risk management and the
risk management structure and framework of the
Group can be found in the “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements” of this Annual Report. Particulars
of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year (if any) can
be found in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements”. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the “Review of Operations”
of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance
and also relationships with the key stakeholders
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group can be
found in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this
Annual Report and the 2024 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“2024 ESG Report”). The
“Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” also
contain description of the management structures and
framework to ensure compliance with various laws
and regulations which are applicable to the Group. The
above sections form part of this Report of the Directors.

The 2024 ESG Report is issued as a separate report
concurrently with this Annual Report and both reports
are also published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk)
and Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the
year are shown in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$760,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan*

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)*
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

*

Independent Non-Executive Directors
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The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with
Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of Association
are Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze and
Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam.

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam has informed the Company
that he will not offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and he will retire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
as regards their continued independence while serving
as members of the Board of Directors during the year.
The Company still considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting are set out in the
circular to the shareholders.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes
in information required to be disclosed by the Directors
since the publication of the 2024 Interim Report of the
Company and up to the date of this Annual Report are
set out below:

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Ceased to act as the Chairman and a Director of
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong
Limited with effect from 27 September 2024

- Ceased to act as a Director of Vision 2047
Foundation with effect from 18 October 2024

- Ceased to act as an Independent Non-Executive
Director, a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of Link Real Estate Investment Trust following the
retirement on 31 March 2025

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has
a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served
on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this Report of the Directors
is provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries” section
which follows this Report of the Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers and the
code of conduct for directors’ securities dealing adopted by the Company (collectively the “Securities Model Code”) were
as follows:

Percentage of

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total  total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955 - 1,045,626,955 74.38%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 1,984,691 @@ - - 1,984,691 0.14%
Nicholas John Mayhew 3,591,076 @14 - - 3,591,076 0.26%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total  total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong 410,001 137,285,682 - 137,695,683 43.09%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 95,480 - - 95,480 0.03%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 168,858 - - 168,858 0.05%
Nicholas John Mayhew 387,035 - - 387,035 0.12%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. - A shares interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total  total number of

Director interests interests interests interests issued shares
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 9,800 = = 9,800 0.00%
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Notes:

(1)

Such shares included (a) the indirect corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong in the Company under Part XV of the
SFO by virtue of his beneficial interests of 43.09% in Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) which currently holds
a controlling interest of 74.37% in the Company and (b) interests in the Company held through a company controlled by
David Shou-Yeh Wong.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 934,691 ordinary shares of the Company; and (b) deemed interests in
1,050,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by the
Company as explained in note (4) below.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 2,541,076 ordinary shares of the Company; and (b) deemed interests in
1,050,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by the
Company as explained in note (4) below.

The Company had established a cash-settled share-based incentive option scheme as a long-term incentive plan to
incentivize employees on 20 March 2018. The rights granted under the scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal
tranches commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal
factors, the grantees may exercise their vested options. No shares of the Company will be issued to the grantees of the
options under the scheme which is essentially a deferred cash incentive scheme linked to the performance of the grantees
and the share price of the Company.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 57,820 ordinary shares of DSFH; and (b) interests in 352,181 award
shares granted by DSFH. Details of share awards are set out in the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”.

The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by (a) a corporation in which the director controls one third or
more of the voting powers at general meetings and (b) shares held by companies under a family discretionary trust. HSBC
International Trustee Limited is the trustee of a family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 13,257 ordinary shares of DSFH; and (b) interests in 82,223 award
shares granted by DSFH. Details of share awards are set out in the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 35,687 ordinary shares of DSFH; and (b) interests in 133,171 award
shares granted by DSFH. Details of share awards are set out in the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 70,842 ordinary shares of DSFH; and (b) interests in 316,193 award
shares granted by DSFH. Details of share awards are set out in the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company held any short positions as defined under the SFO which are required to be recorded in the
register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Save as disclosed above and the details as disclosed under the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and
its Associated Corporation”, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and
their respective associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.
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SHARE SCHEMES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(a) The Company

I

Share option scheme

The share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 27 May 2014 (the “Old DSBG Share
Option Scheme”) had expired on 27 May
2024. On 31 May 2024, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New DSBG Share
Option Scheme”). No further options can be
offered under the Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme after its expiration but the provisions
of the Old DSBG Share Option Scheme remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to exercise of all options granted
prior to the expiration of the Old DSBG Share
Option Scheme but not yet exercised at the
time of expiration.

In accordance with the requirements of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), a summary of the Old
DSBG Share Option Scheme and the New
DSBG Share Option Scheme (collectively, the
“DSBG Share Option Schemes”) is disclosed as
follows:

(1) Purpose

To recognize the contribution or value
of certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
Group.

(2) Participants

The participants include any employee
of the Group, Director of the Company or
director of a subsidiary of the Company
and any person to whom a grant of
options serves as an inducement to enter
into employment contract to become
employee of the Group.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors

Following the expiration of the Old DSBG
Share Option Scheme, no further share
options can be granted under the Old
DSBG Option Scheme.

The total number of shares available
for issue under the New DSBG Share
Option Scheme is 14,057,521 shares,
representing 1% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this Report of the Directors.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of
shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to be
issued to him/her under all share options
granted to him/her in the 12-month
period up to and including the offer date
of relevant share options, exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at such date. Any grant
of further share options above the limit
shall be subject to the provisions of the
DSBG Share Option Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to
time.
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(5)

Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of
the Company for, and is specified when
related share options are granted. Shares
under the share options must be taken up
within 10 years from the date of grant.

Vesting period

The vesting period for options is
determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf
of the Board of the Company, and is
specified when related share options are
granted.

Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HK$1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

(8)

Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted

The exercise price of option is concluded
by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board
of the Company on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out
in Rule 17.03E of the Listing Rules and
is determined as no less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life

The Old DSBG Share Option Scheme had
expired on 27 May 2024.

The New DSBG Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from 31 May 2024
and expiring at the close of 30 May 2034.

The number of share options available for
grant under the Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2024 was 68,876,781.

No share options had been granted under the
New DSBG Share Option Scheme from the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2024. The
number of the share options available for grant
under the New DSBG Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2024 was 14,057,521.
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Particulars of interests in options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company granted under the Old DSBG Share
Option Scheme and information that is required to be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:

Number of the Company’s shares underlying the options

Dateof  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise Exercise
grant asat during during during asat price period ¥
Grantees (D/MY)  01/01/2024 2024 2024 2024 31/12/2024 (HK$) (D/MJY)
Directors
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 26/04/2018 450,000 - - 450,000 - 1824 26/04/2019-
26/04/2024
Nicholas John Mayhew 26/04/2018 450,000 - - 450,000 - 1824 26/04/2019-
26/04/2024
Aggregate of other employees 26/04/2018 300,000 - - 300,000 - 1824 26/04/2019-
26/04/2024
Notes:

(1) Allthe existing share options granted under the Old DSBG Share Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal

tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(2) Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who are directors, senior executives or officers of the major
operating subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous

contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

(3) No share options were cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2024.

(4) Details of the computation of the fair value of options at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted

are shown in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

Share award scheme

The Company has adopted a share award
scheme (the “DSBG Share Award Scheme”) on
9 September 2021, which was amended and
restated on 31 May 2024.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSBG Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1) Purpose

To recognize the contribution or value
of certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
Group.

(2) Participants

The participants include any employee
of the Group, Director of the Company or
director of a subsidiary of the Company
and any person to whom a grant of
awards serves as an inducement to enter
into employment contract to become
employee of the Group.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors

The total number of shares that may be
awarded shall not in aggregate exceed
126,517,691 shares (the “DSBG Award
Shares”), representing 9% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this Report of the
Directors. Under the scheme, the trustee
may acquire issued shares on-market
and/or subscribe new shares from the
Company and hold the DSBG Award
Shares on trust for selected participants
during the trust period.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the DSBG Award
Shares granted to each participant shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the
date of grant. Any grant of further DSBG
Award Shares above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSBG
Share Award Scheme and the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time.

(5) Vesting period

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board
of the Company or its delegate, and are
specified in the award letter when related
share awards are granted.

(6) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid

Nil.

(7) Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded

Nil.
(8) Remaining life

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from
9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

During the year, no share awards were granted
under the DSBG Share Award Scheme. The
number of share awards available for grant
under the DSBG Share Award Scheme as at
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 was
42,000,000 and 126,517,691 respectively.
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(b)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),

the holding company of the Company

I

Share option scheme

On 31 May 2024, the shareholders of DSFH
approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSFH Share
Option Scheme”) and, at the same time,
the termination of the share option scheme
adopted by DSFH on 27 May 2015 (the “Old
DSFH Share Option Scheme”). No share
options had been granted under the Old DSFH
Share Option Scheme since the date of its
adoption and no further share options can
be offered under the Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme after its termination.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the Old DSFH
Share Option Scheme and the New DSFH
Share Option Scheme (collectively, the “DSFH
Share Option Schemes”) is disclosed as
follows:

(1) Purpose

To recognize the contribution or value
of certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
DSFH group.

(2) Participants

The participants include any employee
of the DSFH group, Director of DSFH
or director of a subsidiary of DSFH and
any person to whom a grant of options
serves as an inducement to enter into
employment contract to become
employee of the DSFH group.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors

Following the termination of the Old
DSFH Option Scheme, no further share
options can be granted under the Old
DSFH Option Scheme.

The total number of shares available for
issue under the New DSFH Share Option
scheme is 3,195,751 shares, representing
1% of the total number of issued shares of
DSFH as at the date of this Report of the
Directors.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of
shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to be
issued to him/her under all share options
granted to him/her in the 12-month
period up to and including the offer date
of relevant share options, exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at such date. Any grant
of further share options above the limit
shall be subject to the provisions of the
DSFH Share Option Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to
time.

(5) Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of
DSFH, and is specified when related share
options are granted. Shares under the
share options must be taken up within 10
years from the date of grant.
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(6)

Vesting period

The vesting period for options is
determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH, and is specified when
related share options are granted.

Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HK$1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted

The exercise price of option is concluded
by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of
DSFH on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03E
of the Listing Rules and is determined as
no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of DSFH’s shares traded
on the SEHK for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life

The Old DSFH Share Option Scheme was
terminated on 31 May 2024.

The New DSFH Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from 31 May 2024
and expiring at the close of 30 May 2034.

1.

The number of the share options available
for grant under the Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2024 was 15,978,755.

No share options had been granted under the
New DSFH Share Option Scheme from the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2024. The
number of share options available for grant
under the New DSFH Share Option Scheme
was as at 31 December 2024 was 3,195,751.

Share award scheme

DSFH has adopted a share award scheme (the
“DSFH Share Award Scheme”) on 9 September
2021, which was updated and amended on
30 March 2022 and further amended and
restated on 31 May 2024.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSFH Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1) Purpose

To recognize the contribution or value
of certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
DSFH group.

(2) Participants

The participants include any employee
of the DSFH group, Director of DSFH
or director of a subsidiary of DSFH and
any person to whom a grant of awards
serves as an inducement to enter into
employment contract to become employee
of the DSFH group.
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(3)

Total number of shares available for grant
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors

The total number of shares that may be
granted shall not in aggregate exceed
28,761,759 shares (the “DSFH Award
Shares”), representing 9% of the total
number of issued shares of DSFH as at the
date of this Report of the Directors. Under
the scheme, the trustee may acquire
issued shares on-market and/or subscribe
new shares from DSFH and hold the
DSFH Award Shares on trust for selected
participants during the trust period.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the DSFH Award
Shares granted to each participant shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of
issued shares of DSFH as at the date of
grant. Any grant of further DSFH Award
Shares above the limit shall be subject
to the provisions of the DSFH Share
Award Scheme and the Listing Rules as
amended from time to time.

Vesting period

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board of
DSFH or its delegate, and are specified
in the award letter when related share
awards are granted.

(6)

Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid

Nil.

Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded

Nil.

Remaining life

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from

9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

The number of share awards available for
grant under the DSFH Share Award Scheme as
at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 was
8,376,938 and 26,406,387 respectively.
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Particulars of share awards granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme and information that is required to be
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:

Number of DSFH Award Shares

Date of Unvested Granted Vested Lapsed Unvested Vesting
grant asat during during during asat period
Grantees (D/M}Y) 01/01/2024 2024 20240 2024 31/12/2024 (D/M)Y)
Directors
David Shou-Yeh Wong 03/04/2023 173,460 - 57,820 - 115,640 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026%
03/04/2024 - 236,541 - - 236,541 03/04/2024 -
03/04/2027%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 03/04/2023 39,771 - 13,257 - 26,514 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026
03/04/2024 - 55,709 - - 55,709 03/04/2024 -
03/04/2027"
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 03/04/2023 107,063 - 35,687 - 71,376 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026%
03/04/2024 - 61,795 - - 61,795 03/04/2024 -
03/04/2027%
Nicholas John Mayhew 06/12/2022 58,160 - 14,540 - 43,620 06/12/2022 -
06/12/2027
03/04/2023 125,286 - 41,762 - 83,524 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026
03/04/2024 - 189,049 - - 189,049 03/04/2024 -
03/04/2027"
Aggregate of other employees 06/12/2022 241,360 - 60,220 480 180,660 06/12/2022 -
06/12/2027%
03/04/2023 403,202 - 134,39 - 268,806 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026
03/04/2024 - 589,696 - - 589,696 03/04/2024 -
03/04/2027"
Notes:
(1) Share awards granted on 6 December 2022 are vested in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the

(2)

date of grant.

Share awards granted on 3 April 2023 and 3 April 2024 are vested in 3 tranches between the first and third anniversaries
from the date of grant.

Share awards were granted to certain eligible employees of DSFH Group, who are directors or employees of DSFH or any
other member of the DSFH group. Eligible employees also include former employees of DSFH.

On 3 April 2024, DSFH granted a total of 1,132,790 DSFH award shares. The closing price of the shares of DSFH on 2 April
2024 (being the business day immediately before 3 April 2024 on which the DSFH award shares were granted) was HK$19.60
per share. The award shares granted are satisfied by existing issued shares.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of DSFH immediately before the date on which the DSFH award shares
were vested during the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$20.78.

No DSFH Award Shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of the computation of the fair value of awards at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted
are shown in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award schemes as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company during the year or subsisted
at the end of the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2024, the following are the persons, other than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company
whose interests are disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.

Percentage of
Number of interests in
shares held/ the total
Interests number of
Name Capacity inshares issued shares
Christine Yen Wong Deemed interests by virtue of her spouse 1,045,626,955 @ 74.38%
having a notifiable interest
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Beneficial interests 1,045,461,643 74.37%
Limited (“DSFH”)
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong Beneficial interests and deemed interests in 1,048,200,188 @ 74.57%
shares indirectly held by trustee
HSBC International Trustee Trustee and corporate interests 1,045,461,643 9 74.37%

Limited (“HSBCIT”)
Notes:

(1)  Such shares represented the deemed interests of Christine Yen Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong, being
a substantial shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the relevant share capital of the Company
and interests in the Company held through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling interest. Christine
Yen Wong was taken to have a duty of disclosure in respect of the deemed interests in the Company. These interests
comprised the same interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”
above.

(2) The interests comprised of (a) interests in 1,038,545 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) deemed interests in 1,700,000
notional underlying shares of the Company relating to the cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by the
Company; and (c) deemed interests pursuant to section 322 of the SFO in 1,045,461,643 shares of the Company held by
DSFH and HSBCIT through a family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

(3) Such shares represented DSFH’s corporate interests in the Company indirectly held by HSBCIT in trust for a family
discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor. HSBCIT was taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation
to the relevant shares of the Company held through companies of which it has control. The relevant shares have been
included in the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the heading “Interests of Directors and
Chief Executive” above.

(4) The percentage of interests was calculated with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
31 December 2024.

(5) Allthe interests stated above represented long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the shares

and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2024, calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to
HK$688,436,000 (2023: HK$616,724,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been set out
in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
derived less than 30% of interest income and other
operating income from its 5 largest customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last 5 years are included in the section
headed “Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING
THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company has
not changed its auditors in the preceding 3 years.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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MEBARES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REE2024F12831H IEF E KRB E202545 The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

38318 B ARBZzAFEEETEREEH subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December

) LR BERRBEI 2B AR EEEN 2024 and up to 31 March 2025, being the date of the Report of the

BRI 2URWT Directors of Company for the year, are set out below:

(I R FHES) (in alphabetical order)

BREEFS CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

[y CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

PRE 5 CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick*

PRAEER CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

CHES CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

EBIAH CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

REE CHEUNG Kin-Sang (Alex CHEUNG)

BER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

JEJKRR FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

B2 HO Ka-Yeung Eric

R E L Paul Michael KENNEDY

2REZ LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

N LAU Pak-Hung

R LEE Wing Shum (Sam LEE)

2R LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

FRER LI Richard Tsung-Yung

BoiRE MA Yuen-Lai Barbara

BEZ MAQ Chi-Dor (Johnny MAO)

St Nicholas John MAYHEW

*£hE Blair Chilton PICKERELL

EEH POON Clement

SE B[ SZE Tsai-To Robert

BRI TAM Wai-Hung David

THZE WANG Pak-Ling Gary

(ELEIES Paul Franz WINKELMANN

=iEE WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

WONG Edmond* WONG Edmond*

=R WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

FEE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

FrE WONG Shou-Yeh David

FraE WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

EHL YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RizE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

RIER YUEN Yiu-Leung (Bacon YUEN)

* EREMESABEERASARANBARE *  Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
EWB- subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
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AR e W AR
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EZE20245F 1231 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

PEE
LGB T TS HK$’000 Note 2024 2023
FEUWA Interest income 7 12,147,056 11,485,605
MBS H Interest expense 7 (6,858,939) (6,670,170)
EANEWA Net interest income 5,288,117 4,815,435
RFFE MAREUWA Fee and commission income 8 1,559,336 1,078,967
RFERAEZH Fee and commission expense 8 (230,727) (212,165)
IR ERAZEA Net fee and commission income 1,328,609 866,802
R WA Net trading income 9 258,933 164,843
HAnZEIRA Other operating income 10 59,264 69,004
EEKRA Operating income 6,934,923 5,916,084
EHESH Operating expenses 11 (3,340,050) (3,168,897)
MR ER ISR Z EERF Operating profit before impairment losses 3,594,873 2,747,187
EERERE Credit impairment losses 14 (1,791,361) (731,311)
NBFRETREREEEE Operating profit before gains and losses on
Z Wk K B8 AT 2 g iR T certain investments and fixed assets 1,803,512 2,015,876
HETEAAEMBETEEEZ Net (loss)/gain on disposal of premises and other
S (5518) Wik fixed assets (1,758) 2,828
KREME N EREZ FHEIE Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment
properties (101,882) (41,087)
HELUSERAATIERPISRIEEY Net gain on disposal of financial assets at amortised
U cost 760 -
HEUAFEFTEEHEHFTA Net loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
Hith2EWEMNERMEEZFEIE  through other comprehensive income (103) -
FEMLBE AR 2 45 Share of results of an associate 677,425 688,957
NI E 2 R ERIE Impairment loss on the investment in an associate 24 (15,715) (552,000)
i == YN=IEg=d ot Loss on deemed disposal of investment in an
associate (1) (10)
FE(LHEEIEHIEIE 2 & Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,131 27,014
FRIR A F Profit before taxation 2,395,369 2,141,578
I Taxation 15 (335,022) (281,272)
EATIRREGFEERF Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of
the Company 2,060,347 1,860,306
SRR Earnings per share
B Basic 17 HK$1.47 HK$1.32
5 Diluted 17 HK$1.37 HK$1.23
F123EEFIBEZMEFI ARG ST R The notes on pages 123 to 323 are an integral part of these
Rz—8 Do consolidated financial statements.
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IITDQEL'&E;E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

£ 2024412531 H 1L E For the year ended 31 December 2024

LGB T T8 HK$’000 2024 2023
FEHF Profit for the year 2,060,347 1,860,306
FEHMZERE Other comprehensive income for the year
AREEEMNEEFRSNEIRNIER Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated income
statement:
éﬁ%&zﬁ Investments in securities
MATEstEEHES St AR MEE Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair value
WEMER TR AT EEEFEE through other comprehensive income 177,285 298,270
B ER s ERENBHE AT Z Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
Hit2mia= accounted for using the equity method 193,649 251,558
MATEstEEHES St AR MEE Net change in allowance for expected credit losses of debt
Wi EH TR FEREEEE instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
RSP income 26,907 33,612
AEEERNERERAWERIR Net loss realised and transferred to consolidated income
statement upon:
-HEMR T ESEREEHEA - Disposal of debt instruments at fair value through
ET’@EE”& s EBH TR other comprehensive income 103 -
BRA LI IEIERRIA Deferred income tax related to the above (29,387) (43,181)
368,557 540,259
MEEIMEEI TS IRRNERERE Exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities (290,718) (156,209)
FEEMPEEAEWNEIRINIER ! Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated income
statement:
7E Premises
REENMDETEAREME S FH Reserves arising from reclassification of premises to
investment properties 45,533 -
HERE Investments in securities
Bl m g A RENBE AR Z Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an
Hthems (518 associate accounted for using the equity method 2,759 (2,634)
MATErERBHEFH T ARMEE Net change in fair value of equity instruments
W E'th*’\&FIEZ@$T§&@J B at fair value through other comprehensive income (156,891) 1,086,307
BRA_ L > EIERRIE Deferred income tax related to the above 8,616 (65,481)

(99,983) 1,018,192

ORIBR 2 EEEMEE (§518) /W  Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (22,144) 1,402,242
NppMIER 2 FEZmIRELEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,038,203 3,262,548
F123BEFIBE LML ARGEMHBR The notes on pages 123 to 323 are an integral part of these
TRz—E Do consolidated financial statements.
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AR R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20245128 31H As at 31 December 2024

PoEE
LB TS HKS 000 Note 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
IR KR TRVAS R Cash and balances with banks 18 14,131,725 16,395,770
EIRTTIZE 128 B A EEARER Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 5,409,555 3,151,814

FER S RERNEES Trading securities 19 2,006,353 1,739,841
UrEstEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through

EBalNSHEE profit or loss 19 4,272 8,216
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 20 4,083,731 3,566,149
FEERREMEER Advances and other accounts 21 143,048,675 149,113,954
UrEstEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through other

HittemWmWEmMEE comprehensive income 22 44,808,705 40,525,842
DUBER AT BRI SR E E Financial assets at amortised cost 23 35,522,368 39,372,378
R NEIRE Investment in an associate 24 2,532,810 2,215,131
HEEFERIEE Investments in jointly controlled entities 25 138,097 129,946
mE Goodwill 27 713,451 713,451
mEEE Intangible assets 27 69,715 69,715
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 28 3,001,328 2,813,187
EYE Investment properties 29 708,021 761,604
BIERfRIE S & Current income tax assets 793 1,273
RIEIRIEE B Deferred income tax assets 35 159,482 165,823
BES Total assets 256,339,081 260,744,094
=R LIABILITIES
tRITIERR Deposits from banks 1,936,236 2,485,044
TTESMTA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,839,915 1,279,419
BIERZBERNER Trading liabilities 31 498,069 99,853
BREXR Deposits from customers 32 201,568,051 207,233,698
BEITEE Certificates of deposit issued 33 4,294,996 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes 34 4,146,914 5,916,645
HAthAR B KRR Other accounts and accruals 7,793,432 8,020,654
BIERRRIE (& Current income tax liabilities 343,835 287,611
FIERIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 94,261 103,699
afEsst Total liabilities 222,515,709 227,854,651
S EQUITY
RATIRRELER Equity attributable to the Company’s

shareholders

[N Share capital 38 6,894,438 6,894,438
HAith#E (B1EREERF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 39 26,617,518 25,683,589
KRREE Shareholders’ funds 33,511,956 32,578,027
FBEIMERETR Additional equity instruments 40 311,416 311,416
#mast Total equity 33,823,372 32,889,443
EEkaES Total equity and liabilities 256,339,081 260,744,094

EEE2025F3H31H A RIS R AE o

FRZE =HEHE

EF B HEAK
$123E FFE323B 2 MisEhA

wZ—abe

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

March 2025.
Gary Pak-Ling Wang Hon-Hing Wong
Director Managing Director
iR MR The notes on pages 123 to 323 are an integral part of these
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

£ 2024412531 H 1L E For the year ended 31 December 2024

LRl HKS 000

024F151A%8 Balance at 1 January 2024
FERH Profit for the year

FEHMZAESE Other comprehensive loss for the year

TR IERERRR ERTDELAT(ERE Reclassification of net change in fair value of
BEZFH AL 2EREN equity instruments at fair value through other
B TEZATEEH R comprehensive income upon derecognition

BRI AETERN 2 HE Transfer of share-based payment reserve

BIMERIE T B2 RATE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments

WBERARE 2023 final dividend

WAFRIARE 2024 interim dividend

24F0AANA%ER Balance at 31 December 2024
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DR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZE20245F 1231 H1EEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

KRBRERESER
Attributable to the shareholders b
of the Company e
e HitktE REBH Additional BRGE
Share Other Retained equity Total
LB TSR HKS 000 capital reserves earnings instruments equity
WBEIRIRLE Balance at 1 January 2023 6,894,438 358,111 22,661,183 311416 30,225,148
FERT Profit for the year - - 1,860,306 - 1,860,306
FEEMEZERE Other comprehensive income for the year - 1,402,042 - - 1,402,242
DR (T R e AR Provision for equity-settled share-based
Rz e compensation - 55 - B 5
EMERM TR ZIKERE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - (36,007) - (36,007)
WRERERE 2022 final dividend - (407,668) - (407,668)
WBFEHRE 2023 interim dividend - - (154,633) - (154,633)
NBFRABLEES Balance at 31 December 2023 6,894,438 1,760,408 23923,181 311,416 32,889,443
$B123EEE323B WS RS BRET —F The notes on pages 123 to 323 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
f3o statements.
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mERETREGER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

£ 2024412531 H 1L E For the year ended 31 December 2024

PEE

LGB T TS HK$’000 Note 2024 2023
REFHZHRETRE Cash flows from operating activities
K& EBPTRIRS R4 Net cash used in operating activities 41(a) (2,234,274) (1,144,937)
KREEHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BA—ENEAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (184,386) -
BERBMENEMEEEE Purchase of investment properties and other fixed

assets (352,660) (275,081)
HETEREMETEEEMSNIE  Proceeds from disposal of premises and other fixed

assets 1,041 17,813
BUWHEIEFI SRS/ ATPRE  Dividend received from jointly controlled entities and

associate 312,538 218,377
S EEFTRIRERER Net cash used in investing activities (223,467) (38,891)
RMEEFBZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BIEBEERS Repayment of subordinated notes 41(c) (1,759,714) -
BITRERR Issue of subordinated notes 41(c) = 1,939,796
HEaRZ I Payment of lease liabilities 41(c) (140,677) (148,553)
RESMER T B 2 KEERIE Distribution payment on additional equity

instrument (35,903) (36,007)
T RHBEEHEZHE Interest paid on subordinated notes 41(c) (384,929) (309,761)
IRERNB 2 ZBRRE Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the Company (1,068,371) (562,301)
BYEES) FRA) /RAIRE$58 Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (3,389,594) 883,174
RERERREER RS Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,847,335) (300,654)
FYREMERREER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18,964,804 19,260,423
PEREE 2 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (181,621) 5,035
FEXRREREFRREIER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41(b) 12,935,848 18,964,804
F123EEFEIBEZMEFI ARG ST R The notes on pages 123 to 323 are an integral part of these
Rz—8 Do consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, financial
and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s
Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah
Sing Financial Centre, No.248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the reporting years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”, which is a collective term and includes
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.
Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the period the assumptions
change. Management believes that the underlying assumptions
are appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are several amendments to HKFRS that became
applicable with effect from 1 January 2024:

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- HKFRS 16 (Amendments) - Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

- HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- HK Interpretation 5 (Revised) - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

None of these has a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not mandatory
for 31 December 2024 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

(i) Amendments to HKAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025)

The HKICPA amended HKAS 21 to help entities determine
whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency, and which spot exchange to use when it is not.

The Group does not expect these amendments to have a
material impact on its operations or financial statements.

(ii) Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments - Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2026)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7 to provide guidance as to when certain
financial liabilities can be deemed settled when using
an electronic payment system, the amendments also
provide further clarifications regarding the classification
of financial assets that contain contractual terms that
change the timing and amount of contractual cash flows,
including those arising from environmental, social and
governance-related contingencies, and financial assets
with certain non-recourse features.

The Group does not expect these amendments to have a
material impact on its operations or financial statements.
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2. EXEHBEHE® 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations not
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yet adopted (continued)

(ili) HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2027)

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of financial
statements, introducing new requirements that will help
achieve comparability of the financial performance of
similar entities and provide more relevant information
and transparency to users. Its impacts on presentation
and disclosure are expected to be pervasive, in particular
those related to the statement of financial performance
and providing, management-defined performance
measures within the financial statements.

Management is currently assessing the detailed
implications of applying the new standard in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

REHEMB2024F 15 1HEERFNDREN There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective
2 EBUBREER NG ES RN AER from 1 January 2024 or not yet effective that would be expected to
BEAFE- have a material impact on the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Company. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in
an associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in
the consolidated income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity,
which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using equity method of accounting.
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year,
and the consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
income statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised
cost and fair value through other comprehensive income using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended
period of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period
the service is provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees
and points paid or received that are integral to the effective
interest rate, such as origination fees. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (assets that are credit-impaired
at initial recognition) the Group calculates the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate, which is calculated based on the amortised
cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and
incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in estimated
future cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the respective financial asset or financial
liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using
the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in
profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of
a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs
of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately
after initial recognition, an expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance
is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI which results
in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an
asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from
the transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises
the difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the
instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or realised
through settlement.
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

«  Fair value through profit or loss (including held for
trading);

«  Fairvalue through other comprehensive income; or

. Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the
definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective,
such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade
receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

«  the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
«  the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

«  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is calculated using the
effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That
is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the
contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale
of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets
are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are
classified as part of “other” business model and measured
at FVPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the
business model for a group of assets include past experience
on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed
and how managers are compensated. Securities held for
trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These
securities are classified in the “other” business model and
measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with
a basic lending arrangement). Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset
is classified and measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

135



136

2,

EAETHERE @

26 THMEEREE®

ETHEE @

) PEREHRZAE®
B TR @

FEBIGEEEZSEEZEBER
BERAEHNBEFRE -EMDE
BEF RN EERS ARG E - A
ZEEDIFEROR AR EEE -

#mt TA

Bt TREAUETARMMENEE
RAREEZTH IFEEENZE
EEE &rIERARGETABERE
RegFEm ez TR -BmMTRAZAEFE
EERREERARD

SR BRI EST R B ER B Hio]
MIEEZEm MR ER/UAFEFER
HEggst AHh2EW @i REEE
BIUA T ESEEHEH S AR
EFfERmIE TR HEMZERE AT
B2 W A ERR B2 E U m R K
HEeAgERnEENER (BERH
EE) cEREARZFREZOKRE
H 7 S BB 7k 2 1 M JeE e o s
BRI AR A E M A -

NAHastEBHEH AIBmrEn
MREZ Wm kBRI E SR GRS W
IRNZDFRZRAIET

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments
that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets.
Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair
value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on
disposal. Dividends, when representing a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included
in the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income
statement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(i) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising
from loans to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss allowance
for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

«  An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

«  Thetime value of money; and

« Reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at
amortised cost is presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts is recognised
as a provision as part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The
carrying amount of debt instruments measured at FVOCI is
their fair value. Their impairment allowance is recognised as
part of “Investment revaluation reserve”.,

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms
are substantially different to the original terms. The Group
does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

« If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

«  Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such
as a profit share/equity-based return that substantially
affects the risk profile of the loan.

«  Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower
is not in financial difficulty.

«  Significant change in the interest rate.
«  Changein the currency the loan is denominated in.

« Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
“new” asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition
for impairment calculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred. However, the Group also assesses
whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed
to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments.
Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in
profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.
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Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation
or modification does not result in derecognition, and the
Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based on
the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises
a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified
cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as “pass
through” transfers that result in derecognition if the Group:

«  Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

« Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

«  Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the
basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains
a subordinated residual interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the assets have been transferred, and the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, and the Group has retained control of the
transferred assets, the Group applies continuing involvement
approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount
of the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the
amortised cost of the rights and obligations retained by the
Group, if the transferred asset is measured at amortised cost;
or (b) equal to the fair value of the rights and obligations
retained by the Group when measured on a stand-alone basis,
if the transferred asset is measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

«  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading
booking) and other financial liabilities designated as
such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are presented partially in other comprehensive income
(the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability, which is determined as the amount that
is not attributable to changes in market conditions that
give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the
remaining amount of change in the fair value of the
liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the
gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk
of the liability are also presented in profit or loss;

+  Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or
when the continuing involvement approach applies.
When the transfer of financial asset did not qualify for
derecognition, a financial liability is recognised for the
consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent
periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liability; when continuing involvement
approach applies; and

«  Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

(i) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders
of debt instruments with substantially different terms, as
well as substantial modifications of the terms of existing
financial liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. The terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10% different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency
that the instrument is denominated in, changes in the
type of interest rate, new conversion features attached to
the instrument and change in covenants are also taken
into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or
loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification
is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred to adjust the carrying amount of the liability are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at the higher of:

«  The amount of the loss allowance; and

+  The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the
amount of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any
commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or
that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts
that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the
Group cannot separately identify the expected credit losses
on the undrawn commitment component from those on the
loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for
the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses
exceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when
fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses
the entire contract as described in the financial assets section
above for classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise,
the embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives
when:

«  Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract;

« A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

+  The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement unless the Group chooses to designate the
hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the
relationship between hedged items and hedging instruments, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
(a) Fairvalue hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
consolidated income statement under “Net trading income -
Net gain/(loss) arising from financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge”, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item
for which the effective interest method is used is amortised
to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge
relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
or is terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due
to repayment of the hedged item, the unamortised carrying
value adjustment (the difference between the carrying value
of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value
at which it would have been carried had the hedge never
existed) to the hedged item is amortised to the income
statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the
effective interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised carrying value adjustment is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) from
derivatives entered into for trading purpose”. For derivatives
that are managed in conjunction with designated financial
assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising from
changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income - Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts
due to other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and
accruals, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements
to resell (“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances
to other banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference
between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and
accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest
method. Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the
consolidated financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in
which case the purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or
loss included in trading income. The obligation to return them is
recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are
not derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment
allowances made. In the case of delinquent loans on which
collateral assets have been foreclosed and repossessed by the
Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court orders, and with
the legal title of the assets having been passed to the Group, such
loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for resale are
included in “Advances and other accounts - Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group of
persons that allocates resources to and assesses the performance
of the operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined
the Chief Executive and members of the Executive Committee
(“EC”) as its chief operating decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining
operating segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Mainland China and Macau
Banking, and Others.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the functional and presentation
currency of the Company and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the relevant entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in
the consolidated income statement are presented
net in the consolidated income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
other comprehensive income items are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within the
corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a
distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other
changes in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation difference on certain other non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in
the investment revaluation reserve in other comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition

of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
Over the estimated useful lives
generally between 3 and 10 years
or the unexpired terms of the
lease, whichever is shorter

- Furniture, fittings,
equipment and
motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations
are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the
International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment property
that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of premises and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination on which the
goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include trade names and intangible assets of
core deposits, contracts and customer relationships. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated
useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance
method.

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial
position exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax
is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and that are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income
tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they
are recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to
other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised
in the consolidated income statement upon the realisation of
relevant investments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of
exercise under the share-based compensation plans. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
credit or adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to consolidated income statement
in accordance with the terms of the vesting of the options over
time. When the options are exercised, the Company will issue
new shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable
amount from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the
“Share capital” account.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(ii) Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions
associated with the grants on grant date. The total expenses
is recognised over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant
date if the shares vest immediately, with a corresponding
credit to the “Shared-based compensation reserve” in the
shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the
vesting periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the
number of award shares that are expected ultimately vest
based on the vesting conditions at the end of each reporting
period. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative amount
recognised in prior years is charged or credited to share-
based compensation expenses in the current year, with a
corresponding adjustment to “Share-based compensation
reserve”,

Where award shares are acquired under the Share Award
Scheme from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of
cash dividends, the total consideration of the shares acquired
from the market (including any directly attributable costs) or
the value of shares received under the scrip dividend scheme
is presented as “Shares held for share award scheme” and
deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from
reinvesting cash dividends or received under the scrip
dividend scheme (dividend shares) are credited to “Shares
held for share award scheme”, with a corresponding decrease
in “Share-based compensation reserve” for the purchased
shares, and decrease in retained earnings for the dividend
shares.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are recognised when the
Group has a present or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

« variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date, if any

« amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

+  where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

« uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest

rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

+  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so

as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

«  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

« anyinitial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are
excluded from the consolidated financial statements, as they are
not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and
other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset
is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
Taking risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s
aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews
its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk
Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under
the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division (“GRD”) and
different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit is
responsible for the independent review of risk management and
the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking into account the overall business strategy
and direction, under which a robust Risk Appetite framework is
established to guide the strategic planning process and strengthen
the risk-return management. Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite
framework sets out the types and amount of risk that the Group
is willing to take in order to achieve its business plan. The Group’s
risk appetite metrics are composed of key indicators for measuring
capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is supplemented by a
set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits of the Group. In
order to ensure that business is conducted within our established
risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk appetite
limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis. In this
connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement that
covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility,
solvency, liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is
responsible for the ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the
Risk Appetite Statement and the regular reporting of the status to
the RMCC and the Board. Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk,

market risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and
floating rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive
interest margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide
range of assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by
consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer periods
at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all
claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through
its lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge
customers appropriate fees and commission, taking into
consideration credit risk and market conditions. Such exposures
involve not just on-balance sheet loans and advances, as the Group
also enters into guarantees and other commitments such as letters
of credit, performance bonds and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes
positions in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”)
instruments, including derivatives, to take advantage of short-
term market movements in equities and bonds and in currencies
and interest rates. The Board places trading limits on the level
of exposures that can be taken in relation to market positions.
Apart from specific hedging arrangements, foreign exchange
and interest rate exposures are normally offset by entering into
counterbalancing positions (including transactions with customers
or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives, thereby
controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed
rate assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part
of these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges,
and the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest
rates, hedge period and purpose are determined and documented
at the inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is
assessed at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed,
on an ongoing basis, based on actual experience and valuation.
Fair value hedge relationships that do not meet the effectiveness
test requirement of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect
from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.



3. HHRREE®
31 FERSRTESRK @

311 FFERBEEERHNWEAEEZITET
R

FEEERZ ATER

REER AN RIS L PR A R K 21T
ZEBBBKRFAZERRHBESMELZ
RFEEPEARHZTIRWNERZ
NEREEHAFENE RS BRRH W HE
B/ BT B 2 FMIF = BB R 2 E B &
B (EAREEHIER 2 R FERER
—) o

AERER PR AR D R EEBIFLH T
Hith@ kg (BIinEEER) - AEEERE
SERIEZMRARRBETZERARR
RAEZEREHRS  HATEREEEMR
BEMKNE - BN ERANRZESHEAME
BT aBNEHEFZATEES K
EFEMIERN B PR R E G - BEHH
AR SIS RIEZ FERRRERY
AEE R

AEBERAATEE TS EER T
HEZEERMEREESITFE AR
AHMEEEY HIRE AT TABERFEL
BRF - AEB LS ERARSFER
SERBETRB AP TAZFRIFNES
BE—H o AEEFLETEERE T TR
ZAHERSTREERE RRRAE -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
changes in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-
rate debt securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate.
Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to
specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-
floating interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt
securities held with terms that closely align with the critical terms
of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore
other risks, such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by
the Group. Interest rate risk to which the Group applies hedge
accounting arises from fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate
debt securities held, whose fair value fluctuates when benchmark
interest rates change. The Group hedges interest rate risk only to
the extent of benchmark interest rates because the changes in
fair value of an issued liability or a debt security are significantly
influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate. Hedge
accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the
Group determines whether an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument exists based on an
evaluation of the qualitative characteristics of these items and
the hedged risk that is supported by quantitative analysis. The
Group considers whether the critical terms of the hedged item and
hedging instrument closely align when assessing the presence of
an economic relationship. The Group evaluates whether the fair
value of the hedged item and the hedging instrument respond
similarly to similar risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount
of the fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional
amount of the interest rate swap designated as a hedging
instrument. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i) changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

(i) the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before
next fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark
rate of the interest rate swap;

(iii) changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

(iv) the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit
risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to
the change in interest rate; and

(v) differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.

31 December 2024

Risk category - interest rate risk
HKS000

WHhETZaE—F0E

i
TISEERE

ST BE— R EES
i
TISEERE

WHRAZUATHEFEEEES)
StAR MmN ERES

HE

FHIEEFZE

HIRTA 2 DUBERAR AT BREY
(EtEEEes

HE

FHIEEFZE

Hedge of issued liabilities -
certificates of deposit

Nominal amount

Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
Nominal amount
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Nominal amount

Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of debt securities held at
amortised cost

Nominal amount

Average fixed interest rate
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

ZIHAR

2023F12H31H 31 December 2023 Maturity

TFMUA FEUE 5ENE
B\ RREER] —F = R B Risk category - interest rate risk Less than ZE54E More than
LB TF TS HKS000 1year 1-5 years 5years
BT BB TR Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 2,437,126 - -
EHEE R Average fixed interest rate 4.74% - -
BT BB BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,757,543 4,296,215 -
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 5% 4.99% -
EHHFEZUAFESZ8EES  Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
FFAEMEEN SN ERES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 1,983,923 11,275,548 3,929,084
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 3.79% 3.59% 3.15%
SR 2 USRI A SIRRE Hedge of debt securities held at
1BE%E amortised cost

HE Nominal amount 2,356,655 10,700,221 8,137,928
THEEN = Average fixed interest rate 3.84% 3.47% 3.03%
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FrdE
Certificates of deposit

BEES
Subordinated notes
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Debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

FAZMESRATRNERES
Debt securities held at amortised cost

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows:
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.11 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2023
RETSEMHE
WRERADELER
il REEZ
PRt EABE EEERER 2 A TE
ki HHREREEE
BETHPEREER HEEE Accumulated amount
ZHHERZATE JATEES of fair value hedge
HAREAEeR Changein value adjustments remaining
Accumulated amount of air subject to hedge in the consolidated
value hedge adjustments onthe - =& gzt used for calculating statement of financial
hedgeditemincludedin g 4%y3Em > 18R hedge position for any
kafE the carrying amount ofthe | jne ftem in the consolidated ineffectiveness hedged items that
Carrying amount hedged item statement of financial for 2023 have ceased to be
LB TSR BE =45 BE &f&  positionin which the hedged 5t () adjusted for hedging
HKS 000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  item is included Note (a) gains and losses
BHE - 248028 - (9,008) BEITNEE (54,023) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit issued
#IBEH - 5916645 - (137,113) BEEH (167,058) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
RBZURTEBEEESHA 16,335,053 - (924,665) - MATEEAHET 350,969 -
HitheEWGERERES StARM2ERER
Debt securities held at fair value tHEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at fair
income value through other
comprehensive income
REZUBSNAT IR ERES 19,689,607 - (1505,197) - DESRATIRNEHEE 433629 -

Debt securities held at amortised cost

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Financial assets at amortised
cost



3. HEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 FERESRIT AL @ 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

311 FFIERPE EERH N EHEIEZ iTET 3.11Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
He® accounting (Continued)

RTEE @ Fair value hedges (Continued)

BRAEE AP T AZIEE RE ANz & The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments
BT - and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

BB TS
HKS000

HRER
Interest raterisk

FEBI-HeaE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of certificates of deposit

filES=t Ry
Interest rate swaps - hedge of subordinated notes

- S Z AT E
SERREE AR MEE
WEBERES

Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities
held at fair value through other
comprehensive income

MR- HAE 2 R

AT ERES
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities
held at amortised cost
5 Note:
() ERNEEANERINSEATEE PEANEEE (@) The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
AEHAEERFEANBEEH REHEY category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in value
HATANAFEETMERZER. of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the change in

fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

3.11 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments

and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)

2023
)i
2023
By
20T EED
REMBRRER Change in fair
AEHHTAEZEE  valveusedfor HESRUWEIR
Line item in the calculating  ZEHEM
consolidated hedge  Ineffectiveness WzIEAEE
e statement of financial ~ ineffectiveness  recognisedin ¥k ZIER
HE Carrying amount position where the for2023 profit/(loss) ~Line item in profit or
LOEEFlid)n Nominal BE BfE hedginginstrumentis () 55 (B)  loss that includes hedge
HKS 000 amount Assets Liabilities  included Note (a) Note (a)  ineffectiveness
=R
Interest rate risk
b EE 2437,126 1,362 1055% fTE&MIA 54,486 463 BATEHANERSR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of certificates of deposit Derivatives financial TEZ3M5/ (BB
instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject
to fair value hedge
et S EES 6,053,758 50,159 188980 fT4&RTIA 169,006 1948 AT EH AN
Interest rate swaps - hedge of subordinated notes Derivatives financial I8Z%hE/ (B8
instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject
to fair value hedge
HEie S-SR ATE 17,188,555 932,544 71950 {TESMIA (351,041) (12) BATESPIEESR
SEEEEHARMEE Derivatives financial IRZ3WE/ (BB
W BB instruments Net gainy/loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities financial instruments subject
held at fair value through other to fair value hedge
comprehensive income
ESEEiEER ST PG 21,194,804 1,519,696 14630 fTEEMIA (433,746) (117) BATEHPER SR
PRAGERAERSE Derivatives financial TEZ3M%E/ (BB
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
held at amortised cost financial instruments subject

170
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to fair value hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group.
These obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment
activities, and trading of financial instruments (including
derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
(“CMC”) and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”)
are the committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses
respectively. These committees have been chaired by the Chief
Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with certain Executive
Directors and senior business and credit officers as members.
Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management
based upon established guidelines and delegated authorities.
Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored
and controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The
Group’s internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits
to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures, and
regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The
credit grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and
loan specific information collected at the time of application (such
as disposable income, and level of collateral for retail exposures;
and financial indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate
exposures). For retail exposures, this is supplemented with internal
data such as delinquency status and external data such as credit
bureau scoring information on individual borrowers. In addition,
the scorecards enable expert judgement from the credit risk officer
to determine the final internal credit grade for each exposure. This
allows for considerations which may not be captured as part of the
other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of
portfolio held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending
of retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a
periodic basis by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a
Probability of Default (“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at
the borrower level. A relationship manager will incorporate
any updated or new information/credit assessments into the
credit grading scorecard on an ongoing basis. In addition, the
relationship manager will also update information about the
creditworthiness of the borrower every year from sources such as
borrower’s financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with
external default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD
master scales are calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit
grade.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Credit risk grading (Continued)

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury

and Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades
are used. These published grades are continuously monitored
and updated. The PDs associated with each grade are determined
based on default rates published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance
with HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking
information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets

are those financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets):

BRHEDEEZ EEERES)

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

- _
PEER 1 PEES 2 PEES 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FsamEsR (EEREBYiAME B ARG (EEREEE
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets)

12 {8 B HARITEARIE & 518
12-month expected credit losses

AERFAERRE S 2 T 2FE R
AR

3221 (FE R EAIEE I
ENEGUT—ENZELELFAEERSE
MITAERIMEERBAREN

- WESEEME E/EEEFREIIR

B B ERRASIFRERZ
B TRE—AR

- HEREAMES > EREMEERER
| REEADRESTR R—HRERL
R

- EEaRp# (AafER) 883X

. TEEEEMS BERAEEHRATE
BER

. EBEFAEREBLERZEMNEZ
WARRIRE - DR EMRZREH
ERAZEERENRENRZZHTFZE
HIPJREE -
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since initial recognition)

SHRFEHRE ERSIE SHITRHE B 1R
Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

+ when there is significant adverse external credit rating
transition for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment
grade to non-investment grade, or one notch downgrade for
bond with original non-investment grade at purchase

« when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from
one notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating,
for corporate portfolio

«  when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

+ when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for
corporate portfolio

+  when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify
the loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and
likelihood of individual counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a
portfolio level for all retail financial instruments held by the
Group. In relation to corporate financial instruments, where an
Early Warning list is used to monitor credit risk, this assessment is
performed at the counterparty level and on a monthly basis. The
criteria used to identify SICR are revised as when appropriate by
the respective credit departments of the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any
financial instruments in the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

3.2.2.2Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which
is aligned with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as
“Stage 3 financial assets”), when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

«  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
« abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

«  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise;

«  the borrower is bankrupt;

« it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to
the loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify
the loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and
likelihood of individual counterparties defaulting; and

+  the disappearance of an active market for a security because
of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue
for 90 days or more is considered credit-impaired.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime
basis depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial
recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
PD, exposures at default (“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”),
defined as follows:

+  The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and
credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M
PD”), or over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the
obligation.

«  EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months or over the
remaining lifetime. For example, for a revolving commitment,
the Group includes the current drawn balance plus any
further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

«  LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or
other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss
per unit of exposure at the time of default.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These
three components are multiplied together and adjusted for
the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or
defaulted in an earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for
each future month, which is then discounted back to the reporting
date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is
the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop
on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical
observed data and is assumed to be the same across all assets
within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by
historical analysis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile,
which varies by product type.

«  For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower
over a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted
by expected lifetimes of loans. Early repayment/refinance
assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

«  For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is
predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a
“credit conversion factor” on the undrawn limit which allows
for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time
of default.

«  For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.

The LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the
recoveries made post default. These include collateral type and
projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in
determining the PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for an
explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc.,
are regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.2.4Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both
incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for each
portfolio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD,
EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has
also been applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic
variables (the “base economic scenario”) are provided by some
economic research institutions and the in-house economic
research team on a regular basis and provide the best estimate
view of the economy over the next five years. For the economic
variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e. after the next five
years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last forecasting
period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on
the PD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these
variables have had historically on default rates and loss rates.

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the
change in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop
indicator. This determines whether the whole financial instrument
is in Stage 1 or Stage 2 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime
ECL should be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group
measures ECL as either a probability weighted 12-month ECL
(Stage 1), or a probability weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2). These
probability-weighted ECLs are determined by running each
scenario through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the
appropriate scenario weighting.

Although the US interest rates started to drop in 2024, the impact
on the local economy is yet to be observed as the pace and the
magnitude of the rate cut is still uncertain, especially under the
administration of the new US president. Meanwhile, in light of
the lingering shadow cast by the credit quality issue of Mainland
property developers, the Group has proactively managed related
problem loans over the past few years. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue to adopt appropriate assessment and risk
management procedures in the measurement of ECL. This includes
reviewing credit portfolios, considering different macroeconomic
forecast scenarios, assessing the reasonableness of ECL models
outputs, and evaluating the adequacy of ECL allowances.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)
ECL Model Refinements

In light of the rapidly changing retail banking landscape, the Group
has proactively reviewed its ECL models throughout the past year,
which led to a phased enhancement of specific model parameters,
allowing for a more effective representation of the asset quality
trends within the retail banking portfolio. Such enhancement will
facilitate a more resilient measurement of ECL provisions.

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking
economic indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of
macroeconomic factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices,
GDP growth rates, unemployment rates, and interest rates. The
selection of MEFs had gone through stringent statistical data tests
commonly adopted by the industry as well as expert judgements
to ensure that MEFs used in the ECL models are relevant to and
reflective of the risk profile of the Group’s credit portfolios while
satisfying required quantitative standards.

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based
on the underlying assumptions described in the below table.
In particular, the “base” scenario makes reference to a set of
macroeconomic forecasts obtained from different economic
research institutions and the Group’s economist. “Good” and
“bad” scenarios were developed by referencing the MEFs in the
“base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the upside
and the downside potential variations taking into account the
uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The
base scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic
forecasts which formulate a “base case” view of the
most probable future direction of relevant economic
variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference

to the “base” scenario and reflects positive

uncertainties by incorporating upside variations to

the “base” scenario macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference
to the “base” scenario and reflects negative
uncertainties by incorporating downside variations
to the “base” scenario macroeconomic forecasts.

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of credit
risk units put forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of
occurrence, enabling the Group to generate an overall market
outlook to determine the probability weightings assignment for
the different scenarios. These probability weights in turn drove the
forward-looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review
and reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided
his overall view on whether the collective forecasted outcome
is generally in line with his expectation. As a stringent measure,
the summarized outcomes will be submitted to the CMC for final
approval. These forward-looking PD and LGD are then used as
input parameters in the expected credit loss model.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are
set out as below.

SEHRIE T

Average of 15 HA R B

5-Year One-Year

120245 12H31H As at 31 December 2024 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking

EREEAMEEMREERE  Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate (%) Hi Base 2.4% 2.8%

B RiF Good 7.1% 7.5%

R Bad -2.3% -1.9%

BREEYE Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index  E:F# Base 2.9% -3.4%
EiesEs (5ot Change (%)

RiF Good 22.2% 15.9%

TR Bad -16.5% -22.7%

EEREX (BA) Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%) B Base 2.8% 2.8%*

RiF Good 2.3% 2.3%*

R Bad 4.7% 4.7%*

S HARI R T I98)

Average of L HRATRE

5-Year One-Year

1220235 12H31H As at 31 December 2023 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking

ERBEAMEEBMEIEREE  Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate (%) B Base 2.3% 2.5%

(B R Good 7.0% 7.2%

R Bad -2.4% 2.2%

EREEYE Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index £ Base 2.9% -5.0%

Brsis8Es (3ot Change (%) RF Good 22.2% 14.3%

R Bad -16.4% -24.3%

EEBREE (BN Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%) B Base 2.8% 2.8%"

Ri7 Good 2.3% 2.3%*

R Bad 4.7% 4.7%"

Y EEFIFHRIRENRARIFRZ BRI T

g_'fio

R EREETTRINE BBIEsT ERFATE
AR EMIER - IRER A2 RERRE
BRI —HREE IR E— S &5 BT
SESAEME AR NE DS > LU BREHT
1Bt B AT ARE TR -

*

These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
one year.

The above assumptions were the latest forecasts available at
the time the ECL calculation was performed. If after the period-
end date further changes in the economic condition that are not
consistent with the forecasts are observed, adjustments may be
made in the assignment of probability weightings accordingly to
reflect the latest situation. No such adjustment was made so far.
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EERAK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
322 TBHIEEEE = (B 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
324 A TRHRE BSERE Z AiE M EN @ 3.2.24Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
BT RE Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
DEFTEER  TRFI R RIKSEEEREDN The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario,
TIIREEUT ¢ “base”, “good” and “bad” are as follows:
20245 20235
12831H 12H331H
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Lt Base 70% 70%
RiF Good 10% 11%
R Bad 20% 19%
BRI R U E MG A _EIEIR 2 E AT Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated
E?’l“f%)‘gl% BIaNERIEEE > ILESBUA & within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,
Z2HE)BREABEARE Lz legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but
#l%ﬁ?ﬁ,ﬁﬁfa%Eﬁ?ﬁf?tﬂaﬁ%&?ﬁégg are not deemed to have a material impact and therefore no
EEGAMEEEGEE- adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is

reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

SORE T Sensitivity analysis
FERREERREENREIERIAOT The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are
as follows:

() EKEZRFBRESFERFELRBRFEDR () Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and

ANBITEHNERENNTE ; unsecured borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual
repayments;

(i) FELEIEER BERHHATEEN (i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
HRREENERFE , & performance and collateral valuations; and

(i) YEERIEEO BN EERIBRERIRE (iii) Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mitENERTE - mortgage collateral valuations.

182 KIMRITEEBIRAT 2024F F R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:

e Retail
FHEERBRNEE
ECL Impact
LOBIET 3T HKS 000 2024 2023
REX Unemployment rates +1% 19,205 14,037
1% (10,876) (8,487)
TEEEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,244) (4,145)
-0.5% 4,317 4221
Y BIRIEE Property price indices +5% (12,538) (5,729)
-5% 15,567 11,651
yae Corporate
FEHRfEEEBENEE
ECL Impact
LOBIET i HKS 000 2024 2023
REX Unemployment rates +1% 30,408 26,048
-1% (27,294) (23,225)
TEEEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (5,023) (4,953)
-0.5% 5,164 5,161
YEEIRISH Property price indices +5% (19,269) (9,044)
-5% 23,861 12,005
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and
control concentration risk with respect to individual borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits
by borrower or counterparty group, industry or country are in
place and their exposures are monitored and reported to credit
committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size
of the overall credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit.
Country limits are also set up with reference to the sovereign credit
rating from international credit rating agencies. All these limits aim
to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will
obtain collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
individual financial institution counterparty, including valuation
limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty.
The acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are
established within the credit policies, as are the respective
margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation establishes
the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any
collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess
the necessity to withdraw the credit line in cases where the
credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions
are based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,
cashflow position and ability to repay.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

(a) Loansand advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

. Mortgages over properties;

«  Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

+  Charges over financial instruments such as debt
securities and equities;

«  Charges over deposits; and
«  Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower
as soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant
individual loans and advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are
managed as part of the credit risk control and monitoring
process in respect of the counterparty including credit
controls such as setting individual limit for valuation risk,
daily settlement limits and performing periodic credit
assessment. Moreover, the Group requires derivative
contract counterparties to enter into International Swaps
and Derivatives Association Agreement or analogous master
agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice
of close-out netting arrangement in the event of default or
early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when
it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing
enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is
foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of
such assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2024
was HK$1,036 million (2023: HK$1,160 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure
of financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount
of financial assets below also represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024
LESF AT HKS 000
RGN Balance and placements with banks
—PEE - Stagel
—BER - Stage2
—f&E3 - Stage3
WATEEE RS Debt instruments at fair value through other
Htr2ERENEE IR comprehensive income
—[BEL - Stagel
—f&E - Stage2
—[BE3 - Stage3
DA ASRRVER LA Debt instruments at amortised cost
—[BEL - Stagel
—f&E - Stage2
—[BE3 - Stage3
BRETRBT Loans and advances to customers
—[BEL - Stagel
—f&E - Stage2
—[BE3 - Stage3
Z555K Trade bills
—[REL - Stagel
—f&E - Stage2
—[BE3 - Stage3
fEsHFI EREMIRE Accrued interest and other accounts
—[BEL - Stagel
—f&E - Stage2
—[BE3 - Stage3

MR AR RUHER

—f&E1 - Stagel

—fBE2 - Stage2

—PEE3 - Stage3
&z Total

Loan and other commitments,
and financial guarantees

BT BERE B RURATE
stE BHEF AH 2 EWmES
TEZZBRTRRNREBEREETFR
B EERNTREERE

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

188

2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023
REE/2EEH
Gross carrying/notional amount BHES
BRBE  RRIUT BRER
% Special  Sub-standard =H ECL e o
LEB T HKS 000 Pass mention o below Total allowance Net
RITNEAERRER Balance and placements with banks 19,553,118 - - 19553118 553 19,547,584
izl - Stagel 19,553,118 - - 19553118 553 19,547,584
—f&E - Stage2 - - - - - -
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
WATEEEEZHHA Debt instruments at fair value through other

HEt2ElEnERIA comprehensiveincome 40,071,584 - 78113 40,149,697 81,88 40,067,811
Al - Stagel 40,071,584 - - 40,071,584 335 40,037,228
—fBER - Stage2 - - - - - -
—[EHE3 - Stage3 - - 78,113 78,113 47530 30,583
DM AT IR EH A Debt instruments at amortised cost 39,413,306 - - 39413306 40928 39372378
Al - Stagel 39,413,306 - - 39413306 40928 39372378
—fBER - Stage2 - - - - - -
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
RRETREN Loans and advances to customers 138,418,175 1,851,740 2779561 143,049,476 1,11325% 141,936,220
Al - Stagel 128,604,667 - - 128,604,667 364345 128240322
2] - Stage2 9,813,508 1,851,740 - 11665248 26365 11,401,592
—[EHE3 - Stage3 - - 2,779,561 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306
EE Trade bills 2,060,317 - - 2,060,317 2,981 2,057,336
Al - Stagel 2,060,143 - - 2,060,143 2,981 2,057,162
) - Stage2 174 - - 174 - 174
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
[EH M EREMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,052,893 20,487 67,933 5,141,313 20,915 5,120,398
Al - Stagel 5,022,715 - - 5,022,715 6,979 5,015,736
2] - Stage2 30,178 20,487 - 50,665 2,907 47,758
—[EHE3 - Stage3 - - 67,933 67,933 11,029 56,904

EREMER RIKER Loan and other commitments, and and financial
guarantees 68,765,937 6,550 - B8 TT487 68318 68,704,169
—PEEL - Stagel 66,993,660 - - 66,993,660 65861 66,927,799
5] - Stage? N 6,550 - 1,778,827 2457 1,776,370
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
Bt Total 313,335,330 1,878,777 2925607 318,139,714 1333818 316,805,8%
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325

HHERAREIE @

EERE @)
K AFFEZ R R 1= B1E 7 51
ZREIERERE (@)

(1) EEREMLINEREE @
EEFRARE DT ¢
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=

F1ERNER B ER AR BT AER
HE#UE30K A ©

S4B MFRIRE — R E S EREEE
EIE31FE90K °

SE3AR TR AR T — R E FE AR
H 8 1E907K ©
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FIERNER) B3 TERREERETR
AP ZBIEBMR  ARMERAIRE
SEREN REE A EHTEF S A/
K2 BENTAEEE

B8 FRE B AEENEE
FEHR AR P 2 FB1088 > ARMERALE
IR REFEEFIEERRE R
16° QIR e AEEIEREEERX

FEHEFRBFAUT I BEFERBRNEE
FETR AP Z BUEFIMR > AREWN
ANERBERESERREZ R 5T
PIREEBIRE B A EERIAAR AT
K/ HFBEEZER XNHHFZER
CFERPIA B S F RS SRR
o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or

other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans for which
borrowers are current in meeting commitments and for which
the full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans with
which borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may
lead to credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan
quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to
13 of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents
loans in which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness
that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full
is improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest; or loans that are considered
uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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3. HBEEREE®
3.2 EERK @

325 KEIAFFBEZ B Hm AR MISEIe 75
ZREIFEELEE )

(1) ZEEREMLNEHEE @
HE
F1ERI TER) B3N EBEEFT 4R #BB-

B EZ RSB FHIER

HAER HERIRDE) B S NBMEE TR
B+EB-Z 3257 B FBYEE °

SB3ER T RR U T I B ZNEHEETR
ACCH LT 2 R ZEH FHIRE R

2) BEAFRENEHEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

Treasury

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with
internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

REE
Gross carrying amount

LGB TSR HKS 000 2024 2023
FERZ ARNEE Trading assets

—f&#E - Debt securities 2,006,353 1,739,841

—1ETHR - Derivatives 1,800,047 1,062,388
HHTETH Hedging derivatives 2,283,684 2,503,761
MATEsrEBHES) Financial assets at fair value

FFABmNEMEE through profit or loss

—KEE® - Investment funds 4,272 8,216
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3. HBREREE®
3.2 EERK @

325 KEIAFFBEZBHm AR MISEIe 75
ZREIFEEEE )

AEEZ EERRTSE FIIFNLIFE—S
SR
. BETZRADEZRIBENT AR

O = [HrS .
mZEE;

. EEREZERERKRBRLELEDR
T BTN AAEERY3.21% (20234F © 1.94%) 5 2

. ERESFKRHEMESKRET8% (2023
51 74%) FR/VEAEERR

326 BRIRB

ERET BB

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further

assessed with reference to the following:

+  Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

+  Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 3.21% (2023: 1.94%) of the total loans and
advances to customers; and

o 80% (2023: 74%) of the investments in debt securities and
other bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

LOBIET 3T HKS000 2024 2023
BRI BR4EER Gross loans and advances 138,374,285 143,049,476
0BR © RBEZEBEEER Less: total impairment allowances (1,532,345) (1,113,256)
FEE Net 136,841,940 141,936,220
EERBEZEREBR Credit-impaired loans and advances 4,437,683 2,779,561
OB © BEER3R B ZE Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (872,989) (485,255)
FEE Net 3,564,694 2,294,306
FRERRAFE Fair value of collateral held * 3,620,776 1,707,443

EEREEMRBREEAERKR
BRHBEEE DL

* BHERAFEDNRBEERRTERERKE
B MEBPREEREE -

Credit-impaired loans and advances
as a % of total loans and advances
to customers 3.21% 1.94%

*

Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. HMBEEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 EERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.26 BRI RBE () 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRIITIEEERETARARR 2 REEHED The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance
ML ERREBRZ Aot as a percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad
internal rating classes.

2023

BEERE

{HERERER

Epai

EREE Impairment
BtE  allowance as

Loans and a % of loan

advances balance

% %

EEhll Class

1—IE8 1-pass 9.8 0.3
2—45RIREE 2-special mention 1.3 10.0
3—ARTULT 3-sub-standard or below 1.9 17.5
100.0 0.8
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3. HHRREE® 3.
32 EERKR®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
3.2.6 BRI REZ7 (4

() HEBMBHRSEUNBIRFEE
HEZERERKRER

EEBEEMRBMRZ B A EEFT

RERFRZABRRR AT ERER D

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

WU collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
FRIERS
AR
R 4EEE REZERE FEREE Fair value
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 Gross Impairment Netcarrying of collateral
LB F o5 HKS000 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—fERF* - Credit cards 15,277 13,196 2,081 =
—HRER - Mortgages 450,745 130,758 319,987 395,854
—EHfh - Others 427,012 150,908 276,104 40,771
hEER Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER - Term loans 3,081,262 463,470 2,617,792 2,788,685
—B/ER - Mortgages 177,945 10,184 167,761 175,788
—B5mE ~ Trade finance 157,439 33,944 123,495 117,308
—HAfth —Others 128,003 70,529 57,474 102,370
EEREZET4UEEE  Total credit-impaired loans 4,437,683 872,989 3,564,694 3,620,776
FEERD
AR
R\ ARRE THEZERE FIREE Fair value
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Gross Impairment  Net carrying of collateral
LGB T o3 HKS000 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—(EA~ - Credit cards 13,055 11,265 1,790 =
—ZIBER - Mortgages 336,922 60,443 276,479 315,248
—Efh - Others 295,157 118,753 176,404 51,617
BEEW: Loans to corporate entities:
—HHER - Term loans 1,834,850 195,196 1,639,654 1,073,352
—ZBER - Mortgages 49,254 12,842 36,412 47,724
—B5mME - Trade finance 123,826 30,069 93,757 101,265
—Efh - Others 126,497 56,687 69,810 118,237
EEHEZERMEEE  Total credit-impaired loans 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306 1,707,443
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3. HHBRKREE®

3.2 EERK @
3.2.6 BFREZ# 45)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(2) BERsEA U L2 B RER

() BHIRIEEEAREE

(b) Loansand advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i)  Gross amount of overdue loans

194

2024 2023
BHARERERE BHEAREE
BR4E%E B4z
Gross Gross
amount of {h4E%E amount (H42%E
overdue Bt of overdue Bkt
LGBIEF TS HKS 000 loans % of total loans % of total
FEERRPERK Gross loans and advances to customers
HTRARRE AR which have been overdue for:
—3EBULZE6ES - sixmonths or less but over three months - 2,104,322 1.52 344,615 0.24
—6EA MU EE15 - one year or less but over six months 778,884 0.56 664,811 0.46
—1FEM E - over one year 926,024 0.67 1,158,163 0.81
3,809,230 2.75 2,167,589 151
(i) EEIRERESN KRB ZRE (ii)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
BERATAFonE against overdue loans and advances
B
KEEEE ik il gk R5ER3
Outstanding RiE FRAEIEENMD  REEAEIRD REZEE
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage 3
2024F12831H At 31 December 2024 loansand  market value covered by covered by impairment
LOBISFTSn  HKS000 advances  of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHEAKREERERE®  Overdue loans and advances to
ki customers 3,809,230 4,773,407 3,253,094 556,136 694,499
BRMBR Al il HHm PEEER3
KEEHTE RME PRAEERD  REEEIEERD REER
Outstanding
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage 3
2023%F12H831H At 31 December 2023 loans and market value covered by covered by impairment
LOBIEFTiSr  HKS000 advances of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHAKREBEEEER  Overdue loans and advances to
TR customers 2,167,589 2,615,092 1,553,890 613,699 228,158

RFAEZEBNmEESBMER 1%
WY R AR R E AN B E B E R

e

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.



3. UHBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 EEAK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.26 B RZ# (8) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(@) KEHEHR (BNBREFEELRZ (c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in overdue
BHIER loans and advances shown above
{h48%E {H48%E
Bt Bt
LB TFlidT HKS 000 2024 % of total 2023 % of total
BEREREBR Loans and advances to customers 360,912 0.26 405,780 0.28
FEER3RERER Stage 3 impairment allowances 116,075 115,036
327 B E, 3.2.7 Trade bills
20245 £22023F 12531 H » 3 #E g AAB E3(E As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no balance of trade
BB ZERaEeR o bills that were overdue for more than 3 months.
3.2.8 WEIHREHFaR 3.2.8 Repossessed collateral
RERFFE ZWEERRIT Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:
LOBIET 3T HKS000 2024 2023
BENHE Nature of assets
rqElky/ES Repossessed properties 426,280 252,687
Hth Others 1,440 925
427,720 253,612
WEIEHRZROITEREREE  BIRFARIE Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
RLUREB R Z ERARERER - proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.
55T P B IR 48 E %56,184,00078 7T (20234 : Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a
58,181,00078 7T) =~ 7 R U #th A 75 T E th 4 total estimated realisable value of HK$56,184,000 (2023:
#, L AREEBREDEAMEPRERZ ES HK$58,181,000), which had been foreclosed and repossessed by
M TEU IR ER RO - ZIKIFm A 2 the Group pursuant to orders issued by courts in the Mainland
R0 THMEZE B ITHREBLHEZ China, represent assets held by the Group for resale and have been
BE HRE ERBE WA LER reported under “Other assets” in Note 30. The relevant loans had

been derecognised.
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3. HERKREE®
32 EERK @
329 EHEEE

TREHZEBMHREERFSRTERR
P 2 B R EMR RN BRI R F5 1R
R BHEEEEERIRR.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

TE Retail

LGB TS HKS'000

20245181H At 1 January 2024

LSV Transfers:

EBERRE Transfer to Stage 1

B EEE2 Transfer to Stage 2

B EEE3 Transfer to Stage 3

FPEERERHS K R ) Effect of stage transfers and changesin
FRESZFE allowance

HIRRTRA ~ BEA SRS
ZERMEE

BRSRE JBINBRE
EBHREAE AN
Rar 2 EE)

FRIFRRGER

SN e ELth &

2024128314

2023F181H

#/iz

BB EMRRL

BB EMRR

B EMRER

FHPE RS RS R E  EE)
FREEZZE

HAPORTIRAE ~ BE A SUHIENAEST
ZEMEE

EBHHAE BINBRE S
BORIRRE AR
R ZEE

FRPRALIR

i/ 6

SN e EfthE S

2023%F12H31H

New financial assets originated, purchased
or derecognised during the period

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
assumptions

Unwind of discount
Write-offs
Foreign exchange and other movements

At 31 December 2024

At1 January 2023

Transfers:

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance

New financial assets originated, purchased
or derecognised during the period

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
assumptions

Unwind of discount

Write-offs
Foreign exchange and other movements

At 31 December 2023

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s
ECL allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan
commitments and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.

301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
7,800 (5,227) (2,573) -
(6,259) 38,425 (32,166) -
(25,868) (18,830) 44,698 -
(4,595) 11,755 339,157 346,317
55,948 17,767 (6,880) 66,835
(50,112) (11,140) 48,651 (12,601)
363 570 76 1,009

- - (433,434) (433,434)

(72) (47) - (119)
278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798




3. HEEREE®
32 EERK @

3.

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

329 BSIAERE @

T Corporate

LGBMSFTr3m HKS 000

202451H1H At 1 January 2024

=% Transfers:

BT Transfer to Stage 1

BT Transfer to Stage 2

BT Transfer to Stage 3

SRS R EHES) Effect of stage transfers and changes in
FRE4Z 2 allowance

HAPORTIRAE ~ BE A SUHIENAEST
ZEREE

BASIAER SEMIRKRER
BARIGRE AL
[CEPd=to)

FRPRALIR

i/ 6

SN e EfthEE)

2024F12H31H

2023F181H

#|i5

I EREL

P EMRER

IS EMRES

FH P ER RS R A R B D
PRELZZE

HARRTRA ~ BB A SRS
ZEREE

BRRE JBIBRE
EBHREEREAIMEIEN
Rar 2 EE)

FRIFRGER

SN e EL &

2023%12831H

New financial assets originated, purchased or

derecognised during the period

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking

assumptions

Unwind of discount
Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other movements

At 31 December 2024
At1January 2023 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
Transfers:
Transfer to Stage 1 20,345 (19,629) (716) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (17,535) 17,535 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (123) (200,220) 200,343 -
Effect of stage transfers and changes in

allowance (8,115) 19,807 174,078 185,770
New financial assets originated, purchased or

derecognised during the period 10,497 43,908 (19,597) 34,808
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking

assumptions

(48,113) 17,929 257,298 227,114

Unwind of discount 396 1,579 508 2,483
Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
Foreign exchange and other movements (290) (89) (42) (421)
At 31 December 2023 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
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3. HHBRKREE® 3.
32 EERAK®
329 EISEE @

TREHZEBMHREZER BT ERR
PRER 2 RRABER (LB P EMABRZIREE
WBER R BRI R BRI R R TR IV

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 Loss allowance (continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross
exposure (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers and notional amount of loan

o commitments and financial guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.
T Retail
FEEg1 MEE%2 FEEE3 aE
EpRAREE EpRAEEE EpRAEEE B pRAEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOEMEF TS HKS000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2024%1H1H At 1 January 2024 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
= 7 A Transfers:
B EMEERL Transfer to Stage 1 203,553 (181,955) (21,598) -
BEIEEEERD Transfer to Stage 2 (528,991) 550,985 (21,994) -
BT MEER3 Transfer to Stage 3 (740,341) (186,450) 926,791 =
HI9ATERD ~ 48 IEFEED Origination, derecognition, further lending

E—TERIER and repayment (1,819,358) (109,880) (130,746)  (2,059,984)

/7! Write-offs = - (504,302) (504,302)
HNBE B ELfth 888 Foreign exchange and other movements (46,912) (725) (150) (47,787)
2024128318 At 31 December 2024 105,035,311 904,024 893,135 106,832,470
2023F151H At1January 2023 108,270,766 549,368 608,783 109,428,917
= VoA Transfers:
LR MEERL Transfer to Stage 1 91,960 (69,081) (22,879) -
BEIEEEERD Transfer to Stage 2 (499,145) 576,495 (77,350) -
BT MEER3 Transfer to Stage 3 (449,421) (154,194) 603,615 -
HIERESE AL LERESS Origination, derecognition, further lending

E—TERIER and repayment 581,806 (70,277) (33,527) 478,002
6oz} Write—offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SNBE B ELfth 888 Foreign exchange and other movements (28,606) (262) (74) (28,942)
2023F12831H At31 December 2023 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
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3. HHRREE®
32 EERKR®
329 EPSEE @

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (continued)

1 Corporate
P ER1 PEER2 PEEZ3 =1
R IG4a%E R %4E%E B4R E\pEAEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOBISTF 3T HKS000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
20241H1H At 1 January 2024 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420
iz Transfers:
L EREERL Transfer to Stage 1 1,215,765 (1,189,909) (25,856) =
L EREER Transfer to Stage 2 (9,691,634) 9,691,634 = -
L EREEL3 Transfer to Stage 3 (2,170,998) (748,927) 2,919,925 =
FYERESE ~ #2 LERESS Origination, derecognition, further lending
E— T BRURIER and repayment (4,333,925) (752,931) (553,951)  (5,640,807)
G| Write-offs = = (928,217) (928,217)
SR Ry ELfth & Foreign exchange and other movements (65,517) (7,963) (137) (73,617)
2024%F12H31H At 31 December 2024 72,584,658 19,603,930 3,546,191 95,734,779
2023%F181H At 1January 2023 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
i Transfers:
BB ERE Transfer to Stage 1 825,047 (820,113) (4,934) -
B ERE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (4,489,852) 4,498,645 (8,793) -
B EMRES Transfer to Stage 3 (60,863) (1,445,766) 1,506,629 -
FYERESE  HE LERESD Origination, derecognition, further lending
E— T BRURIER and repayment 4,608,617 (2,277,320) (327,205) 2,004,092
b6z Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SR Ry ELfth i E Foreign exchange and other movements (46,002) 370 (425) (46,057)
2023 12831H At 31 December 2023 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420

MEAGERERE RERITIAERR AR
AT BRI A FEEH 2 B &8 A E i
EEBENERE TR > Eh U LUBRM AT
BRRYETS T 2 48{8612,532,0007 71 F P 5 185
BEREER2 > TEsTHE B BEPS RS EER
722023812831 H AY353,00078 7018 N ZE 722024
F12831HB9909,00078 70 (20234 : ) ; A
TEGTEBEREEF T AEMEERENER
T B 48(5465,879,00078 70 FH BE ER 18218 L ER
2> FAEHE B R 1B AP R 82 % AR R 5220234
12331 H19253,000/8 71 i1 = 72202412 8
31H AY481,00078 77 (20234 © 481578,113,00078
TCHEERER E LK it EEBEREE
ER 275 1818 F1630,00078 7T 3 /1 2247,530,00078
JT) °

Treasury portfolio consists of cash and balances with banks and
debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at amortised
cost with carrying amount of HK$612,532,000 was transferred
from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in ECL allowance
from HK$353,000 as at 31 December 2023 to HK$909,000 as at
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil); debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with notional amount of
HK$465,879,000 was transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$253,000 as at 31 December
2023 to HK$481,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: transfer
notional amount of HK$78,113,000 from Stage 2 to Stage 3 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$630,000 to HK$47,530,000) due
to stage transition.
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3. HERKREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
32 EERK @
W (EFGES

TRYITRI 20244 2023512 331 H 32T 4R 14
BISTE 2 sHR DI 2 BF5sE 5o

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3210 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
agency designation at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

2024512A31R At 31 December 2024
LOBEFTlidn HKS 000
AAA AAA
M-EAA AA-to AA+
AZEA+ A-toAt
BB EERA Rated but lower than A-
KETR Unrated
A% Total
LUATE
STERHEEF)
SAHMZA
KRN ERMEE LUg AR A
Financial 5IRRA
assets at EHEE
fair value Financial
BERS  through other assets at
2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 B#EEE  comprehensive amortised st
LB FTlidn HKS 000 Trading assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 927,174 204,328 1,131,502
AA-ZEAAT AA-to AAH 1,739,841 14,972,157 8,768,677 25,480,675
AEA A-toA+ - 16,210,084 16,494,505 32,704,589
B RBERA Rated but lower than A- - 5,259,389 6,458,233 11,717,622
FETHR Unrated - 1,395,483 7,487,563 8,883,046
Bif Total 1,739,841 38,764,287 39,413,306 79,917,434
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3211 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
classified according to the location of the borrowers after
taking into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer
applies when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in
an area which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers by geographical area.

20245 20235

12H31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

LOBMEF U5 HKS 000 2024 2023
ERER R 4ERE Gross loans and advances to

customers

—&8 - Hong Kong 108,718,160 112,872,652

—HREIRH - Mainland China 13,729,341 14,163,149

—8P - Macau 13,527,103 14,012,453

—Efh - Others 2,399,681 2,001,222

138,374,285 143,049,476

5E 0 EZE2023F 12831 HFF 2R 2 REEET
BT LR EARFEEZ5FR

Note: The amounts presented for the position as at 31 December 2023
have been revised to conform with current year’s presentation.
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3. BHERERE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32 EERAK®
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3211 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

EE @@ exposure (Continued)
() 7% (b) Industry sectors
BB R BAABEE—IRITE R BN Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
byl classified according to the usage of loans
LOBIET i3 HKS000 2024 2023
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEER Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER - Property development 6,425,975 6,908,262
—MERE - Property investment 23,066,021 23,767,506
—ERibE - Financial concerns 5,154,554 3,607,794
— R4 - Stockbrokers 1,441,956 1,240,252
—HEETEH - Wholesale and retail trade 4,298,542 4,791,670
—BUE%E - Manufacturing 1,400,285 1,684,066
—ERREERE - Transport and transport equipment 2,883,028 2,662,549
—FRELES) - Recreational activities 48,882 62,840
—EfRHR - Information technology 48,392 29,760
—HAth - Others 5,665,507 6,062,815
50,433,142 50,817,514
(EUN Individuals
—REERERHEE) - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home Ownership
FAAZBERERELR Scheme, Private Sector Participation Scheme
FEEEHRETE and Tenants Purchase Scheme
BFER 414,186 467,752
—EEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 33,561,360 34,954,353
—(EHAFEEX - Credit card advances 3,645,014 3,841,087
—HAth - Others 13,998,682 13,530,504
51,619,242 52,793,696
EEEAFERENER Loans for use in Hong Kong 102,052,384 103,611,210
B55E Q) Trade finance (Note (1)) 4,902,455 5,624,799
HEEBLUIMERBIER (X))  Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 31,419,446 33,813,467
138,374,285 143,049,476
g Note:
(1) LI RZzESREALESESER (1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of

BHZERESIMoBEATEEO WY
OMBONRE UAEREZRES

imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant

2B guidelines issued by the HKMA.
) MEEEBLUMERNER BREETESR (2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
ERBAEEBLOMERZER customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong
Kong.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates
and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board,
the RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from
the Board. Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by
products and by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise
a combination of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk
(“VaR”) controls. All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-
market valuation. The Risk Management and Control Department
(“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an independent risk management
and control unit, identifies, measures, monitors and controls the
risk exposures against approved limits and initiates specific actions
to ensure positions are managed within an acceptable level. Any
exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate
level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as stipulated in
the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of Dah
Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally
under their own set of limits and policies and within the market
risk management framework set by DSB. The RMCD of DSB
oversees the market risk arising from the treasury operations of
BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in place
are commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the
Group standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and

procedures in respect of the market risk arising from its trading
and banking books.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures
market risks using various techniques commonly used by the
industry and control market risk exposures within established
risk limits. The major measurement techniques used to
measure and control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value-at-risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements.
It expresses as the maximum amount the Group might
lose given a certain level of confidence, which for the
Group is 99% for a one day holding period. There is
therefore a specified statistical probability that actual
loss could be greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the
use of VaR does not prevent losses outside the VaR limits
in the event of extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period”
(one day in the case of the Group) until positions can
be closed. It is calculated based on the current mark-to-
market value of the positions, the historical correlation
and volatilities of the market risk factors over an
observation period of one calendar year using a method
known as historical simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (continued)

(a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

() JEEE @
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(i) Value-at-risk (Continued)

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are
monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$1,862,000 (2023: HK$3,022,000).

(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each
risk category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate
the maximum size of market stress that the Group can
endure before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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3. HBEAMRERE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (continued)

(b) VaR summary of trading portfolio

#HZE2024512831H1E12(8 8
12 months to 31 December 2024

HZE2023F128318 F12(8 8
12 months to 31 December 2023

T 515 =& T4 535 533
LT HKS$ 000 Average High Low Average High Low
SRR Foreign exchange risk 1,370 3,367 427 2,504 4030 291
F=RE Interest rate risk 1,126 2,834 404 1,393 4822 469
ZEE All risks 1,862 4,691 653 3,022 5,997 703

3.3.2 REIRITIRZ F 5 E iz

AEEZIRITRT THEBRIERENE
BRiEmEES R

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly
associated with positions in debt and equity securities.
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(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies
established by the Board and its delegated committees,
various limits, guidelines and management action triggers
are established to control the exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, and price risk. In particular, position and sensitivity
limits and price triggers are in place to control the price risk
of the investment securities. In addition, sensitivity analysis
and stress testing (including reverse-stress testing) covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-
balance sheet positions and credit spreads on the Group’s
investment securities are regularly performed to gauge the
market risk inherent in the Group’s banking book portfolios
and manage it against the established control measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the
market risk of the banking book.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
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(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions
are normally matched against other customer
transactions or transactions with the market. Foreign
exchange exposure of the non-trading portfolio in
respect of MOP and RMB arise mainly from the operation
of subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau. The net
exposure positions including the trading and non-trading
portfolios, both by individual currency and in aggregate,
are managed by the Treasury and Global Markets
Division of the Group on a daily basis within established
foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that
this is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice
versa, is normally matched using foreign exchange
forward contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2024, if HKS had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have
been HKS$31 million higher (2023: HK$34 million higher),
mainly as a result that the foreign exchange gain
on translation of RMB denominated financial assets
outweighed the foreign exchange losses on translation of
RMB denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKS had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HKS$31 million lower (2023: HK$34 million lower).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure
interest rate risk exposures arising from its banking
book positions is consistent with the guidelines set out
by the HKMA in its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”)
on Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”).
From an earnings perspective, interest rate risk is the
risk that the net income arising from future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic
value perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the
economic value of a financial instrument will undergo
adverse impact because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from both
perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value
of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch
of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and
monitor the interest rate impacts through scenario
analysis and stress testing regularly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if HKS and USS market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up
shock under the HKMA’s standard parallel up scenario,
with other variables held constant, the impact on
earnings over the next 12 months and the impact on
economic value of equity would have been HKS$105
million higher and HK$981 million lower respectively
(2023: HK$201 million higher and HKS$775 million lower
respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2024 and 2023.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the
Group’s investments in debt securities and equity securities are
also exposed to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the
value of such investments could change significantly depending on
a variety of factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment and
other events that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (continued)
3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and
credit commitments translated into equivalent HKS amounts,
categorised by currency.

204E0A31A At 31 December 2024

LEEFTAIR HKS 000

BE Assets

BERIRINES Cash and balances with banks

TERMELERRZIRNES Placements with banks maturing between

one and twelve months

BERGERNES Trading securities

WATEEEHES Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
STABRNEHEE

TEEBTA Derivative financial instruments

REEFREMEE Advances and other accounts

WATE EBEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through other
At 2ARENEHEE comprehensive income

DESMATIRNEHER Financial assets at amortised cost

SHEEAH Total financial assets

&ff Liabilities

RTER Deposits from banks

TEEBTA Derivative financial instruments

BERBRENER Trading liabilties

REER Deposits from customers

BEANETHE Certificates of deposit issued

BEES Subordinated notes

EftiRE R AR Other accounts and accruals

ERaBEAH Total financial liabilities

BEABRAFRTE Net on-balance sheet positions

BEABRIMNGRREEE Off-balance sheet net notional positions*

RERHE Credit commitments

* BEEERIIMNTEREFEETIEANEE
FEESELBRBRZIINEERITET AN

BEFH

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R

*

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.35MNERE 4B 3.3.3 Currency risk (continued)
NB3ENF3IA At 31 December 2023 B e Pl NG Hif =5
WEEFid HKSO00 HKD UsD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
HERTERTHER Cash and balances with banks 7825273 1,925,695 483870 1,456,791 4,699,141 16,395,770
TERMEDEARZIBNER Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 496,027 271,724 - 2,230,640 153423 3,151,814

ﬁf’ﬁ*%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ% Trading securities 1,739,841 - - - - 1,739,841

WATEEEEEE) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HABRNERHEE - - - 8216 - 8216
TrepTR Derivative financial instruments 98,744 3,190,255 #3311 233,839 356,149
%IES*?&EWEE Advances and other accounts 114,604,375 12,751,407 7,789,057 8,794,149 5174966 149,113954

VAT B EEEEEEA Financial assets at fair value through other

HtnrEWGNEHER comprehensive income 7888998 31,448,863 863,918 88,181 235,882 40,525,842
DERRASIRNEREER Financial assets at amortised cost 5,499,662 30,230,626 1,577,744 1,887,122 177,224 393712378
SHEEAH Total financial assets 138,152,920 79,818,570 10,719,589 14508410 10674475 253,873,964
& Liabilities
R Deposits from banks 39,775 1,954,100 - 490,697 m 2,485,044
fTEsmIE Derivative financial instruments 47,69 1,036,182 - 231 183316 1279419
BERBHRRENEER Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
REER Deposits from customers 137,684,695 40,385,267 8818391 12,005,523 833982 207233698
BEANEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 2428028 - - - 2,428,028
HEE% Subordinated notes - 5916,645 - - - 5,916,645
HftiRE R FIR Other accounts and accruals 3450439 3925255 288,090 300,757 54113 8,020,654
SHaRAH Total financial liabilities 141,322,452 55,645,477 9,106,481 12,811,208 857113 227,463,341
EEEERARERE Net on-balance sheet positions (316953) 24173093 1,613,108 1,697,202 20975 26410623
EREERINGRRETE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 47035 (22,348,39) - (1,436,748 (L798,634)  (25,536,745)
REAE Credit commitments 55,122,860 759,39 1,841,877 4,697,483 50871 68,772,487
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets

212

and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

2024128318 At 31 December 2024
Vi gomitim HKS D00

BE Assets

BERIRINES Cash and balances with banks

ERTIZLERNERNER

Placements with banks maturing between one
and twelve months

BERGERNES Trading securities

WATEEEHES Financial assets at fairvalue through profitorloss
STABRNEHEE

TEEBTA Derivative financialinstruments

REEFREMEE Advances and other accounts

WATE EBEEHHA Financial assetsat fairvalue through other comprehensive
B2 ENGENEHEE income

DESIATIRNEHER Financial assets at amortised cost

SHEEAH Totalfinancial assets

=1 Liabilities

RTER Deposits from banks

TEE8TA Derivative financialinstruments

BERBRENER Trading libilties

REER Deposits from customers

BEANEDHE Certificatesof depostissued

BEES Subordinated notes

EftiiRE R AR Other accounts and accruals

ERBREAH Total financial Gabilities

FEBREEES T (RCHER) Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*

HEfETRANZ 2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts

FEgREEEA (SRR Totalinterest sensitivity gap (adjusted)*

Y ORRRENESREERENREEAERA *
HENMBENFAEEEE -KRENEHRE
ZBEF ARUBEF R E R MET R 0T

ETEAMNBIMR-

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to
mitigate interest rate risk.
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3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3.4 FIERZ @ 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
A 3EEML 1EE
FUF RiE E5E T8
NBEDRF3IA At 31 December 2023 3monthsor ~ Over3months ~ Over1year SELE Non-interest ast
WEEFid HKSO00 less to1year to5years  Over5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
HERTERTHER Cash and balances with banks 15,549,282 - - - 846,488 16,395,770
ARMENERNISRNER Placements vith banks maturing between
oneand twelve months 1,172,881 1,978,933 - - - 3,151,814

BERBRRNES Trading securities 1,725,135 7,293 7413 - - 1,739,841
MATEEEHEE Financial assets a air value through profitoross

HABRNEHEE - - - - 8216 8,216
TrepTR Derivative financialinstruments - - - - 3,566,149 3566,149
FEEFREMEKE Advances and other accounts 129,093,406 7,390,531 5,604,257 253,581 6772179 149,113954
DATEEEEEEEHA Financial assets a fair value through other comprehensive

A2 EENEHEE income 5,882,922 7,989,493 21,376,780 3,515,092 1,761,555 40,525,842
MERAASRN R RS A Financialassets at amortised cost 4,855,651 7,644,867 19,744,598 7125270 1,99 393712378
SHEEAH Totalfinancial assets 158,219.277 25,011,117 46,733,048 10,893,943 1295579 253,873,964
& Liabilties
ROER Deposits from banks 2472038 6,107 - - 6,699 2,485,044
E=a Derivative financialinstruments - - - - 1219419 1279419
RERBHRENEER Trading labilties 99,853 - - - - 99,853
REER Deposits from customers 153,408,394 37,670,653 2634371 - 13520280 207,233,698
BEANERE Certiicates of depositissued 796,144 1,631,884 - - - 2428028
HEE% Subordinated notes 1,754,856 - 4,161,789 - - 5,916,645
HftiRE R FIR Other accounts and accruals 487347 101,404 306,627 149,162 6,956,114 8,020,654
SHaRAH Totalfinancial abilties 159,018,832 39,410,048 7,122,787 149,162 AT62512 227,463,341
HESEEERSH REHL)* Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (739555)  (14308931) 39610261 10,744,781
NETETARNZYE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 30,131,970 (395558)  (17,669,399) (12,067,013
HESEEEESH (TH%)* Total interest sensitivity gap (acjusted)” 29392415 (14794489) 21,940,862 (1,322,23))
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund
increases in assets or meet its payment obligations associated
with its financial liabilities when they fall due without incurring
unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the
objective to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure
that there is an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet
normal business operations and to withstand severe liquidity
stresses. The Group has adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio
(“LMR”) and the Core Funding Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory
standards specified by the HKMA for reporting on the Group’s
liquidity position. During the period, the Group had maintained
sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory minimum of
25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the HKMA’s
requirements set forth in the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework
for Supervision of Liquidity Risk” and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound
Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”. The
SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by the HKMA for
supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while the SPM
LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management
standards of banks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and
framework approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s
ALCO to oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly
reviews the Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding
requirements and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk
metrics, including the LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an
ongoing basis. In addition, material changes in the liquidity risk
metrics together with any corresponding proposed mitigation
actions will be reviewed by ALCO. Appropriate limits or triggers
on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets are held
to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient level of stable
funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and Global
Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for
the measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a
daily and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and
stress testing. The Financial Control Division handles regulatory
reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular
forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis
relating to liquidity and funding management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a
diversified and stable funding. While customer deposits form the
primary portion of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit
and medium term notes are issued at opportune times in order
to lengthen the funding maturity and optimise asset and liability
maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are taken on a limited
basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the market and
the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons,
including the next day, week and month, which are key periods
for liquidity management. The starting point for those projections
is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial assets
and liabilities as well as the expected maturity of these assets
and liabilities based on historical observations. The cash flow
projections also take into account the historical behaviour of off-
balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments
and contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and
guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity
cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable securities
with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities
in the cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can
be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short
period of time. Debt securities held are marked to the market on
daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.

BERET In HK$ million
20245 20234
12H31H 12A31H
AEBDEE As at As at
Internal EHARZER 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2024 2023
F1AR RIEEEMHEIREENEUN ~ 218 2 RIRTT BRI FAAS K
NE BN BFITHRERZ AREE A% S EE 13,864 13,202
Tierl Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
MR REBECERBENREENBAT LBERRIT - REBEM RIS
b E TR AR E 220%0 5 B5E 55 17,760 13,594
Tier2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
SH2BAR ELDABREEREP BN RENEERFIEERNIPIRENEE)
MEERTREEETIERZEMAERES 45,645 46,973
Tier2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the

liquidity maintenance ratio.

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario
and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the
potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions. The Group maintains a set of early warning indicators,
including qualitative and quantitative factors and involving both
internal and market indicators that help identify any emerging
risk at an early stage. The Group maintains a contingency plan
that sets out its strategies for dealing with liquidity stresses and
the procedures for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting
repo transactions or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk
management purpose) in emergency situations. An annual drill
test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed at least
annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated
the same way as other third party transactions for the purpose
of cash flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of
the Group are required to manage their liquidity positions to
meet their needs under both normal and stressed conditions.
Most of the Group’s derivative transactions are exchange rate
contracts and interest rate contracts. Under the terms of our
collateral arrangements with derivative counterparties, collateral
movements are not linked with the credit ratings of the Group.
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024E12A318 At31 December 2024

WEEF R HKS 0op

BE Assets

BRI Cash and balances with banks

ERTEDERRSENES  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months

RIERBENES Trading securities

NATETEEEEE Financial assets at fair value through

HABRREHEE profitor loss
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments
RIEETREMEE Advances and other accounts

DATEEEEZEHA Financial assets atfar value through
Eth2AhaNEHEE other comprehensive income
LA NEREE Financial assets at amortised cost

HENTRE Investment in an associate

HEEHEREE Investments in jointly controlled entities

BE Gooduill

EVEE Intangible assets

EREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets

RENE Investment properties

T Current income tax assets

EiiEEE Deferred income tax assets

BEai Total assets

&f Liabilties

FAER Deposits from banks

TEERIE Derivative financial instruments

R BRENER Trading liabilties

ZRHR Deposits from customers

BEANERE Certificates of depositisued

HEER Subordinated notes

HEaR Lease liabilties

EMERERTER AOEHEEE  Otheraccounts and accruals, excluding
lease liabilities

e g Current income tax liabilities

EtEeE Deferred income tax liablities

Bffgs Total liabilities

ERESMEE Net liquidity gap

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or,
where applicable, the earliest callable date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FBIR 2T @ 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
AN
1B3EA JEANE
T i 1
FEEE  MEEIUT  3monthsor Over ol SENLE
W3E12A318 At 31 December 2023 Repayable Upto lessbutover 3months  Over 1yearto Over  EFARH At
WEEF ST HKS Doo on demand L month Lmonth to 1year 5years 5years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
RERTRI TR Cash and balances with banks 219865 13597114 - - - - - 16395710
EEMIZENBAEARTENET Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months - - 1,172,880 77,398 1,901,536 - - 3,151,814

BIERGRENES Trading securities - 799,564 95,571 793 7413 - - 1739841
LATEHEARES Financial assets atfair value through

HAERNEHER profitor loss - - - - - - 8,16 8,216
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 391,222 168773 461,233 1,108949 1435972 - 3,566,149
REEFREAMEE Advances and other accounts 906144 20568181 8765111 18835778 AT06L09T 43855800 183 149113954
DATEEEEZEHA Financial assets atfair value through

Hn2ERENEHEE other comprehensive income - 2,462,699 2404250 8100081 2,262,163 3515092 176155 4052584
LR AT RS E Financial assets at amortised cost - 2,447,698 1279847 1995630 20521940 1125071 1992 3931378
HENTIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2215131 2215131
HEARIEREE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 129,946 129,946
e Gooduwill - - - - - - 13451 13451
ElEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 69,715 69,715
HEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2813187 2813187
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 761,604 761,604
lEiEEE Current income tax assets - - - 121 - - - 10m
EitfEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 165823 - - 165823
BEAH Total assets 10704800 40266478 1473643 35478686 930891 5503135 10596640 260,744,094
&k Liabilities
il Deposits from banks 97,690 625,719 1,755,528 6,107 - - - 2,485,044
TEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 484474 166,770 331,39 246,168 50617 - 1,219,419
BERGALHEE Trading liabilities - 99,853 - - - - - 99,853
BFEH Deposits from customers 61406350 B/II4T 6985225 37670614 2634371 - - T8
BEINETE Certificates of deposit ssued - 406,054 390,090 1,631,884 - - - 2428028
#EER Subordinated notes - 1,754,856 - - 4,161,789 - - 5,916,645
fHEeE Lease liablities - 12305 13,89 95,859 296,83 52,935 - 481,829
EMERERBR TAEHEAE  Otheraccounts and accruals, excluding
lease liabilties 319,281 4278240 972,455 1,597,735 64,591 1131 235,152 7538825

fnEas Currentincome tax iabilties s s = 87611 = s s 87611
ETEeE Deferred income tax liabilities s s = s 103699 s s 103699
BEA: Total liabilties 6188332 43531648 T296095%6 41621200 7507450 114923 35152 227854651
FREER Net liquidity gap (511785220 (3265170) (5824522 (642514 SSAATL S822 10361488 32809443
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

EAME
B8R  3fERME
IUF EIf 1ENE
ffBEE 1ERHLUT  3monthsor Over BsF SEBIE
Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months Overlyearto over AR EH
WEEFrsn HKS 000 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year 5years Syears Indefinite Total
2024128318 At 31 December 2024
WEGEZHEDAR. Certificates of deposit held
included in:
DAT{ERERESE A Financial assets atfair value through
E \ﬂﬂiﬁuﬁlmﬁﬁmﬁﬁ}x other comprehensive income - - - - 62,749 - - 62,749
DERAATIRNERMERE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 137,719 946,980 2,638,365 - - - 3,723,064
A3E1F3IA At 31 December 2023
FEREZEDAR Certificates of deposit held
included in:
LUATEEEESEHA  Financial assets at fair value through
Hth2ENENEHEE other comprehensive income - - 116,051 245,088 - - - 361,139
Mg ASIRNERE Financial assets at amortised cost - 527423 - 3,390,846 - - - 391869

EE 28GR AN RRERMN R IEIERT
HEREER+OEZ - HNETHEBR
PEER TR A AELER > BiRTT
ME > TR BRI EE o SEECHYR
BERFERS&ET ] BhEIEMNERR
Bz o

BERSENTHERUSENRSEAE
HZMEBENE BfERERBES
R HEHM = fE R S F PR R SRR EER
o

REB—RATERAE =S SREERBES
HHAES BNERNEREBZE T
ERENRHEERTRE DR AN SR
HRELZEERERIIERN& IEHBEEE
B HIEANEHEEZEERENRE
N ELMRERERMERBBNIREE K

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and
of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount
of the commitment because the Group does not generally expect
the third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The
total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend
credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as
many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being
funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group
under non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities that will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on gross basis by remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk
based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures
and other interest rate contracts; and

+  Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

«  Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

20245128318 At 31 December 2024
BT AR HKS D00
FTETERSR Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities

/G Deposits from banks
REEH Deposits from custormers
BERGERNEE Tradingliabilties
BEINEE Certiicates of depositissued
hEER Subordinated notes
fEaE Leaseliabilties

Eftak Other iabilities

BEAE GHZHR Total liablties (contractual maturiy dates)
TEIARER Derivative cashflow

BIREHE T EHMTA
BEEEH T EHMTA

Derivative financial instruments settled on et basis
Derivative financial instruments settled on a gross basis

RABE

Total outflow
Totalinflow

222  KHRITEREBRAR 2024F £k
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

EBUER  3BAULE 1EME

3EAFUT EIE E5E

3 months or Over Over SEME
N3EDE3IH At31 December 2023 EBZLT  lesshutover  3monthsto 1year Over &t
LEEFAA HKS 000 Upto 1 month 1month 1year to 5 years 5years Total
FTETERER Non-derivative cash flow
&8& Liabilties
FIEH Depositsfrom banks 729,834 1,755,734 6,107 - - 2,491,675
RRER Depositsfrom custormers 98,016,971 71,344,966 38,783,585 2,706,755 - 210852217
BERGERNEE Trading labilties 100,000 - - - - 100,000
BEANEE Certificates of depositissuied 426348 410,104 1,715,955 - - 2,552,407
HEEH Subordinated notes 1,800,993 - 214323 5,012,902 - 7,028,218
HEEE Lease labilties 12,306 23898 95,859 296,833 52935 481,831
EftaR Other abilties 46320 1152 49,058 - 292,685 389,215
BEAE GHZHR) Total liabiltes (contractual maturity dates) 04,132,772 73535854 40,864,887 8,016,490 U560 223895623
TEIERER Derivative cash flow
RERERZTESHIA Derivative financialinstruments settled on net basis (4,70) (1459) (33,941) (65,284 - (118,522)
REBEEZ T ERIE Derivative financialnstruments settled ona gross basis
Nitukersd Total outflow 85,336,237 22,075,866 72,768,443 5529931 613826 | | 186,324,303
MBS Totalinflow (85,388,726) | | (22,183,153)| | (73,795,310) (8432,753) (1,300,819) | | (191,100,761)

(52,489) (107287 (1,026,867) (2,902,822) (686,993) (4,776,458)
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3. HBREREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34 TEMERME @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

344 EEBEXRIIMER 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

TREEUTIER Included in the table below are the following items:

. BEHEEFEREERHMRFBZEMN «  Loan commitments by reference to the earliest draw down
it (RERAEREEGBERINER dates of the contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance
TEZ&8TERPRMEE) ; sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers and other facilities;

- Z2RZHACENERNREHBARR «  Financial guarantees by reference to the earliest date that
BRER H A BB RGN AR (T 2 A 754 the guarantees can be called by the beneficiaries and based
(o) on the conditions existing at the reporting date as to what
contractual payments are required;
. KEBRABABEAZFAIBUHKLERLIK «  The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
EERRRAZ N 2 RBEE I RARLE ; operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
P4 where a Group company is the lessee; and
. BEREARBZEREE- . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1A 1EME
2024128318 At 31 December 2024 No later than F54 SEHNE &t
LB Fi5R HKS 000 lyear 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 63,098,059 - = 63,098,059
R AR R EMSRRE Guarantees, acceptances and other financial facilities
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby letters of credit 644,749 - = 644,749
—RERBEERE - Documentary and commercial letters of credit 450,156 - - 450,156
RETARIE Operating lease commitments 1,300 3,600 - 5,400
BARRE Capital commitments 17,796 3,025 - 20,821
At Total 64,212,560 6,625 - 64,219,185
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3. HHRREE®
34 REEERE @

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

344 BELSEXIMNEE & 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (continued)
1EMA 18N E

2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 No later than E5F SEME =
LGB Flidn HKS 000 1year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
ERURIE Loan commitments 66,450,244 - - 66,450,244
BR AR REMERRYE Guarantees, acceptances and other financial facilities

—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby letters of credit 1,928,921 - - 1,928,921

—RERBEERE - Documentary and commercial letters of credit 393,322 - - 393,322
CERNRE Operating lease commitments 2474 6,355 1,430 10,259
EAREE Capital commitments 50,729 - - 50,729
At Total 68,825,690 6,355 1,430 68,833,475

N

REBATIRZERAE - ERRBRAGEHER
2023F 123310 2 EEREETTES] U aRFEZ
kS

35 ERMBEERBRZATE
(F) 2 FEZEE

APERRINARESEESRRALE
EEBEENGLEE L RENIZRF 2T
ER-BFEREVERRERREZS
CEESMIAZMAERF HEHE
REENGEEBNBUEXGERMGE
BD (W@ A B EST  MEESERTD
TEHIEREE  RA T EFBBIEZTE
Mo

ERMTEZAFEDHEBABHERT
TH2HEENFERET ZAFRRST
HEBEPTNE BB R RPN 2B
B Tz ERAEETEENERG
875Gt e

Note:

The balances of loan commitments and guarantees and standby letters of credit
by maturities reported for the position of 31 December 2023 have been revised
to conform with current year’s presentation.

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the
Board is held responsible for ensuring proper valuation
governance and control processes of the Group. It delegates
the responsibility for overseeing the valuation process for
financial instruments to the TIRC. Valuation is performed
independently by RMCD and where appropriate, by
independent and professionally qualified valuers and the
valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date under current market conditions
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using a valuation technique.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active
market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and
shall be used whenever available. If a financial asset or a
financial liability has a bid price and an ask price, the price
within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair
value in the circumstances is used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments
is not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value
of such financial instruments by using appropriate valuation
techniques that are widely recognised including present value
techniques and standard option pricing models. In applying
valuation techniques for these financial instruments, the
Group maximises the use of relevant observable inputs (for
examples, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities,
credit spreads) and minimises the use of unobservable inputs.
For example, the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash flows, the
fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is generally
based on current forward rates and the fair value of option
contracts is derived using appropriate pricing models, such as
Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial
liabilities and other liabilities for which it has elected the
fair value option. When the Group’s credit spreads widen,
the Group recognises a gain on these liabilities because
the value of the liabilities has decreased. When the Group’s
credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises a loss on these
liabilities because the value of the liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes
equity securities and derivatives that are listed on
exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices). This level includes the
majority of the OTC derivative contracts. These are
financial instruments with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets
and financial instruments valued using models
where all significant inputs are observable.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
This level includes equity and debt securities with
significant unobservable components.
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3. MBEKREE®

35 TMEERBRZATE®
(Z) A FEFR @
BATEFTEZEBERAR !

EEMATEE

2024%F12A31H At 31 December 2024
LOCBESTF o ibm HKS 000

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

Recurring fair value measurements

RS Descriptions

FERZBRNES R Trading securities and financial assets
DA EstEEHEE)  atfairvalue through profit or loss

HABRNERMEE

BEFES Debt securities

KEES Investment funds
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments

RERZAR Held for trading

FrE R Held for hedging

DA ESEEEEE)  Financial assets at fair value through other

SFARMEEREN comprehensive income

BERS Debt securities
i SinkEad Equity securities

WA EHEZEBESS Total assets measured at fair value

LIAFEEEEEE)  Financialliabilities at fair value through

SFAEENERAR profit or loss

—FERXZ AR - held for trading
BEES Debt securities
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments
HERZAR Held for trading
Sz (s Held for hedging

WA EEZEEESH Total liabilities measured at fair value

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in shares issued by unlisted entities. These
investments were acquired some years ago when the Group
applied to join the platforms or cooperative arrangements
operated by the relevant entities in areas such as
international financial messaging, cross-border payments,
credit cards issuance, etc. which are essential to the provision
of banking services by the Group.

The unlisted equity investments are measured using valuation
techniques of market comparable companies or recent
transaction. The significant unobservable inputs and their
range applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s
of unlisted equity investments includes price-to-earnings ratio
(“PE ratio”) of the comparables of 20.41x to 44.85x. As at 31
December 2024, if all of the significant unobservable inputs
favourably changed and unfavourably changed by 5%, the
Group’s other comprehensive income would have increased
by HKS$78 million (2023: HKS87 million) and decreased by
HKS$78 million (2023: HKS87 million) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into
or out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy.
The changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/
losses during the year. There was no addition or disposal
during the year.
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3. HHBRKREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

35 SREERERZATE®
(Z) 2 FESR @
BRATEAEBZEERER @
KEEATEAE®

20235 12831H At 31 December 2023

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

EYi

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

EE

53R

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

A=

AR

LOBIEF T8 HKS 000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
apS Descriptions
FERZBRNES R Trading securities and financial assets at fair

DATFETEEEES)  valuethrough profitor loss

HABRNERMEE

BV TeEs Debt securities - 1,739,841 - 1,739,841

REES Investment funds 8,216 - - 8,216
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments

FERZ AR Held for trading - 1,062,388 - 1,062,388

FERERH Held for hedging - 2,503,761 - 2,503,761
DUATESEEHES)  Financial assets at fair value through other

SFAEMZEWED comprehensive income

TREE

EHES Debt securities - 38,764,287 - 38,764,287

R EES Equity securities 268 - 1,761,287 1,761,555
BATESIEZEEGE Totalassets measured at fair value 8,484 44,070,277 1,761,287 45,840,048
DATFEHEEEES  Finandialliabilities at fair value through

StABRNEHEE profit or loss

—FERZ AR - held for trading

BV Tees Debt securities - 99,853 - 99,853
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments

FERZ AR Held for trading - 1,057,303 - 1,057,303

BRI Held for hedging - 222,116 - 222,116
BATEHEZEESET Totalliabilities measured at fair value - 1,379,272 - 1,379,272
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have
been applied in determining the fair values of financial
instruments presented below:

() RERRITEFKRERITNE

=h
TA

HRTF B FRRERFRZA
FEDEKREE BEMNEFRZ
EEt A HEDRBENEFREER
BRFIFEHE 2 EHEUER G
TSN RABZMIFRRE R

(i) BREMRER REZRE

EMKRBRRE 7R R A5t AF
EfETAst AR IGR AR E R
REIRENEE - RS IR RIRIRITHH
MRBRUEE A FE-

(i) LUHERR TRV EREE

BERECOUETHFNTLER
ZMBEE BN ABEEZ AT
ENRETSERIEL 58
WE-HABILEFER A FEZ
StENDRANAEEREE 2I8H
R mEEMENEST TS RE

(iv) SRITEM BRERKRBEET
SEEZ G

EEHPANAAZER BEFNE
FROHAFERNRKAEZHK
B RARETEREZEEN S
FRAEEMER HATEZSE
TRBRANAEERRNEGIARZ
MEHBEXRFAEZIRFER -

(v) RIEEH

RABTBRE LA AR
A B R RIARBRT 2 A i
BRAR R IS BB E LUR(E AR
AT E

(i) Cashand balances and placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity.

(ii) Loansand advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated
future cash flows expected to be received. Expected
cash flows are discounted at current market rates to
determine fair value.

(iii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value
of amortised cost assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

(iv) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and
certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.

(v) Subordinated notes

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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3. HHBRKREE®

35 SREEREBEZATE®
(F) KA FEAEZLHTE @
NEBRH AR BN ATIRN ST

B 27 EE1E » BEE 20245 F2023F 12
BIHZ AT EWEEBAERE BRI :

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 except

as follows:

REE F14R 24k 34K NEE
2024%12H31H At 31 December 2024 Carrying Fair
LGEMET T3 HKS000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
TRIEE Financial assets
DU R AT BRAY Financial assets at

THEE amortised cost 35,522,368 - 35,597,944 2,000 35,599,944
sRaE Financial liabilities
BETHEE Certificates of deposit issued 4,294,996 - 4,298,538 - 4,298,538
BEES Subordinated notes 4,146,914 - 4,249,515 - 4,249,515

iREME B4R B4R X5 NFE

2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Carrying Fair
LUBMSF TS HKS000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
TRIEE Financial assets
MEERALATIERR Financial assets at

TRBE amortised cost 39,372,378 - 39,306,558 2,000 39,308,558
THEaR Financial liabilities
BETHEREE Certificates of deposit issued 2,428,028 - 2,430,481 - 2,430,481
BERR Subordinated notes 5,916,645 - 5,915,400 - 5,915,400

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

+  To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

+  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

« To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the
benefits to other stakeholders; and

«  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the
Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by
the Group’s management, employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, DSB is required
to meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier
1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of
these three ratios are set at 4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively
and are adopted by the HKMA. In order to comply with HKMA’s
requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory
Review Process”, DSB is required to set further buffers, to reflect
material risks not included in the minimum regulatory capital
calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar
Il capital requirement. In addition, DSB is required to fulfil the
capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer
requirements set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms
part of Basel Ill implementation and the required information
is submitted to the HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the
international standards, the minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3%
by the HKMA.
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3. HBEEREE®
36 BXEE®

B IESECEEEABRARINZEE
Hﬁuu‘ﬁiiﬁﬂﬁ Mg ERBS 2 RS INRESNEE
qu EEABRNERRBEESANSE
BME D ERKESESERRY 2N
:.,\ﬁﬁ&%rl%*%? ERE BT R EtE R ER
7% (BN R Z R BBZERAKEE
EfHE A FERETEERRINEE &
}%%ﬁ?@l\ﬂﬁ EREDBERERINESE
g EEBASERRZ EEEERE RN
HHACESER HNESFENEEAR
AR

TGRSV BR IR ZERGRE HE2
BRARA RE ) EthEm Mt TRARE
fit M - (BR17% (EX) MDA BFEL B
meRRREEREE-

ﬁ%% EEEHH&/ Fﬁ%lﬂ'ﬁﬁ% (F AP

ni%%é ,.J%J) &'Tﬁkk ﬁﬁl_é;%ﬂjﬁ’]?a§|z
F3% 0 BEEEE 2 RPN B IRTTIRPIR SRR
TR PE R B IRTTARIRT (PE) 2 &
KL REREEEARZ R

PR R IRIT R AHTIRTT (PED 72 Al AR
%%)%Ez%%ﬂ%ﬁ%% BREEE fz%&

IR BER BT ERF T RPIMZERITIU
REREmEE BIREFRTEAMEBT (F
Bl & B H BB E AN SRR R R
EMRREZ LEX (AIEARBLEE) NMEIVEE
E R E{EIKF8%e

Zli%l%:FﬂEfEﬁBﬁJ:’\T/& BEMES
BB B ESAPEEBEREZES)
Ziiﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁn@

3.7 TEEERE

REBIRHBFEE A DAV EEE NS
REFHE=F > BF I REEERFIBZE
MTEEHDEARZRE LEURES
PEHAEZEE UAVIAXREBZLEHH
WK ML ERFE A 5| A EBWBRIERE
7 B

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted
amounts for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and
covers both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures.
On-balance sheet exposures are classified according to the obligor
or the nature of each exposure and risk-weighted based on the
credit assessment rating assigned by an external credit assessment
institution recognised by the HKMA or other rules as set out in the
Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account the capital effects of
credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures are converted
into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and
risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated statement of financial position are share capital,
retained profits, other equity instruments and other reserves.
Capital also includes collective provisions and regulatory reserve
for general banking risks as allowed under the Banking (Capital)
Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the
Group’s Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in
Mainland China, DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
provided by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the
National Financial Regulatory Administration (“NFRA”) respectively
for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the NFRA on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the NFRA requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the
capital adequacy ratio) not lower than the required statutory
minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities,
such as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the consolidated financial statements.
These services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be
accused of mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions
may have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the
periods when changes are made. The application and selection
of different estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent
changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in
the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of the
sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates
and assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions
adopted are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results
and positions presented in the consolidated financial statements
are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(a) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
ECL is further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key
sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying
the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

+  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

«  Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

«  Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

+  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes
of measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made
by the Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
The Group applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate
quotation for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the
range of observable quotations, recent observable transactions,
the reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature. For unlisted equity investments,
management judgement and estimates are required for the
selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and
modelling techniques.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at fair
value at reporting date are shown in Note 19, 20 and 22.

(c) Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which could
be caused by major changes in market conditions and outlook,
could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such assets. In
the event that the expected recoverable amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets are significantly lower than their carrying values,
impairment of such assets would have to be recognised.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible asset at reporting
date are shown in Note 27.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out impairment assessments on its investment
in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgement and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising from
the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

At 30 June 2024, the fair value was below the carrying value. An
impairment assessment was performed and the carrying value
of the Group’s investment in BOCQ was written down by HKS$16
million to the fair value less cost of disposal. At 31 December 2024,
the fair value of the investment was higher than the carrying value.
As there was no change in service potential of the investment,
there was no assessment of impairment or its reversal. The
total amount by which the Group’s investment in BOCQ was
written down due to impairment assessment for the year ended
31 December 2024 therefore remained at HK$16 million (2023:
HKS$552 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the
most relevant:

+  If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend),

the Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
terminate).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Determination of the lease term (Continued)

« If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a
significant remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

+  Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including
historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included
in the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or
not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised
if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee. During the current financial year, the Group
has not exercised any extension or termination options.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at
reporting date are shown in Note 28.

(f) Tax position relating to the unamortised upfront payment
and deferred payments recognised as income

As announced by the Group when the Hong Kong Distribution
Agreement (“HKDA”) was entered into on 19 June 2017, the
HKDA was intended to be an exclusive, long-term bancassurance
cooperation between DSB and Tahoe Life Insurance Company
Limited, which was terminated on 8 July 2022. A new
bancassurance arrangement entered into with Sun Life Hong
Kong Limited which has commenced in the second half of
2023. Management assessed that the upfront fee and deferred
payments received and receivable by DSB under the HKDA and
the new bancassurance arrangement can be treated substantially
as capital in nature for tax purpose. Management has taken this
consideration into account in the preparation of the financial
statements.
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
EATBFEARRR Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12A31H
As at 31 December
LGB T TR HKS'000 2024 2023
IERBEE Non-current assets
WEA KA Investments in subsidiaries 7,000,118 7,000,118
MaFEstE A HES) st AHM2EUE  Financial assets at fair value through other
HNEmMEE comprehensive income 856,394 856,394
mLEE Intangible assets 8,635 8,635
7,865,147 7,865,147
TMENEE Current assets
B—E B AR Z IR TAERR Bank balances with a subsidiary 131,905 59,258
FEUAR R EhER B Accounts receivable and other accounts 600 468
FEUT M S A BIFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 34,962 36,063
167,467 95,789
mEaE Current liabilities
TERBERMEMRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 1,945 1,968
FERTME A B FUIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 442,807 442,818
444,752 444786
e ==} Net current liabilities (277,285) (348,997)
7,587,862 7,516,150
R EQUITY
f& 7 Share capital 6,894,438 6,894,438
HithizE (BFEFRERT) = () Other reserves (including retained earnings) Note (a) 693,424 621,712
Emast Total equity 7,587,862 7,516,150

BEEEIN025F3H3 1B HE Mg o

ERE =HEE
EFE EFAE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

March 2025.

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Director

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director
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5. BRTHRBRRARREGEEE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

RE & Note:
(B) KABEEES (@) Reserve movement of the Company
DURG Sz I
RiIpAER
AN Z
{REZEF Share-based
Retained Compensation =1
LOEMEF T3 HKS’000 Earnings Reserve Total
2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 561,759 4,933 566,692
FERET Profit for the year 617,266 - 617,266
DARG #E Sz A ARG D 25 EREFR BN Provision for equity-settled share-based
g | compensation - 55 55
2022F SREARG B 2022 final dividend (407,668) - (407,668)
2023F FHEARG R 2023 interim dividend (154,633) - (154,633)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 616,724 4,988 621,712
202441818 At 1 January 2024 616,724 4,988 621,712
FERF Profit for the year 1,140,083 = 1,140,083
DARGHE =2 A ARG A B RERREN =~ Transfer of share-based compensation reserve
Bets 4,988 (4,988) -
2023F KRR E 2023 final dividend (688,818) - (688,818)
20245 FHHARR B 2024 interim dividend (379,553) - (379,553)
20244128310 At 31 December 2024 693,424 - 693,424

240 KHIRITEEAMRAE 2024F £,
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the
basis of personal banking, corporate banking, treasury and global
markets and banking businesses in Mainland China and Macau.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for
local banking business, and on business entity basis for banking
businesses in Mainland China and Macau.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

+  Personal banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from individual customers and the extension of
residential mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft,
vehicle financing and credit card services, and the provision of
insurance sales and investment services.

+  Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

« Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the
provision of foreign exchange services and centralised cash
management for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk
management, management of investment in securities and
the overall funding of the Group.

« Mainland China and Macau banking businesses include
personal banking, corporate banking business activities
provided by subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau, and
the Group’s interest in a commercial bank in Mainland China.

«  Others include results of operations not directly identified

under other reportable segments, corporate investments and
debt funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with
individual segments are reported directly under respective
segments, while revenue and funding cost arising from inter-
segment funding operation and funding resources are allocated
to segments by way of transfer pricing mechanism with reference
to market interest rates. Transactions within segments are priced
based on similar terms offered to or transacted with external
parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs
are allocated to various segments and products based on effort
and time spent as well as segments’ operating income depending
on the nature of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities
that cannot be reasonably allocated to segments, products and
support functions are grouped under Others as unallocated
corporate expenses.



6. EENIERLT® 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
HE2024F 12831 HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

LUBEF LS HKS 000

FRIBWA/ G2H) Net interest income/(expenses)

FRBHA/ G Non-interest incomey (expenses)

BEBARE Total operating income

HETH Operating expenses

NkEERESENZ Operating profit/(loss) before credit
BERN/ (5B impairment losses

EEHERE Credit impairment losses

NFETRERETEEZ Operating profit/(loss) before gains

W kEER 228 and losses on certain investments
iafl/ (548) and fixed assets
HEREME TEREM Net loss on disposal and fair value
EEBEREATERE adjustment of investment
ZEER properties, premises and other
fixed assets
HELERHATERNEREEZ Net gain on disposal of financial
bl assets at amortised cost

HENATEFEEESEE A Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
E2ElaENEREEL financial assets at fair value

2 @8 /a7 through other comprehensive
income
EEBEAF EE Share of results of an associate
BENIRERESE Impairment loss on investment in
an associate

BEALERSATREZER  Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate

EEHEENER 25 Share of results of jointly controlled
entities
BiRATER/ (598) Profit/(loss) before taxation
B R /e Taxation (expenses)/credit
EEEN/ BB Profit/(loss) for the year
HENMEDANAILEE For the year ended
31 December 2024
TERBHER Depreciation and amortisation
R4F12A31H At 31 December 2024
DEEE Segment assets

PEEE Segment liabilities
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

B E2023F12H31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
R
HERER BPET
%R Mainland
BASRT R Treasury  Chinaand BIER
Personal Corporate  and Global Macau Hitr Inter- izt
LB RlTSn HK$ 000 Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
BHBKBA/ &) Net interest income/(expenses) 2,015,027 1,183,911 1,124,749 478,004 13908 (164) 4815435
FRBBA/ i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 748,390 203211 (26,453) 148483 37,560 (10542) 1,100,649
SRR Total operating income 2,763,417 1,387,122 1,098,296 626,487 51,468 (10,708) 5,916,084
BEL Operating expenses (1855232 (533440)  (232540)  (547,755) (10,636) 0706 (3,168,897
TBMEERE 518 /O Operating profit before credit
IpA= il impairment (losses)/written back 908,185 853,682 865,756 78,732 40,832 - 2,747,187
EEREED /o Creditimpairment (losses)/
written back (311,830) (350,600) 27,560 (98,244) 1,803 - (731,311)
NHETRERETEEZ Operating profit/(loss) before gains
Wi RESERI S8 and losses on certain investments
wfl/ (B8 and fixed assets 596,355 503,082 893,316 (19,512) 4,635 - 2,015,876
HERBMERHMETEE  Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
RHATEREZ value adjustment of investment
3 (8 ME properties, premises and other
fixed assets (874) . - 1,794 (39,179) . (38,259)
EEHENFzEE Share of results of an associate - - - 688,957 - - 688,957
BENAREZAERE Impairment loss on the investment
in an associate - - - (552,000) - - (552,000)
BALERSATREZER  Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
EEHEEIZEE 28 Share of results of jointly controlled
entities . . - - 277014 . 27014
BRRATER Profit before taxation 595,481 503,082 893,316 119,229 30470 - 2,141,578
B () /(e Taxation (expenses)/credit (98,487) (82,320) (147,363) (16,346) 63,244 - (281,272)
EEHT Profitfor the year 496,99 10762 745,953 102883 93,714 - 1860306
HENBEDLANALEE For the year ended
31 December 2023
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 73,020 18,407 10,177 57,666 189,744 - 349,014
F0BERANA At 31 December 2023
PEEE Segment assets 594,17 655748 BOTIT6  3BT066T3  TE8OIT (4756792 260,744,094
DIEEE Segment liabilities 121866174 49354251 12902840 31848027 16640151 (4756792 227,854,651
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

RBIINEE R 2 W Ty R BN & E ~RFT Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
KHPBEZIRITHEAB TR T EEmEA subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of
IR BiEERER EEME - EEME China, with major products and services including deposit taking,
BHRES- extension of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment

services offered to customers.

TRIEHEZGIEFEHE BN BE T IREA The following tables provide information by geographical area,

EEMINE R RERS EEBETZ K which was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal
2 RAR BV ETE S PT T sl o entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship

with, and services to external customers.

B IEIKH
ERKREHM Inter-
Hong Kong TR segment =
LGBIEF oS HKS'000 and others Macau elimination Total
HE2024F12831H1EFE  For the year ended 31 December 2024 6,545,733 391,606
EIEIWALRRE Operating income 2,349,479 45,890 (2,416) 6,934,923
FRIRAT A Profit before taxation - 2,395,369
1420245 12H31H As at 31 December 2024
BEAS Total assets 235,387,376 25,540,383  (4,588,678) 256,339,081
aEas Total liabilities 204,943,152 22,161,235  (4,588,678) 222,515,709
mBEEEKREE Intangible assets and goodwill 231,891 551,275 = 783,166
WABE A Contingent liabilities and commitments = 62,916,672 2,547,143 (101,294) 65,362,521
BHIEIEE
EEKRHEM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment =1
LEBETF o5 HKS'000 and others Macau elimination Total
B E2023F12H31H ILEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
EIBUWALLEE Operating income 5,534,846 390,524 (9,286) 5,916,084
FRIS AT A Profit before taxation 2,027,706 113,872 - 2,141,578
722023 12H31H As at 31 December 2023
BESF Total assets 238,542,412 25,692,277 (3,490,595) 260,744,094
aEas Total liabilities 209,229,240 22,116,006 (3,490,595) 227,854,651
B EEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 231,891 551,275 = 783,166
HABBEREE Contingent liabilities and commitments 69,117,565 2,291,041 (101,434) 71,307,172
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7. FFREWA

7. NETINTEREST INCOME

LGB T TR HK$’000 2024 2023
FEWA Interest income
RERERITAEER Cash and balances with banks 769,092 704,047
BERNE Investments in securities 4,350,918 3,846,823
HIEEHRAEMEKRE Advances and other accounts 7,027,046 6,934,735
12,147,056 11,485,605
FEXZH Interest expense
IRITTER BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 6,194,009 6,068,633
BETHFEE Certificates of deposit issued 218,467 184,061
BEBY Subordinated notes 344,230 328,257
fHEaR (s (@) Lease liabilities (Note 28(b)) 11,586 7,669
Hth Others 90,647 81,550
6,858,939 6,670,170
FMEWAES Included within interest income
—FERXZRERNES & - Trading securities and financial assets at fair
MR ESAEBEEH A value through profit or loss
B ERMEE 98,959 13,110
—MURTEFTEEHESFHFA - Financial assets at fair value through other
HihemWmiemEE comprehensive income 2,899,567 2,560,848
— DU ERR AT BRIV SR B B - Financial assets at amortised cost 9,148,530 8,911,647
12,147,056 11,485,605
MEZHEs Included within interest expense
—MURTEFTEEHEEFFA - Financial liabilities at fair value through
BalEMas profit or loss 16,206 5,098
— DU ER AT BRIV ERIBE - Financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,842,733 6,665,072
6,858,939 6,670,170

RE E2024F 2023 F12331H IFFE > T

DB REEEZT WA

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no
interest income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

LGB FTsm HKS'000 2024 2023
RFEE K ABEURA Fee and commission income
KUAFEt2EEEH T ABRN Fee and commission income from
THBEMEBZRBEMMAZUA financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss
—EEBZIRBEREE - Credit related fees and commissions 162,353 158,987
—B2mME - Trade finance 52,614 49,475
—fER+* - Credit card 249,568 272,664
HMMARFE & KR AEIA Other fee and commission income
— R e - Securities brokerage 118,160 100,840
—{REREHE R E A - Insurance distribution and others 628,963 163,961
—DERBEKRVEBIERY - Retail investment and wealth
management services 187,437 131,980
—IRITAIRBERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 66,446 72,258
—HMARHE - Other fees 93,795 128,802
1,559,336 1,078,967
RFERAEZY Fee and commission expense
KUAFEt2EEEH T AEBRN Fee and commission expense from
THBEMREBBZRFEMMAETZE financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss
—FREERAE - Handling fees and commission 220,691 202,974
—BNHEMER - Other fees paid 10,036 9,191
230,727 212,165

5t

FEBERF=HRHAE 2L bXEERKEE
ERB -BERLERBENEERUZREASNREA

WA EELEFREMHREA -

Note:

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and investment
management services to third parties. The assets subject to these services are
held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in these consolidated financial

statements.
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9. BFRFHWA

9. NET TRADING INCOME

LGB TR HK$’000 2024 2023
SNERZ 3 Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 249,892 125,667
BERZRRNESEZF (58 IR Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (353) 2,819
FERZRENITE TR Z F Net gain from derivatives entered into for
trading purpose 13,786 34,947
BATEHTERSRTAZ Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
b=t instruments subject to fair value hedge (670) 2,222
MR EtEEEEFHEI ABRN Net loss on financial instruments at fair
EMT R FEE value through profit or loss (3,722) (812)
258,933 164,843
10. HMEEWRA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
LGB T TR HK$’000 2024 2023
REXRDI/FEZUAFEFEBHES)FTA Dividend income from investments in equity
HittemWmmEmaE TAKEY instruments at fair value through other
& B U A comprehensive income, held at the end
of the year
— s - Listed investments 47 609
—JELHEE - Unlisted investments 14,453 32,137
KEME S AL Gross rental income from investment
properties 15,318 14,580
HAEE WA Other rental income 15,935 15,994
Hih Others 13,511 5,684
59,264 69,004
1. EEZH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
LCBETFTsm HKS’000 2024 2023
BEFM af sz H Employee compensation and benefit
expenses
—$N e HMASER - Salaries and other staff costs 2,115,937 1,996,824
— RSB AERRIN > BB R (15F44) - Provision for share-based compensation
charged
(Note 44) 19,795 14,108
—BRrEZH-REHTEE G - Pension costs - defined contribution plans
(Note) 130,676 118,599
TERAMEEEES > TEIEITE Premises and other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation
—1TEMEESZH (528 (2)) - Rental of premises (Note 28(b)) 3,819 2,338
—HAth - Others 266,214 223,948
b= Depreciation
—fTEREMETEEE ({528 (§)) - Premises and other fixed assets (Note 28(a)) 236,380 203,168
—BEREZYE (8 (2)) - Right-of-use properties (Note 28(b)) 139,841 145,846
EEREHEEZ H Advertising and promotion costs 77,726 85,050
ENf~ X AR B & Printing, stationery and postage 47,797 48,171
25 Gl Auditors’ remuneration 13,656 16,355
Hith Others 288,209 314,490
3,340,050 3,168,897

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R




11. EiEZH®
i

RIS EE MRy sR a5 8l

11. OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Note:

In respect of the Group’s provident fund schemes

LGB T T L3)m HKS 000 2024 2023
FERARIRE R HREOL U R Forfeited contributions utilised to reduce the

Group’s contribution during the year 16,043 18,274
B EFRA AR B B ERILU R Forfeited contributions available for reducing

future contributions at the year end 1,350 3,763
B B E M E BB (R ETE In respect of the other defined contribution schemes of the Group
LGB T Tl 3 HKS'000 2024 2023
FRBRINRE B HRAL U R Forfeited contributions utilised to reduce the

Group’s contribution during the year 1,024 3,000
EEFRA AR B BEmEOLUER Forfeited contributions available for reducing

future contributions at the year end 58 85
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12. EEME

BREBRBRGIFEMERAT (EHET
ZERRE) R ARBRERNHERBZ

M BB T Ak

HENUFLANAILERE Year ended 31 December 2024

LEET ST HKS 000

£33 Chairman

ITERE David Shou-Yeh Wong

HiTES Executive directors

BEERE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

TaERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang

FBERE Nicholas John Mayhew

BiFRTES Independent non-executive
directors

FEMRLE Robert Tsai-To Sze

EHERE Blair Chilton Pickerell

ERELE David Wai-Hung Tam

EHRAE Paul Franz Winkelmann

REFYL Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

REELE Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)

&3 Total

250 KRHIRITERBRAR 2024FF5R

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company in respect of
the period of directorship disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation were set out
below:




EEME @

ET@MHx@*—?& B2 IR 2 S B AR AR 1D 22

st & REEAMETESREURERE
SEEERRREUIRE N ZURMDEAERZ
Sz Ao BURR 17 B2 Bh 51 B = #R A > HARIE H AR
ML BB THE - DURE S Z R 1F
AHERZA Z W HARKNEE D RER
FTRRF RS AERY ST o MR I Z U
PIERERS N ZHRM > BIRRTEEEDK
BRI HAISERR 7 H AR B RN Z T
EER

ERERARTAERBDRANBLABZES
EEEEZ‘EMT}%’ATSEHZ%W HEa&E L5

ZiEawiE

e BiZ2E
IEERNFRELER > TERNEFERSES
FEREARG LHREL HPhEAATAE
m—ARAATDZEEEENEBEEEDE
FE AR (20234 : ) ©

REE2024F128310 L EE » WEBEAE
EMEEEARHNENB LB EREREZ
EMARFE ST I 2 R R E A S (20234 -

) o

RER WES (R IEEBYZ RIBREFFE
ERTEMERESREMASE = AL R
Sz AFERE (20234 © ) ©

12.

Note:

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Other share-based compensation payment includes share awards, equity-
settled and cash-settled share based payment on the share options
exercised or cancelled during the year. For share awards, it represents the
cost of the vested shares based on the closing price of the vesting date. For
equity-settled share based compensations, it represents the cost borne by
the Group recognised on the exercise of the share options while for cash-
settled share based compensation, it represents the cash payment, being
the difference between the exercise price and the average closing price of
the shares of the Company for the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the date of cancellation of the share options.

For directors who are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries,
remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
total remuneration set out above.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2023: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in respect
of directors’ other services in connection with management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2023: Nil).
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12. EEME @

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EthbR (D
ERENEHEES AETERE
T TR WzfT  BICEAEE
28K Incentive bonuses accrued ) ZETHER
EWFE  inrespect of services rendered Other  Employer’s
Salary, in the year share-based  contribution =H
EZE  allowances compensation  to retirement (G7)
HEABFDLANAILEE Year ended 31 December 2023 Directors  andbenefits ~ MUIR&Zf  LUREST payment benefit Total
LEEFlid)n HKS 000 Fee inkind  Cash-settled ~ Share-settled (Note 1) schemes (Note 2)
B Chairman
EaE i David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,946 9,225 4575 - - 20,246
HIER Executive directors
BERLL Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong) - 8,718 2,113 1,077 - - 11,968
FhERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 2,458 2,89 1,195 - 197 6,740
FEERE Nicholas John Mayhew - 8294 8,844 3,65 234 497 21,525
BUFdiTES Independent non-executive directors
FERBRE Robert Tsai-To Sze 475 - - - - - 475
BRI Seng-Lee Chan 637 - - - - - 637
ERERE David Wai-Hung Tam 529 - - - - - 529
EhERE Blair Chilton Pickerell 635 - - - - - 635
At Total 2,776 25416 23,132 10,503 234 694 62,755

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R




13. &REMEZSMAL

i) BENE=AREt
LGB T Tl g)m

13. THE EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

(i) The aggregate emoluments

HKS$ 000 2024 2023

2 BB BYF m R E AR,
SERARRARVER S

HA LA 2 EBERE 9 2 T
RNEN B Z BEHR

(i) SHRSWAATEIBEAERMT

Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and other

allowances 37,229 38,784
Performance-related bonus 47,652 48,478
Other share-based compensation payment 962 609
Employer’s contribution to retirement benefit

schemes 1,390 1,385

87,233 89,256

(ii) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are
within the following bands:

A&
Number of individuals
2024 2023
FETTHKS
9,000,001 - 9,500,000 1 -
10,500,001 - 11,000,000 - 1
11,000,001 - 11,500,000 1 -
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 - 1
20,000,001 - 20,500,000 1 1
21,500,001 - 22,000,000 - 1
22,000,001 - 22,500,000 1 -
24,000,001 - 24,500,000 1 -
24,500,001 - 25,000,000 - 1
5 5

I mEEB WA Z AR B3I (20234F :
M) AEE - HIRMNESMNESE8ETEL
it 2 MisE120 o

AER > AEBELERTIAMIRSRAAL
SO FAINASMBERER 2 HE
BERA{E

titsiRSWAALTHMEEERMETZ
FEFHRMIARGMN A EE 2 FERTRIREZR
TEAT

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
were the emoluments of 3 (2023: 3) Directors. Their respective
Directors’ emoluments have been included in Note 12 above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above

included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services
rendered and the Group’s performance for the financial year.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

253



254

14. ESERERE
LGB T AT

14. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

HEER B4 E?@%’*Zﬁfﬁ)
WELET EMEH <™=

DB -
—EREMKREBR
—HithEMEE
—ERURIE K B TSR

15. 718
EBENER T IRB E ARG ERHUEF UK

#16.5% (20237 : 16.5%) TR o AR
BRI T T 3G (i sHE SRR R A kA &2
B MG Z IRITINE ST E -

FIERBERAREEINERER  MEN
ZEMERRBANRHEER] THREPR
BRZMERIFEHHET -

AEBBESEGFEERMEBIE _BE
RAMELERN -FBRFEENELZAER
FEREMER M T IDERE S WKL
2025F 151 HFBAE R I A AR RS
HIREARENBHREN ZEBBRESE
RIS REE o IRIF2023FTB B ] 2 BB G 5T
ERFE 1258 FEBE ST " AERELER
HEERBBRARREDKANSKEZR
=o

AERIEFESHE R ENBZEBER
B-ZEET BERAFERERRE "HER
STEZ BRREERIS%RERE  RAEEE
BN FR RS °

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

HKS’000 2024 2023

New allowances net of allowance releases 1,870,572 851,311

Recoveries of amounts previously written off (79,211) (120,000)
1,791,361 731,311

Attributable to:

- Loans and advances to customers 1,776,627 798,335

- Other financial assets 16,787 (36,369)

- Loan commitments and financial

guarantees (2,053) (30,655)

1,791,361 731,311

15. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on profits in Mainland China and Macau has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

The Group is within the scope of the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development Pillar Two model rules. The Hong
Kong government has issued the draft Pillar Two legislations
including a Qualified Domestic Minimum top-up tax, which
will come into effect from 1 January 2025. Since the Pillar two
legislation was not enacted or substantially enacted in Hong
Kong at the reporting date, the Group has no material current tax
exposure. The Group applies the exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments
to HKAS 12 issued in July 2023.

The Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to the Pillar
Two legislation for when it comes into effect. Under the draft
legislation, the Group is liable to pay a top-up tax if the effective tax
rate of a particular jurisdiction, calculated based on the Pillar two
legislation is below the of a particular 15% minimum rate.



15. RIE®

15. TAXATION (continued)

LGB FTsm HKS'000 2024 2023
REEMRIE . Current income tax:
—&5BFER - Hong Kong profits tax 247,699 231,268
—FREI P B2 R PSR IE - Mainland China’s and Macau’s taxation 42,497 38,320
—RIBEFERR (B & - Under/(over)-provision in prior years 71,742 (39,522)
EIERRTE (Mi5E35) - Deferred income tax (Note 35):
—RAN BN = ERE L KL - Origination and reversal of timing

differences (27,011) 51,301
—iBR (F:0) MFEES1E - Utilisation/(recognition) of tax losses 95 (95)

335,022 281,272

AEBFRANDN 2 RBARNGES

INFEFITIR RSt E 2 IERBERU T ¢

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as

follows:
LGB T TU5m HK$’000 2024 2023
PRI AT Profit before taxation 2,395,369 2,141,578
FEBRIEREI6S%:TE Z RIE Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate
of 16.5% 395,237 353,360
MRISREIRN Tax effects of:
HMBERZ FERZE Different taxation rates in other countries 22,012 13,094
EERBRZUIA Income not subject to taxation (83,143) (39,734)
TEEIAAYSZ Expenses not deductible 53,467 136,468
MMRBERI| I BENT & Results of associates and jointly controlled
HENEHIERE 2 & entities reported net of tax (117,242) (120,115)
REMEEWEPERZIES Items recorded in other comprehensive
income (7,146) (22,279)
ERIBERAEEENRTSEIE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses 95 -
RREEERR, (858 & Under/(over)-provision in prior years 71,742 (39,522)
335,022 281,272
16. RE 16. DIVIDENDS
LGB T TSR HKS’000 2024 2023
BEIKFHRE | SREER2TETT Interim dividend paid of HK$0.27 (2023:
(20234 : 0.11387T) HK$0.11) per ordinary share 379,553 154,633
BORCREAR S | SREER039E T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.39 (2023:
(20234 : 0.49787T) HK$0.49) per ordinary share 548,243 688,818
927,796 843,451
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17. SREF

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2024 2023

(&) (B0

(HKS) (HK$)

FREF Earnings per share 379,553 154,633
B Basic 1.47 1.32
E Diluted 1.37 1.23

BREARBF %R R T2,060,347,00078 7T

(20234 : 1,860,306,0007870) RREAN T HETE
BRI D Z INAE 19 £41,405,752,1325% (2023
£ 1 1,405,752,1320%) 5tE

SRREERN TR R T1,922,898,00078 7T
(20234 : 1,723,528,00078 70) I & % & fE
5B & A B FE137,449,00078 7T (20234 .
136,778,00078 7T) FVHEEE M E » RENE 1T
EIBRR RN 2 I 39%81,405,752,132/% (2023
£F 1 1,405,752,1320%) A BMAHEBETE
BRI E FRAMNERZKRITHERR
REFE B IR AR H = INAE 198 i s 52

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$2,060,347,000 (2023: HK$1,860,306,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,405,752,132 (2023: 1,405,752,132) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$1,922,898,000 (2023: HK$1,723,528,000) after taking into
account of the dilutive effect of share of profits in an associate
in HK$137,449,000 (2023: HK$$136,778,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,405,752,132 (2023: 1,405,752,132) ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the effect of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The share options outstanding
during the year and at the year end have no dilutive effect on the

o weighted average number of ordinary shares.
2024 2023
REERERF] CBIET oD Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000) 2,060,347 1,860,306
FEIEEE AR F B ENE (BT o) Dilutive effect of share of profits in an
associate (HK$’000) (137,449) (136,778)
AMNEESREERN & (BT i) Profit used to determine diluted earnings per
share(HK$’000) 1,922,898 1,723,528
18. IRERIEIRITHUAER 18. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
LOGBBEFnsn HKS 000 2024 2023
RERERITHERR Cash and balances with banks 2,671,719 3,072,114
BRI R AR Money at call and short notice 11,461,153 13,324,813
14,132,872 16,396,927
Nkx L RBEZERS Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (1,147) (1,157)
14,131,725 16,395,770

256  KEMRITEEAMRAE 2024FF R




19. FHEXRZABNESFRUATEHFE
BEEHAABRGNEMEE

19. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

LB F T sm HKS’000 2024 2023
BER 5 ARmNES Trading securities:
B85 Debt securities:
—&HELm - Listed in Hong Kong 9,790 14,406
—JE Lt - Unlisted 1,996,563 1,725,435
2,006,353 1,739,841
MR EstEEEEH T ABEN Financial assets at fair value through profit or
TREE loss:
KEES . Investment funds:
—&HELm - Listed in Hong Kong 4,272 8,216
4,272 8,216
a&t Total 2,010,625 1,748,057
BIEEESHEAFNE ! Included within debt securities are:
—EEZER ERREEE) - Treasury bills which are cash equivalents 597,920 1,725,135
—HAEEERR - Other treasury bills 1,398,443 -
— &S - Government bonds 9,647 14,706
—HMEFEES - Other debt securities 343 -
2,006,353 1,739,841
FRER TIANE By issuers:
— R R R AN AR SRR T - Central governments and central banks 2,006,010 1,739,841
—b - Corporate entities 4,272 8,216
—NEE - Public sector entities 343 -
2,010,625 1,748,057

7220244 522023128331 H » il
BIEFBGERGE.

v

OH

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no certificates of

deposit held included in the above balances.
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20. TAEEMTAE 20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

122024 F 128318 KRB ITETRAEHNEER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives
KeEREATFENT : contracts and their fair values as of 31 December 2024 were as
follows:

LGB FTi3)m HKS’000
1) FHERZRRZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
i) SMEDTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRRAEAEHN Forward and futures contracts
B8 AR A INERR Currency options purchased and written
RIE HEH =I5 1A Cross currency interest rate swaps
Z) FIEGTHET A b) Interest rate derivatives
FI==i5 57 Interest rate swaps
) BT T A ¢) Equity derivatives
B AR A e 1 R Equity options purchased and written

BERZEGBRZITHE T ESE ~  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for

&® a5t trading
2) FEEHRGRZIIETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEEUNFEE 2 a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
T A
FIZR = HA Interest rate swaps

BEESHRR 2 THE TESE ~  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for

&® a5t hedging
BREAZITEERIAEE Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(&R &5t (liabilities)
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20. fTEEMTA®

FR023F 2 A31AREBZ ITETRESNEE

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives

TEREAFENT : contracts and their fair values as of 31 December 2023 were as
follows:
e/ NFHE
sxerm Fair values
Contract/ BE =L
LCEMETFTu3T HKS’000 notional amount Assets Liabilities
1) FERGARZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
&) SMEVTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BEIRNAEEH Forward and futures contracts 183,067,007 878,718 (885,411)
B A Koot I PE R AR Currency options purchased and written 20,696,124 128,874 (121,144)
TG T 588 Cross currency interest rate swaps 874,545 13,361 (12,907)
) FIFEGTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FZEia 1 Interest rate swaps 3,689,125 34,352 (30,717)
7)) BaltiTETH ¢) Equity derivatives
A Rh e M HR Equity options purchased and written 433,584 6,779 (6,797)
T) BairETA d) Commodity derivatives
A mn iz A R R A Commodity forward and swaps 56,593 304 (327)
BEXGRAZITETESE,  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
&®B a5t trading
208,816,978 1,062,388 (1,057,303)
2) FEEFRRZTTETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
BR) ISE XA TFHEE A 1T a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
TA
DIESE: Interest rate swaps 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
BHEESHRRZTAETEBE ”  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
&B &5t for hedging
46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
BRI ITESMTAZE~  Total recognised derivative financial assets/
&®B a5t (liabilities) 255,691,221 3,566,149 (1,279,419)
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21. BIEEMKREMIRE

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

LOGBEFTUST HKS 000 2023
BEREREBR4EEE Gross loans and advances to customers 143,049,476
0BR © REERE Less: impairment allowances
—BEERL - Stage 1 (364,345)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (263,656)
—PEER3 - Stage 3 (485,255)
(1,113,256)
141,936,220
B EE Trade bills 2,060,317
Nkx REZERS Less: impairment allowances
—PEERL - Stage 1 (2,981)
—PEER - Stage 2 -
(2,981)
2,057,336
HAth& 2 (f35E30) Other assets (Note 30) 5,141,313
NFR ©BEZERE Less: impairment allowances
1571 - Stage 1 (6,979)
—PEER - Stage 2 (2,907)
—PEER3 - Stage3 (11,029)
(20,915)
5,120,398
RIEERREMERE Advances and other accounts

RITRITEEBRAR 2024F F5R

149,113,954



21, BIEEHREMIRE @

() BEERPERRBRZAEHERY
ARUNE :

ERERMBNEEREMEHERAGR
ERERFEZEBSAMEETFERZRE
KREFH SR ABEANREERREE
e LEEREZLEEE-

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases.
The contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased
asset at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

LGB T TR HK$’000 2024 2023
CEEMERE EINERAEEE Gross investment in finance lease receivables:
1FUR Not later than 1 year 774,223 960,410
1FEL EF2EF Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 598,896 660,989
2ED FEIF Later than 2 years and not later than 3 years 402,643 466,321
IEL EFESEFE Later than 3 years and not later than 5 years 411,730 397,624
SED Later than 5 years 1,821,471 1,478,151
4,008,963 3,963,495
MEREZ REIRZMEWA Unearned future finance income on finance
leases (1,018,513) (946,216)
MERERE S Net investment in finance leases 2,990,450 3,017,279
REREREFEZNNT The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
1FUR Not later than 1 year 642,140 810,108
1FEL EF2EF Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 495,275 530,845
2N EZE3F Later than 2 years and not later than 3 years 324,022 374,505
K Later than 3 years and not later than 5 years 291,132 319,335
SED Later than 5 years 1,237,881 982,486
2,990,450 3,017,279

72024F F2023F12831H ) IR ERE
KBEEEENIRS A B ERRIGREE

722024128311 » REBE Z BEEEBEEIET
Aoz REH SRR EH ST A
23,546,00075 7T (20234F © 29,418,000 7T) ©

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2024 and

2023.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2024 of the Group
amounted to HK$23,546,000 (2023: HK$29,418,000).
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2. UAFEI=BEEHtAEMEZE 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

W TR E E COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LGBWEF TS HKS'000 2024 2023
BE%ES Debt securities:
—&BLm - Listed in Hong Kong 11,891,064 10,976,354
— 5B T - Listed outside Hong Kong 20,513,422 15,729,976
—3E k™ - Unlisted 10,799,618 12,057,957
43,204,104 38,764,287
RS Equity securities:
—&EBL™m - Listed in Hong Kong 295 268
—JEEm™ - Unlisted 1,604,306 1,761,287
1,604,601 1,761,555
=Eil Total 44,808,705 40,525,842
BIEEERESRE - Included within debt securities are:
—FENENEE - Certificates of deposit held 62,749 361,139
—EEER ERREEB) - Treasury bills which are cash equivalents 59,717 1,489,951
—HAMEEZER - Other treasury bills 3,897,954 1,878,367
— BN &S - Government bonds 1,378,969 1,198,230
—HMEHE - Other debt securities 37,804,715 33,836,600
43,204,104 38,764,287
MR ESEEEEFHt AR M2 EE Financial assets at fair value through other
HEREEREITHREEN 2T - comprehensive income are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:
BT Debt securities:
— R R AR RERTT - Central governments and central banks 8,615,979 8,338,984
—RNERE - Public sector entities 2,840,468 1,799,394
—IRIT S EAh B RS - Banks and other financial institutions 12,886,437 9,422,100
—1b% - Corporate entities 18,861,220 19,203,809
43,204,104 38,764,287
RS Equity securities:
—1b% - Corporate entities 1,604,601 1,761,555
44,808,705 40,525,842
ETFUATHETEEHEH T AR MEEIL The equity instruments measured at fair value through other
mAVEREME T RERERFEAME  HR51E5 comprehensive income has been written off during the year and
$8747,400,00078 7T © FR2023FE RIAHRBHE AR its cumulative loss was HK$7,400,000. No equity instruments
FastE BEE st A 2 Ema#ER measured at fair value through other comprehensive income have
MTAKE been derecognised during 2023.
P ETREEMRESEEAREIERETRMES Unlisted equity securities mainly represent the Group’s equity
NREEMER X IIRBR RSP ED interests in financial institutions that provide payment gateway
MR o and cross-border payment services.
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23. LUBERRRATIIRIERIEE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

LOBIS 3T HKS 000 2024 2023
EFES Debt securities:
—&EBL™m - Listed in Hong Kong 12,878,232 13,549,372
—&HBLSN T - Listed outside Hong Kong 14,186,382 15,977,711
—3JEEm™ - Unlisted 8,489,756 9,886,223
35,554,370 39,413,306
0BR . REERE Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (31,093) (40,928)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (909) -
(32,002) (40,928)
EED Total 35,522,368 39,372,378
BIEEERESAE - Included within debt securities are:
—FAENERE - Certificates of deposit held 3,723,064 3,918,269
—EEER - Treasury bills 1,096,317 1,577,781
— &S - Government bonds 230,349 222,317
—HMEHE - Other debt securities 30,504,640 33,694,939
35,554,370 39,413,306
LSRR AT BRI SR E = Financial assets at amortised cost are
FEITISESER DI T analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
— FR DRI B R ORERTT - Central governments and central banks 1,326,666 1,800,098
— N - Public sector entities 1,731,208 2,031,319
—IRIT R E MRS - Banks and other financial institutions 12,718,386 13,394,699
—1b% - Corporate entities 19,778,110 22,187,190
35,554,370 39,413,306
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24. BHEATIIRE 24, INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

LOBIETF LT HKS 000 2024 2023
EIEEESE Share of net assets 7,430,902 7,097,508
e Goodwill 344,623 344,623

7,775,525 7,442,131
0B% . REERE Less: impairment allowances (5,242,715) (5,227,000)

2,532,810 2,215,131
DRARZAFE Fair value at 31 December 2,788,135 1,816,000

FERNREBRITZRENATEILREE The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging
BEERITHRR120245F F22023F 48 2 W i B o shown above is calculated with reference to the closing market
price of BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2024 and 2023.

1R2024F f22023F 12 B31H 2 E AR 2 F B The following is the key information relating to the associate as at
BT 31 December 2024 and 2023:
Frit#Em B AL
E=4 M B IE R, FTEER Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2024 2023

BEIRIT FREE A REM R1T
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 13.20%
LOBIETF 3T HKS'000 2024 2023
151H At 1 January 2,215,131 2,159,290
FE(LPRIR 1B 24 Share of results, net of tax 677,425 688,957
E(ERIR B IR E EEHEE Share of investment revaluation reserve, net

of tax 196,408 248,924
BUWRE Dividend received (287,558) (198,237)
B ELE Impairment loss charged (15,715) (552,000)
REIHE 2 A Loss on deemed disposal (1) (10)
PERE RN HMARE Exchange differences and other adjustments (252,880) (131,793)
12H31H At 31 December 2,532,810 2,215,131

HERAEBRTEERRITNESEEZIRAR The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ

&= AR AE2 BAMERARTARIGIE » IR E B on the basis of its representation on the board of directors and
RAHEBIRTAEEARTE participation in policy-making process.
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24. BHEATIIRE @

(FF) ERRITZREREER

BREIRT AT 2EHEEA12831
B E 20245 %2023 12831 H IE FEHIR » 4

EEEOEERRITEAHNE E20245F12
B313 k1288 2 Bk s o

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the results of
BOCQ were included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial
statements announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31

December 2024.
20244 20234F
12A31H 12431H
At At
31 December 31 December
LGBWEF TS HK$’000 2024 2023
BEEIRTZBERTEIR R RERN Selected information from the statement of
financial position of BOCQ
IRE& MEFRIFITHAER Cash and balances with central banks 36,583,788 43,939,228
FEUELANERTT S Rt A8 Due from other banks and financial
institutions 36,538,992 50,810,875
BERERREBHR Loans and advances to customers 452,933,002 418,020,589
Hithem&EE Other financial assets 368,856,532 308,278,102
Hth&EE Other assets 13,194,854 13,118,284
BEAS Total assets 908,107,168 834,167,078
FE(IHRRERTT Due to central banks 57,737,531 68,498,716
BREFER BN IRIT R EMERIEERIE Customer deposits, and amounts due to
banks and other financial institutions 562,026,060 507,495,786
HtEmas Other financial liabilities 213,133,907 186,771,430
Hith& (s Other liabilities 7,614,944 6,304,844
aEast Total liabilities 840,512,442 769,070,776
HmAast Total equity 67,594,726 65,096,302
0B EfthigEmtE TR Less: Other equity instruments (8,556,162) (8,860,278)
0Bk R IEFIRERR SR Less: Non-controlling interests (2,854,732) (2,614,518)
ZiERKERE LRSS Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 56,183,832 53,621,506
BERITZREERSSHEARIRT Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’
REMBPIRRANZ IREENRR equity to the carrying amount in DSB’s
consolidated financial statements
AIIRITIEGAC SRR A DSB’s share of total shareholders’ equity 7,411,277 7,076,999
BN mE R AT ERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 364,248 365,132
0BR : EE Less: Impairment (5,242,715) (5,227,000)
IRMEE Carrying amount 2,532,810 2,215,131
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24. BEATRE @

() EBRITZHEEMBER @

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20244 20234F

12H31H 128314

At At

31 December 31 December

LCBEF T HKS'000 2024 2023
FEALEEIRIT AR ERAEE Share of BOCQ’s contingent liabilities and

commitments 10,881,549 9,372,253

20244 20234F

1H1H 1H1H

202445 Z20235F

12H31H 12A31H

1E121E A 1F12fE A

12 months 12 months

from from

1 January 1 January

2024 to 2023 to

31 December 31 December

LGBEF TS HKS'000 2024 2023
BEIRTZEEWRRER Selected income statement information of

BOCQ

) BULA Net interest income 11,020,047 11,523,285

FIRBE RATERA Net fee and commission income 961,209 453,826

EXREEER Loan impairment charges (3,453,086) (3,577,073)

RIBZH Tax expense (945,291) (947,152)

EEHR Profit for the year 5,978,897 5,767,658

HthemEmls Other comprehensive income 1,467,705 1,913,724

2EINEHLEER Total comprehensive income 7,446,602 7,681,382

EWEEIRTTIRE Dividend received from BOCQ 287,558 198,237
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24. BHEATIIRE @

(2) REZRBERFH R 2024F 58 2 BB

12202468308 EAFERNIREE o &
BEMGLR REERARENGREEERR
ZRFAE ) M ER1F R (EF51816,000,00078 7T ©
1202468300 2 A ETV 2 EERIRTTH
RS HWHE > U EERELRF Mt
2o02024F 128310 ZEBEZ AT ESRK
IREE AR B Z IRESB IR B LS i
RETTRER OB

STEAMBITZEAR BRI EEIEZE
B2 REBBRF EAIBTWREERTZ
RER BRI EZREEFTER SN
IR E A A 21,213,000,00078 7T > 2 E
BEB R ERNIR T ZEERTRLEE-

[22023F 128310 AEBIEEERITZERE
ZAFEBEREREE RESE L EUE
FREE (FREE) MEEZEERITA
WEIHEMZEEZREE FREBEDE
REBEEB G2 EERTERAMARKE KR
B EREEEERITHHNERZIERER
BEFERBRZARRKRNAIERFER E
BMIRRESRERATE - ERNEREE
AR ZAIRENLNZRETNARMIBERNCE
EIRITIRASA AT & o

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024

At 30 June 2024, the fair value was below the carrying value. An
impairment assessment was performed and the carrying value was
written down to the fair value less costs of disposal and recorded
an impairment charge of HK$16 million. The fair value of the
investment as at 30 June 2024 was calculated with reference to the
closing market price of BOCQ’s H-shares as at 30 June 2024, which
was measured at the Level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. At 31
December 2024, the fair value of the investment was higher than
the carrying value. As there was no change in service potential
of the investment, there was no assessment of impairment or its
reversal.

The calculation of DSB’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash
dividend received by DSB. Provided that the investment continues
to be held at or above the original cost of the investment of
HK$1,213 million, impairment made on the investment does not
affect DSB’s capital adequacy.

For the position as at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
Group’s investment in BOCQ was below the carrying amount, the
impairment test was performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation
used discounted cash flow projections based on management’s
estimates of BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future,
and the estimated probable exit value in future after considering
the growth of BOCQ and its net asset value for the medium and
longer term. The discount rate applied to the VIU calculation was
estimated with reference to BOCQ’s cost of equity, which was
publicly available in the market.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

267



268

24. BEATRE @

(2) REZRERFH R 2024F 58 2 BB
@

ETHEABEFSEUARERREZINEE
R AEELE B RMAREETSE
HExBECERURRAEEREBEZZ2HE
BB AFHURMEEERRITZR
MBERRHEAERBRITARRKIEARAZH
HhEHATHERE EEEEERITZREK
RERETEEEEBFERHE-

REtEH2023F 12831 H AEE R EEIRTE
BENREMGETTIREZEAZREHNT

EERFEER

8BRS L

BETRE (1)

FRLUE St T RS R B SR BB
AR

5 MEMBREARNERERUSEEREE-
MEIRRBERIBST ENAAEIREK 2023F 2
AR IRE 2515% 1018 SR IRAI PR St B BV E A
BEEZEMER-

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024 (Continued)

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable
amount of the investment, the Group considered all relevant
factors including market views and qualitative factors to ensure
that the inputs to the VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments
needed to be made to reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ
and also market outlook for the medium and longer term that
were relevant in projecting BOCQ’s future performance. Significant
management judgement was required in estimating the future
cash flows of BOCQ.

The key inputs underlying our impairment assessment on the
Group’s investment in BOCQ as at 31 December 2023 was as
follows:

Annual profit growth rate N F2%%E4%
Ranging from

2% - 4%

Dividend payout ratio 28.2%
Discount rate (Note) 12.0%
Price-to-Book (“PB”) ratio for estimation of potential future 0.26

recovery value under different holding periods

Note: Post-tax discount rate is used to calculate the VIU using the post-tax cash
flows. The post-tax discount rate is subsequently grossed up to pre-tax
discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate for 2023 was 15%. The calculated
VIU using post-tax and pre-tax is the same.



24. BHEATIIRE @

(Z) BEZHERF Rt 2024E /R 2 HiE
@

TREPERENASEMOENEABE

ZBENGEREBENTZE LU THERBRE
REEHEE—EASHUCBENERE-

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2024 (Continued)

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
inputs which Management considers as reasonable and possible.
It reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to the change of

LN —IBE T8 A B TR e SEFE each key input. It is possible that more than one favourable and/or
—BFRIHIR unfavourable change may occur at the same time.
ARfEE AR EE
Favourable change Unfavourable change
FREEN EREERN
IS, Tk
2003E 2023 Increasein  {FAEE Decreasein  fEFIEE
BEET in HKS million ViU ViU ViU ViU
FEERMIERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 40 2,255 -1% (40) 2,175
REIRE LR Dividend payout ratio +5% 124 2,339 5% (124) 2,091
ARIRE Discount rate -25E 25 2,240 +255 34 (25) 2,190
-25 bps +25 bps
iRE PB ratio +1% 52 2,267 13 (52) 2,163
+1bp -1bp

RIFEI 20235 12331H 2Rl EE B it
BAZENFRAEN2H B EN TSR
FEMETT 2 5t K BR 2 EREERK
ZEMBEMERRZER (BE1EE22022F12831
HERRZ R RER MEHELH8EM
BEE oA BN REE A EE
M2023F 125318 Z ARRE T RFTAERIE -
RARABEREERZ IO EERTES
B OBRE E2022F 128310 2 RetEESHE
4,675,000,000/8 7018 2 BREIE » X ERBES
B 743552,000,00078 7T © AL » FR2023FFERHTIG
AL (B 1 5552,000,00078 T A AR 5% 3% B 1102023
F12831H Z1B1E £2,215,000,00078 7T ©

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2023, which took into account the sensitivity of the
key inputs shown above and the effects of possible interaction of
these inputs, the recoverable amount, as determined by the VIU
calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as
of 31 December 2022) and valuation inputs, remained below the
carrying amount. The impairment test performed by the Group
for the position as at 31 December 2023 concluded that the
recoverable amount, based on the VIU calculation, was assessed
as lower than the carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative
impairment allowance made up to 31 December 2022 of HK$4,675
million, by HK$552 million. As a result, an additional impairment
charge of HK$552 million was recognised in the year of 2023 to
reduce the value of the investment to HK$2,215 million at 31
December 2023.
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25. HEEHIEEKRE 25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

LGB T TR HKS000 2024 2023
FEETRRAD > AR AS Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(LURBE R RS Share of post-acquisition reserves 118,097 109,946
138,097 129,946
5220244 B22023 512 531 H B B 6| B RS0 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
I 2024 and 2023:
LA
ZBE7L
Percentage
St EL FTEEB R EMEL of effective
218 Place of Principal activities and interest in
Name incorporation place of operation ownership
REHERARAR 5B BEER &8
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REMETARAR 5B BESER BB
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%
R ERARAR 5B BESER BB
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%
NEBTRBIZERBERAB Z HaAMER The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held
Bl KHIRTTHR A - MIRKHE5E B R A B & iR by DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust
HEmMARABNIRHMERERAT ZEE Company Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned
)= YNCIE subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding Limited.
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26. MIBAE

F20245F 128310 KRB 2B ARIUIT -

26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024:
Fr{&BRIA B LE =
Percentage of shares held . B8
i@
Particulars of
NERTE FTEEHK st L BiE f#%  issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity  Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
AHERTTARAE $R1T 58 100% - HK$6,200,000,000
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong
EBA(1931)BRAT mEE 58 100% - HK$400,000,000
MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong
AP HEBRAR mEE 58 100% - HK$25,000,000
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong
South Development Limited SEER HBREUBEES 100% - us$1
Investment holding  British Virgin Islands
AFERTT (PED) BIRAE] R17 FhEE A REFE - 100% RMB1,200,000,000
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China
RFIEEIRTTIR BIR AT $R1T s - 100%  MOP300,000,000
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau
RIRERERBRAE Rbpaga HE - 100% HK$500,000
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking ~ Hong Kong
AHEFEBRAE IR RS 58 - 100% HK$100,000
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong
SEERG 58 - 100% HK$9,998
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
KEER HE - 100% HK$1
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
KEER HE - 100% HK$1
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
AHESFBRAE BHER5 58 - 100% HK$10,000,000
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing ~ Hong Kong
mEE 58 - 100% HK$50,000
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong
WERE ) egid - 100% Uss1
CWL Prosper Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands
MARTTARAE WERE HE - 100%  HK$487,749,696
Fortune Land Corporation Limited  Property investment Hong Kong
18R BN (EB) BRAT mEE HE - 100%  HK$450,000,000
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong
ZEMBERAT e HE - 100% HK$1,000
OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong
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26. [IBAE] @)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
FRiGRR A E S LE

Percentage of shares held B

ZiBRA A
Particulars of

ATERE FTEEWK SRS I=E;; f#%  issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity  Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
HEXRERRAT WERE HE - 100% HK$20
Vanishing Border Investment Property investment Hong Kong
Services Limited

WERE HERUS - 100% Uss1
Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands

WERE HERURS - 100% Uss1
Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands

WERE HERURS - 100% Uss2
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands
WOIBEREREAT mEx aHE 100% - HKS$1
Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong
WHEEBERAE mEx aHE 100% - HKS$1
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited  Inactive Hong Kong
Well Idea Enterprises Limited MELE HBREYEES 100% - uss1

Property investment

FRAFIRITAERARRARARATSN £
HPFAEAEIIAMA AT SHEIN BB LM
FEEMAILL HAS R AEMMILZFAA
AR ARl

BRAFNIRTT (PED) ARAR EPIFHERTT
RINBRAT K L FIBREER BN EMAL
MHYABSN HAthABIIEEBLE

AHTERTT () BRA B F2008F 78 EFE
R EE AL EREPEARENEZ X
HEtA MARABL (ZREE -SEBIRM
ZIERE) o

1220245118268 » K RRHIR R 1TARA

BIZFIBERMNBEEAMIRT REEEM
ARAIRTTZZBWB AT

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

British Virgin Islands

Except for DSB which is a public limited company, all the above
companies are private companies, or, if incorporated outside Hong
Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a Hong Kong
incorporated private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong
specified above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China
in July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely
funded by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the
laws of the People’s Republic of China.

On 26 November 2024, DSFH transferred to DSB the entire
shareholding of Fortune Land Corporation Limited, which then
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of DSB.



27. BHEREIEE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

LOEETFlism HKS 000
& Cost
WUFIBIRR At 1 January 2024 and
N4F1F31H 31 December 2024
LERE /B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
WHEIBIAK At 1January 2024 and
W4ELFIH 31 December 2024
REME Carrying value
2024F12H318 At 31 December 2024
BUER BREG
il mYEE  BVEE
BVEE Core Customer BEES
BE Contract deposit  relationship ki Club =5
WEBTFTAT HKS 000 Goodwill  intangibles intangibles  intangibles  Tradename  debentures Total
R Cost
ABEIRIARK At 1 January 2023 and
WBEDF3A 31 December 2023 811,690 26,499 80,583 40777 58252 11463 1,029,264
RIEAE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
ABEIRIARK At 1 January 2023 and
035128318 31 December 2023 98,239 26,499 80,583 40,777 - - 246,098
REE Carrying value
03E1A31H At 31 December 2023 713,451 - - - 58,252 11,463 783,166

BERAMRZ BTN EESRGHN ZOER
RhERREETEERURERIRREZET
FoERFZ ] AEHBHE B R EERS
AECARRTESFASEREBRERMU

B AR RIRR BRI

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using
a diminishing balance method. Trade name and club debentures
are carried as an asset of indefinite life and is tested annually
for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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27. BERELEE®

BENEEREANERRERB-NE
BOREEBPACREELEMN (REELE
i) - HEDEMEZTIIN T

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU”) identified according to business segments in line with the
internal management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill
allocation is presented below.

LGB T3 HKS 000
D% Cost
20241518 K At 1 January 2024 and

20245F12831H 31 December 2024
RERE Accumulated impairment
20241818 K At 1 January 2024 and

2024128318 31 December 2024
IREME Carrying value
2024F12H31H At 31 December 2024

HE BPY
Hong Kong Macau
REEIRTT B ALRTT RITER
Corporate Personal Banking =5

LOEBIETF L5 HKS'000 Banking Banking Business Total
%S Cost
2023F1818 % At 1 January 2023 and

2023F12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
KERE Accumulated impairment
202317318 At 1 January 2023 and

2023F12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 - - 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
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271. BERETEE ®
() BEREREEZRENR

AmEASEEREANR  HEEREFEZF
BEEMEEZREEEBUYIOEEE-
ZtEEAHESEEEASREE ) LIsET
B FERIRE TN KZ EEAFH EUWAF
I8 R E 29.8% (20234 © 9.6%) B LAE E 1
FEERUETF2.2% (20235 | 2.0%) HERIFEEELL
BEXKE - ZSFEHEEEEASERH
HERMBEES BN ERRZERNTER
RN EEB R 2 HEFTRE FTER 2
IR BN AEE 2 EAR A NI EF 98
11.68% (2023£F : 11.23%) © B BEFHEIELIE
VT EEGEMZHEAER

PR IR R8> A

72024F12831H » REBRPIIRTERIRS

EH B ol ol&EaEsTE Y EiREE ED
28R 1) 48,000,000/ 7T (20234F : 387,000,000/

7T) ©

AU THRRRELELE ZREELEN
PRI EERFIEREE EMERER)

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually
by comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based
on value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash
flow projections prepared by the Senior Management based on
the latest 5-year business plan, taking into account projected
average net interest income growth rate of 9.8% (2023: 9.6%),
and projected annual growth rate of net profit, in perpetuity with
2.2% (2023: 2.0%) constant growth rate after the fifth year. The
5-year business plan was developed by the Senior Management
based on their evaluation of the businesses and associated
projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the relevant CGU
and the conditions in which such businesses will operate over
the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the
Group’s weighted average cost of capital at 11.68% (2023: 11.23%).
The impairment assessment was not based on valuation by
independent professional valuer.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Group’s Macau banking
business is estimated to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU
(“Surplus”) as at 31 December 2024 by HK$48 million (2023:
HKS$387 million).

The recoverable amount of this CGU would equal to its carrying
amount (i.e. no Surplus) if the key assumptions were to change as
follows:

2024 2023
2] S H z

From To From To

FAEURA I E R Average net interest income growth rate 9.8% 9.6% 8.9% 6.5%
REEEX Long-term growth rate 2.2% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%
ALIRER Discount rate 11.68% 11.83% 11.23% 12.52%
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27. BERENEE ®
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BRESELBARAEBHAIKEEE B
we

SR e FET ZRERETLER2REMET
BEBER 5 Z23% R B EFEE K PHE &)
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28. TERHMEEEE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

(Continued)
Impact of possible changes in key assumptions (Continued)

Senior Management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes in other key assumptions, and they have not
identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount of
Macau’s banking business CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually
using pre-tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar market
transactions, projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in
perpetuity after the fifth year. The discount rate of 11.68% (2023:
11.23%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

Impairment testing in respect of club debentures is performed
annually by comparing the book value of each club debenture with
its fair value less cost of disposal. Impairment loss is recognised
when the market value is below the book value.

No impairment losses on goodwill, trade name and club
debentures were identified in the year (2023: Nil).

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

LOEETF T 5T HKS'000 2024 2023
TE R Premises, furniture and equipment 2,649,230 2,358,835
FREEE Right-of-use assets 352,098 454,352

3,001,328 2,813,187

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R
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() 1TE R RE

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment

RIS
)il
Furniture,
equipment
1TE and motor &%
LB TF A3 HKS 000 Premises vehicles Total
HE2023F 12831 HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FYREFEE Opening net book amount 1,879,671 425,170 2,304,841
g Additions - 275,081 275,081
HE Disposals (12,309) (2,676) (14,985)
e (f5ELL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (67,514) (135,654) (203,168)
ERER Exchange difference (2,020) (914) (2,934)
FRIRERE Closing net book amount 1,797,828 561,007 2,358,835
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023
[B%:N Cost 2,526,221 1,679,623 4,205,844
RIEINTE Accumulated depreciation (728,393) (1,118,616) (1,847,009)
IRMEHE Net book amount 1,797,828 561,007 2,358,835
HE2024F12831HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
FYEREHE Opening net book amount 1,797,828 561,007 2,358,835
ik Additions - 274,474 274,474
HE Disposals = (2,799) (2,799)
e (fF5EL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (66,326) (170,054) (236,380)

ERDBEREMEATE
ENETEAKREYE
ERER

FRIREFE
20244F12H31H

BN

RIEFE

IREPE

Reclassification from investment properties to

premises

Reclassification from premises to investment

properties
Exchange difference

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2024
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

314,388 = 314,388
(54,467) = (54,467)
(2,855) (1,966) (4,821)
1,988,568 660,662 2,649,230

2,750,899 1,898,238 4,649,137
(762,331)  (1,237,576)  (1,999,907)

1,988,568 660,662 2,649,230
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28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZREFEEIE The net book value of premises comprises:
LUBIEF T3 HKS’000 2024 2023
FRfEH Leaseholds
EEEBRFE ZFHEAELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term

(TF10ZE50F 2 fS) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,585,149 1,377,661
EEBLIMNTE ZFHELN Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term

(TF10ZE50F 2 fS) lease (between 10-50 years) 403,419 420,167

1,988,568 1,797,828

(2) #HE (b) Leases
LM IR AR EEBIF AR BAZHERME This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
#ho lessee.

(i) B EHMBEAREZEEE

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the

REMFHIKRNEBEEZ S8R

o following amounts relating to leases:
LUBE T 5 HKS 000 2024 2023
ERAREE Right-of-use assets
YES Properties 352,098 454,352
HEESE (BIETEHEMIRE &ER Lease liabilities (included in

other accounts and accruals) 377,340 481,829

2024 F I EERNHIZERAEEES
97,419,0007 77 (20234 © 97,015,00075 7T) ©

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2024 financial
year were HK$97,419,000 (2023: HK$97,015,000).
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(i) FEFFARE Wtk EFE

e mEANEFEEZEBIIRN
e

28.

(b)

PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Leases (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

PysE
LGEIETF LT HK$’000 Note 2024 2023
FREEEZINES N Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
LES Properties 11 139,841 145,846
FEZYH BRFENEZH-—HESH) Interest expense (included
in interest expense - lease
liabilities) 7 11,586 7,669
BRIREEREEEEEZ W Expense relating to short-term
(BRETEREMEEEESZ L leases and low-value assets
TEIETE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 3,819 2,338

20204F N EMEE RS M EEES
153,134,000/ 7T (20234 © 156,226,000/8
70) ©

(iii) ZEEZHEZERALEAAK

AREEHEZIEYZE - 1220234F 522024
FroHEAE—RAIEEZIE BT H
FR{ER] SEMTRE U T 5! (iv) Bl > IR B
o

MERRENBERBZEREIZHEZ
REMFRR R M5t o FRHEARBEHEZ
BEZERFRE@SIN HESRILRM
ERRZRN - HEZEENFFAEREE
iR EREERY

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was HK$153,134,000
(2023: HK$156,226,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2023
and 2024, but may have extension options as described in (iv)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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28. TEREMEEEE @

() HE @®
(iv) FERRALILEFERE
EERKIDEEEAETANERS] 2
ETYERERN -RAEESENEE
RERZBEMS  ERAZSIRREE
RNREEESE T AZEIEEZEE
F#R IE SR O R AL EMIES HE
INGEEE

29. IREYE

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Leases (Continued)
(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LGB T TSR HKS000 2024 2023
1H1H At 1 January 761,604 802,691
g Additions 262,687 -
BT EAREYE Reclassification from premises to investment

properties 100,000 -
B ERBEYESTE Reclassification from investment properties

to premises (314,388) -
BHAFERE Fair value losses on revaluation (101,882) (41,087)
12H31H At 31 December 708,021 761,604

RERFFAZEER R ERT

Unrealised gains or losses recognised in
consolidated income statement relating to
those assets held at the end of the year

—REEE - Fair value losses (101,882) (41,087)
KNEYEZ R R EEE ! The net book value of investment properties comprises:
LOBWEFT s HKS000 2024 2023
FRfEH Leaseholds
EEBFE 2L Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(TE10E505F 2 1) lease (between 10-50 years) 600,797 646,110

B BLINTE Z ALY
(TF10E= 504 > RS

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term
lease (between 10-50 years) 107,224 115,494

708,021 761,604
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29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group's investment properties were last revalued at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by adopting the direct comparison
approach or the income capitalisation approach. Under
direct comparison approach, valuation is referenced to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation
and Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited
for investment properties in Macau. The key inputs was the unit
sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings. A decrease in unit sale
rate would result in decrease in fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same percentage and vice versa.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best
use of the property from the perspective of market participants.

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are
classified as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”.

Under income capitalisation approach, investment properties of
which the fair value is determined on the basis of capitalisation of
net incomes with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary
income potential. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental and inversely correlated to the
market yields.
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Valuation technique(s)

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

FrRIRRZ S

Unobservable input(s)

EE

REMFE ERLBIETT A

Investment properties Direct comparison approach

WARBEEETTE

Income capitalisation
approach

30. Hth&E

HHEE BB

Unit sale rate

MG

(B

Market yields (reversionary
yield)

hiHAE

Market rental

30. OTHER ASSETS

FF5R1,2758 7T E109,800/8 7T

(2023%F © G F770R1,45578 7T 2£102,00075 7T)
HK$1,275 to HK$109,800 per square foot
(2023: HK$1,455 to HK$102,000 per square foot)

2.00%Z3.00%
(2023:2.00%%3.15%)
2.00% to 3.00%
(2023:2.00% to 3.15%)

BTHR20BTEMETT

(20235 | ¥ 5267570 8878 7T)
HK$24 to HK$84 per square foot
(2023: HK$26 to HKS$88 per square foot)

LOBIET i HKS000 2024 2023
eSS EINPEE] Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,818,993 3,272,721
FESTHUA Accrued income 1,815,939 1,746,420
Hth Others 117,569 122,172
4,752,501 5,141,313
3. FHEXZRAENAaR 31. TRADING LIABILITIES
LOBIET 3T HKS000 2024 2023
JHEEE R M EEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 498,069 99,853
3. BEES 32. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
LOBIET 5T HKS000 2024 2023
JERRE R RIFR Demand deposits and current accounts 28,332,359 26,312,731
HEGFEXR Savings deposits 40,301,479 34,682,959
ERA BRI Time, call and notice deposits 132,934,213 146,238,008
201,568,051 207,233,698

BRER BRI FEERON FREEMME R F
MEBABER-

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer
deposits carry variable interest rates.



33. BBITHEIG
LGB F AT

33. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

HKS000 2024 2023

SRR R R T SRR A RS AT E
HIPERERYR

220245 5720235 Y » REBE KRB R VIBHER]
RIS EERIEETIEREAUATESER
HE s Af8xo

NEBFIEBETEIE DRI GAE
By EEE U P32 AR {E181,000,00078 70
(20234 : 59,000,000 7T) ©

34. BEGH
LGB FpAT 3T

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest rate risk) 4,294,996 2,428,028

During 2024 and 2023, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HKS1
million lower (2023: HK$9 million higher) than the above carrying
amount.

34. SUBORDINATED NOTES

HKS000 2024 2023

BESHH R AR T B A RS AT E
HIPEERIIAR

225,000,0003= 70F2 20295 EIEARY E B B EETRS GE ()
300,000,0003= 7o F* 20315 FIEARY E B B ERETR GE (2))

250,000,0003= 70F* 20335 EIHARY E B B EER G (R))

20244 22023 N » ANEEE R B R WA TS
IS E R BEESAUATEF=HHE
et AB= o

At amortised cost with fair value hedge

adjustments (for hedging interest

rate risk):
US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (a)) - 1,754,856
US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (b)) 2,197,913 2,158,805
US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

Rate Notes due 2033 (Note (c)) 1,949,001 2,002,984

4,146,914 5,916,645

During 2024 and 2023, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or
loss.
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BTN R E S ZREANIERESE
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Bl ) Z1E&F) o I EEFAE7220335F11515H E
Bl o BRI 4 BRI H 42028118150 c & 1T
HEHSEEMEBER EEA7315% §+F
FE—R-HE MEBRTEENEBEEDRE
B FENANEEETAERSFHEEEE
BHEEBEMSET BESTECERTEL
#f > RIRITAI U EEmEEERIE GES
D) B o KFIRITIRE B —EPRIRITET L F
KSR EBNE TR Sigihzm R
FRREE T R AR TR B

AEBTIHEBEGRRIBRIZSOENS
R REE L LR 2 BR 1B =124,000,00078 7T
(20234F : 137,000,000 7T) ©

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

34.

Note:

(a)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 15 January 2029
with an optional redemption date falling on 15 January 2024. Interest
at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole
but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed
rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling on
2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis points. DSB
may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the
Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on SOFR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
November 2023 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 November 2033 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 November 2028. Interest at 7.375% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 295 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on SOFR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$124

milli

on higher (2023: HK$137 million higher) than the above

carrying amount.



35. IRIEFRIE

FIERRIEE ERBENHIHRERERE SEN
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35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as

follows:
LGB T TU5m HKS 000 2024 2023
FIERIEE Deferred income tax assets 159,482 165,823
EERIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities (94,261) (103,699)

EERIEE E B RIREEREZ R 2 E8E
BB 2 Fast BER D0 T

LGB T Tlg)m

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected
date of recovery and settlement are as follows:

HKS 000 2024 2023

BEIERIREE
—AIER(E A BRI 2 IEIER TR & 2

Deferred income tax assets:
- Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than

12 months 299,817 299,438
EERRIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—ETRERBEEZIEILRIBERE - Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (234,596) (237,314)
65,221 62,124
RIEFRIEAR B AR BN T - The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
LOGBWEFT 3T HKS'000 2024 2023
1H1H At 1 January 62,124 223,142
BA—ENEAR Acquisition of a subsidiary (181) =
PiraRERIRARIBEIE (1) Tax credit/(charged) to the
(Hffz¥15) consolidated income statement
(Note 15) 26,916 (51,206)
RHEMZ2EREARIES B Tax charged to other
(BfF5E39) comprehensive income (Note 39) (20,771) (108,662)
PERAER Exchange difference (2,867) (1,150)
12H31H At 31 December 65,221 62,124
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EERBEERABENREAFEY
BEREEREEER THIH 2GRN T

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

288 T

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

IREMIEEE © Deferred income tax assets:
wE B
EEREE nE ReEHft
Impairment  RIFIHE Deferred
allowances  Accelerated ~ TRTEETIE  expenses  REEf
and tax Tax and  Investment a5
LGBIEF TS HKS 000 provisions  depreciation losses others revaluation Total
2231518 At 1 January 2023 205,353 . . 4,890 79136 347379
RIEILRIBAEEN DB Reclassified from deferred income tax
liabilities - 427 - - 416 843
PErEREIRA (ZE) /I (Charged)/credit to the consolidated
income statement (22,332) 200 95 17,490 - (4,547)
Eﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁ'ﬁiﬂﬁ( TR Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (43,181) (43,181)
ERER Exchange difference (844) - - (212) - (1,056)
2023F12A31H8 K2024F181H At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 202,177 627 95 60,168 36,371 299,438
P EIERARIE L) Credited)(charged) to the consolidated
income statement 25,756 (309) (95) 7,979 - 33,331
ﬁ’f HitzEkaEAS Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (29,387) (29,387)
ERER Exchange difference (2,294) - = (1,2711) = (3,565)
2044125310 At 31 December 2024 225,639 318 - 66,376 6,98 299,817
IRIERRIEEE © Deferred income tax liabilities:
wE
EERERE mE RENE
Impairment RIIE Bfh
allowances Accelerated Investment  IXRESH(H
and s tax  properties Investment A
LEMETF o5 HKS 000 provisions  Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
203F181H At 1 January 2023 - - 81,345 6,232 36,660 124237
HIEERIEAGEENDE Reclassified to deferred income tax assets - - 41 - 416 843
PEEERATE,/ (g Charged|(credited) to the consolidated
income statement 34 10,851 26,980 (222) 9,016 46,659
REMZAREAS Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - 65,481 65,481
BERER Exchange difference - - - - 9% 9%
A3EDRANAR04ELAIT A1 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 34 10,851 108,752 6010 111667 237,314
BA—REMEBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 181 - - 181
PR EUREIRA (B8 /i (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
income statement (34) (1,880) 3,207 (733) 5,855 6,415
REMEERE AL Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - (8,616) (8,616)
EREE Exchange difference - (343) - - (355) (698)
2024E12P31H At 31 December 2024 - 8,628 112,140 5277 108551 234,59

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R
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35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The deferred income tax charged to other comprehensive income
during the year is as follows:

HKS000 2024 2023

PR 2 ATERE :
—LUATERE EREBEA
Hfh2 EUEIERERE (HEi0)

36. BIERATZAEER

FREVBRRRANREEEER AT —
REERERETXBPIEE Z AR5

LGB T T3

Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
- financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive

income (Note 39)

(20,771) (108,662)

36. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
captions are balances with group companies arising from
transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

HKS000 2024 2023

SRR AT Z 5 ER
KIEEMREMIRE
BERER
Hthik B KR TER

HRERWE AR &
BIEER R HEIRE
BEREW
HhiR B KTl

Balances from the holding company

Advances and other accounts 598 11,093

Deposits from customers 341,691 178,248

Other accounts and accruals 4,361 1
Balances from fellow subsidiaries

Advances and other accounts 7,387 7,748

Deposits from customers 620,130 520,090

Other accounts and accruals 4,418 3,781
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37. ABBERIKIE
() B KL

R12B318 BRI RICEEE  BREER
KREABETCEE ERAENT

LGB T Tlug)m

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

HKS000 2024 2023

EENERRERER X

(2) FE*iE

FEBEERBRINAERETERZEH
TEGNREMEEERBIMESERNT

Expenditure contracted but not provided for 20,821 50,729

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit
to customers are as follows:

AR E

Contract amount
LOGBEF TS HKS 000 2024 2023
HEEREEAER Direct credit substitutes 249,050 1,572,787
RS SAIEE Transaction-related contingencies 395,699 356,134
BB S SAIEE Trade-related contingencies 450,156 393,322

ARG BRI R /ETR ST BN 2 A e Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 57,897,554 62,066,805
HAthAE Other commitments 5,200,505 4,383,439
64,192,964 68,772,487

EEEMSINESEE
Credit risk weighted amount
LCBEF T s HKS 000 2024 2023
RABERERE Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,155,128 2,119,544

EEREINEHEBRE@RITE (EX) A
R)Frst&E e

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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(R) BIEHERZEE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

LGB T TR HK$ 000 2024 2023
BRI ERZAREER Trading assets and financial
EREEEFAEER investments pledged to secure
liabilities 1,143,336 2,473,697
—H  EOEE - of which: under repurchase agreements 744,891 2,373,752
BRRzEESE Amount of liabilities secured 1,130,231 2,397,069
—HA  ZOEHE - of which: under repurchase
agreements 732,140 2,297,216

ERIITREER R ENEEME HIERIFE
BRERZBEE -ZFXHHREFKIBEEN
A5 (BIE[OIAE R SRR B A AR
BRENEERFT 2 T2 /) IR T

(T) rEEHEKIE

MAEEZ RABABHEAN  BABIBUHYIE
REREMRN KRB 2 REEE N TRABEE
LI

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted
to secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These
transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and
customary to collateralised transactions including repurchase
agreements, and include assets pledged to cover short positions
and to facilitate settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating

leases are as follows:

LGB TF TR HKS000 2024 2023
1FEMUA Within 1 year 14,747 12,260
1FZ2F Between 1 and 2 years 5,193 8,470
2EFEE3F Between 2 and 3 years 2,881 834
IFEAF Between 3 and 4 years 1,431 -
AFESE Between 4 and 5 years 1,431 -
SELE Later than 5 years 6,201 -

31,884 21,564

ISk > AREBEA A A > B 520244 52023
FLRAIBESTATMHARBHBZHEE %
ZEHEMEZ N 2HENRBRESSTS
5,400,000/ 77 (2023£F : 10,259,00087T) ©

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number
of leases as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 that have not yet
commenced. The aggregate lease payments payable under these

leases amount to HK$5,400,000 (2023: HK$10,259,000).
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38. figads

38. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
(7 s 88 [N
Number Share Number Share
@G BT R ¢ Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: of shares capital of shares capital
181H K12A31H At 1 January and 31 December 1,405,752,132 6,894,438  1,405,752,132 6,894,438

AT FR20145E58 27 H RGN 2 SRR ESHEIE
112024458 27H fE R © 122024 5H31H » KA
B E IR ER AR ST B o B R4 B fEZE2024
F12A318 1E > W EFIRAERIE IR TS
ORGSR H o

RENBEFERSRITHRASREDREST
BB ZRBRETERTRMNDHBEESHU
I

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 May 2014
had expired on 27 May 2024. On 31 May 2024, the shareholders
of the Company approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme. No share options had been granted under the new share
option scheme from the date of its adoption to 31 December 2024.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
options under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives
during the year are as follows:

RREPRHEE
Number of shares
in the options
LOBIET o3 HKS 000 2024 2023
181H At 1 January 1,200,000 1,200,000
RERET Granted during the year - -
REERTTEE BUB R Exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year (1,200,000) -
12831H At 31 December - 1,200,000

1A BNARETEZDREFTIIT ¢

Particulars of the outstanding options under the Scheme as at 31
December are as follows:

RO EE
ey A Number of shares
Number of options in the options
RIERITERE Date of grant and exercise price 2024 2023 2024 2023
2018548261 » A THIE 26 April 2018, at an exercise price of
ER1824E 7T HK$18.24 per share - 15 - 1,200,000

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R




39. A 39. RESERVES

LEE TR HKS w0

W4FIAIR At1 January 2024

AT HELIATESE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred
BESEHAEMEENEE  toincome statement upon disposal
EHTEFRAATEZEER  ofdebtinstruments atfair value
B EIRR through other comprehensive

income upon derecognition

WATEZEEEEHA Net change in fair value of debt

EMEERENERTIAZ instruments at fair value through

NFEESTE other comprehensive income
SRR HEERNEENT  Share of other comprehensive income
ZHft2 AR of an associate accounted for
using the equity method

WATETEEHEEA Net change in fair value of equity
A ERENERIETE instruments at fair value through

NFEEHTE other comprehensive income
RESMHEZHZELRE  Deferredincome tax on movements
(f3s5) in investment revaluation reserve
(Note 35)

WATEZEEEEHA Net change in allowance for expected
Eth2ANENERTIAZ creditlosses of debt instruments
LS R at fairvalue through other

comprehensive income

TR BT DBMATE  Reclassification of et change n far
SEEERHHAENZENE  value of equity instruments at fair
EBRIETEZATEZEFE  valuethrough other comprehensive

income upon derecognition
BEBNNETEARENEL  Reservesarising from reclassification of
Bk premises to investment properties

BMERM TR REE Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments
BN RRN Exchange diferences arising on
ERZE translation of he financil
statements of foreign entities

ERDRNARMENZEE  Transfer of share-based payment

reserve
FERR Profitfor the year
ABFRERE 2023 inal dividend
WUETERE 2024 interim dividend

20458315 At 31 December 2024
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39. f&#fE @

39. RESERVES (continued)

BE1LANHIEFE
Year ended 31 December
LOBIETF 3T HKS000 2024 2023
BERFRERTRNZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
RIS, BIRRBERE paid included in retained earnings
(Hfz¥16) (Note 16) 548,243 688,818
2 Note:

RERITAE BEMIRTAUEERBINERIR
ERBMHFREERFABLUN Z (B RE R - M
ZELE R (BB RORPIE EIRIT R ARIRTT (F
B DAREEBRTERIKUEHEEABN
ZAMEERTE ZEERERRAIKETFRRZ
RECE - EEREZEHANEBLERETH
o W BRI RS E R

112024512831 H » A ¥ ER1T B $5E544,500,00078 7T

(20234 : 616,530,000/87T0) 2 S REIF AR EMHE L
HIHHGE—RHEE REBUEGSREEN S
F5IE

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS
in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve, which also covers
BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2024, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$544,500,000 (2023: HK$616,530,000) first against its consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against its
consolidated retained earnings.
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39. RESERVES (continued)

LRI AER RERA
EEfEE REBREE 2 &)
GokE Premises  Investment EREE —fREE  Sharebased Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Compensation Earnings ait
LA HKS o Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
NBEIRIH At1 January 2023 (220,986) 210,120 97,609 (493,815) 700,254 4929 22,661,183 23,019,294
WATEEEHEREA Net change i fai value of debt
Etr2ANENERTIAZ instruments at far value through
NHEEEEE other comprehensive income - - 298210 - - - - 298,270
EIERER G ARIENEEAR)  Share of other comprehensive income
ZEMEENE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 248,924 - - - - 248924
LATEEEEEEHA Net change in far value of equity
Et2ARBOERETAZ  nstruments atfairvalue through
NHEEEEE other comprehensive income - - 1,086,307 - - - - 1,086,307
REEMRESHZBIERE  Deferedincome tax on movements
(f35) ininvestment revaluation reserve
(Note 35) - - (108,662) - - - - (108,662)
WATETEEHEREA Net change in allowance for expected
AthAERENERTIAZ creditlosses of debt instruments
FHEEFREEEE atfair value through other
comprehensive income - - 3612 - - - - 3612
BMERETE IS Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (36,007) (36,007)
AERMIBRBRRD Exchange differences arising on
EREE translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - (156,209) - - - (156,209)
LIRS ALRIAEAZERE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
CEEREMRR compensation - - - - - 5 - 5
R Profitfor the year - - - - - - 1,860,306 1,860,306
WRERERE 2022 final dividend - - - - - - (407,668) (407,668)
WBETERE 2023 interim dividend - - - - - - (154,633) (154633)
ABEDRA At 31 Decerber 2023 (209%) W00 L5600 (650024 700254 498 BB 2568509
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4. FEIMERIETHR
LGB T AT

40. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

HKS000 2024 2023

150,000,0003= TcBIMER E T A

1202212588 » KITIRITRITREEER
BRENE FH A %150,000,0003 77, 2 HEHA R
ERBEREBSF BN —RELRES (148
Sh—IREAREF) o ZREIN—RELRFESFD
B A B K AT & 1 12A110,000,000E 75 K
40,000,000E T2 BIE3HE ©

HEBBTERBNXWTIRIT REEEE
ERSERZ BT HIBERER s8R MEHEES
—REAE T /R SRIARIIRTREE
EBE BRI —IREAE T2 AR SR
HERBTERFMERZ -

HETTHEH20271F12H8H 2 BEE M ER
HiE IR ERB R B11.5% FFEZ (T —
Ko Hig o HEEIM— AR E AT S AR IED]) K
BEEEBUSSFEE]— BRERSFHRE
BB B 15 25 B N788%5 F o IRIRERIN— AR S

585 AR AR PR E 2 FRTE > KHTER
THEREEBUHKESZ N REBUE 2 KE
BARE Rt

FESEBTERASLAME KARITARN
EEMEEHIEZIREZNEUREE
ERRLIFAE GFEED) BRI —RE AT

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

US$150,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities 311,416 311,416

On 8 December 2022, DSB issued Basel Ill-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities
(the “AT1 Capital Securities”) with a total notional principal of
US$150,000,000. The AT1 Capital Securities were subscribed in full
by the Company and DSFH to the extent of US$110,000,000 and
US$40,000,000 respectively.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to
the amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies DSB that
in the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that
a write-off is necessary, without which DSB would become non-
viable.

Distribution at 11.5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December
2027. Thereafter, if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed,
the distribution rate will be reset every 5 years and it will bear
distribution at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus
788 basis points. DSB has the right to cancel distribution payment,
subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions
of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution cancelled shall
not be cumulative.

DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at
par either on the optional redemption date or any distribution
payment date thereafter.
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and losses

Al Z EEa I RS BB P IR REE on certain investments and fixed assets to net cash used in
HERE operating activities
LGB T TisR HKS 000 2024 2023
ORETREMETEEZ W R E51ER] Operating profit before gains and losses
ZEE A on certain investments and fixed assets 1,803,512 2,015,876
) BUA Net interest income (5,288,117) (4,815,435)
B B WEm Dividend income (14,500) (32,746)
EERERE Credit impairment losses 1,791,361 731,311
= Depreciation 376,221 349,014
BREIE 2 BRiisE $E8 Advances written off net of recoveries (1,353,308) (1,284,633)
L/{Hﬂ&iﬁuﬂﬂﬁ@%%’@%ﬁ@‘%2%%1% Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation - 55
BUFIE Interest received 12,015,789 11,162,675
BEFE Interest paid (6,881,071) (5,411,362)
BWRE Dividend received 14,500 32,746
SEEEKMBEEFE 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,464,387 2,747,501
SEBERBEZES . Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—RERERITHESRREIEREBE - cash and balances with banks and money
318 B Z i@ s e ERTE R at call and short notice with an original
maturity beyond three months (2,389,609) 757,616
FHAHBIB3E A 2 TIRITHFM - placements with banks with an original
maturity beyond three months (1,075,989) 3,597,492
—FHER ZFTRES - trading securities (1,393,727) 458,177
—TEERTA ~derivative financial instruments 42,914 616,869
— A EFEEEHEFHF ABENETHEE - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 3,944 1,087
—B5EE - trade bills 583,778 1,606,671
— B P ERRER - loans and advances to customers 4,675,191 (6,519,241)
—HERERE - other accounts receivable 457,346 (692,289)
— A EFEEEHEFHF AR MEE - financial assets at fair value through other
W EHEE comprehensive income (5,692,704) 68,922
—DUBERA AT BRI SR E - financial assets at amortised cost 3,681,151 (6,351,827)
—IRITER - deposits from banks (548,808) (1,627,449)
—FHERXZRENER - trading liabilities 398,216 (630,638)
—BRENR - deposits from customers (5,665,647) 7,441,497
— B T1FAREE - certificates of deposit issued 1,889,361 (1,796,485)
—HEMSIRE &RTER - other accounts payable and accruals 441,740 (374,428)
P s AR Exchange adjustments 339,069 (43,440)
&S EBIPTAIIRE Cash absorbed by operating activities (1,789,387) (739,965)
SZBEITHNEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of deposit issued (139,733) (176,733)
EEAEAFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (287,635) (215,925)
BB Pyt BRI R Mainland China and Macau tax paid (17,519) (12,314)
KEREPTRIRE SR Net cash used in operating activities (2,234,274) (1,144,937)
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() EREFEFERA HERERRER
B eiEEE R EERA U TEAZ
THGEeR REEEZCEEREAKRAR
BRI EREREHEEZ TR

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible
to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

LGB T TR HKS 000 2024 2023
REMIEIRITIVAERR Cash and balances with banks 2,246,486 2,675,034
[REIHA B1E3(E A S A T Z i@ s e BRTE R Money at call and short notice with

an original maturity within three months 8,454,639 12,679,755
[REIFRHTE3E A S T 2 RITHFER Placements with banks with an

original maturity within three months 1,577,086 394,929
BIERFER ZRRNEFN T BERE Treasury bills included in trading securities 597,920 1,725,135

BERUATEFSEEHES T ARMEERTAY
EREBEENZ EERERE

FER B B REFR A RERTTHIAE BR425,233,00078
75 (20234 : 397,080,000/870) ERIRERER
REEE I RE MNIREBEETE TREREIR
ITHVAEERIBRIB T o

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Treasury bills included in financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income 59,717 1,489,951

12,935,848 18,964,804

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$425,233,000 (2023:
HK$397,080,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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TRFMAERRERE LS 2 B EES,
SRR RIFREZ 2 REMELHZ
85 EHREAEARKREBSRFEER
ERGRSRESMEGERANDESRELH
RERZBR-

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

RERMEEE
pd=lrick e
Total
HEaE BEED FESFIE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
LB TF o5 HKS 000 liabilities notes payable activities
72023F151H At 1 January 2023 533,534 3,801,495 51,949 4,386,978
MBEIRES R &) . Changes from financing cash flows:
TNBEETRERE Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REHKESZHE debt securities issued - - (309,761) (309,761)
BITRERR Issue of subordinated notes - 1,939,796 - 1,939,796
BEREaE Repayment of lease liabilities (148,553) - - (148,553)
BEIRE 2 BEiREE Total changes from financing cash flows (148,553) 1,939,796 (309,761) 1,481,482
HAthE s . Other changes:
B TREEEKERE Interest accrued on subordinated notes and debt
ZIEETFIE securities issued - - 328,257 328,257
MSEEER Additions to lease liabilities 97,015 - - 97,015
ERER Exchange difference (167) 7,376 - 7,209
NTEE R Fair value hedge adjustment - 167,978 - 167,978
H S5 Total other changes 96,848 175,354 328,257 600,459
7202351248310 At 31 December 2023 481,829 5,916,645 70,445 6,468,919
ERER Exchange difference (1,897) - - (1,897)
202461810 At 1 January 2024 479,932 5,916,645 70,445 6,467,022
WMERS R &8 Changes from financing cash flows:
SNBEETRERS Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt
RE#HESZHE securities issued - - (384,929) (384,929)
BITREED Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,759,714) - (1,759,714)
EEHEARE Repayment of lease liabilities (140,677) = = (140,677)
MERERZEEEE Total changes from financing cash flows (140,677) (1,759,714) (384,929) (2,285,320)
Hthgs) Other changes:
BETREEBRETE Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ZIEEHFIE debt securities issued - - 344,230 344,230
MgHEAE Additions to lease liabilities 38,085 - - 38,085
ERER Exchange difference - (25,658) - (25,658)
NEEH TR Fair value hedge adjustment - 15,641 - 15,641
Hfth& g4z Total other changes 38,085 (10,017) 344,230 372,298
1420245 12F31H At 31 December 2024 377,340 4,146,914 29,746 4,554,000
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42. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are shown as below.

HKS000 2024 2023

F220245F 5720235 Eit 2 FTE BRARR A —
BB AR WEAANATE] o

3. AREALZRS

BEREALAZFIATARENERIBEEE
flm—7 AE S —HEFHMBREER
ROETREAZE] - HEEMARAL
RAHFERIHEBAEATER  REALT
THAR B RREAL

20244 [ 20235 » AEE BB EE A T E1E
REBZERAB -BRIIE AT ERAE
ZRENEEFERAEBFENRAETEAR
BHZ RNEIETLSIERFERER S - AAF]
B TESTRRAANER 2 GREMHER
xR BHZENTYE (F) SR B
BEREZRGETER ZEEEREH
BREKRREOEEREZHE BA2IFE
BREZRZIRBAEEZ ERER B
Bt — IR EERREL AT ERIE
MR EARABIRREBH mET

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at 31 December
- Loans and advances 111 108

Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
- Loans and advances 447 185

The above relevant transactions in 2024 and 2023 were all
transacted by a subsidiary and nil by the Company.

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

During 2024 and 2023, the Group entered into various continuing
connected transactions with related parties including the holding
company, fellow subsidiaries of the Group, companies directly or
indirectly controlled or significantly influenced by the shareholders
or directors of the holding company. These, as described in Note
(a) below and being continuing connected transactions, had been
reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors
in their review of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Based on their review and enquiry with management, the
Company’s independent non-executive directors were satisfied
that all of the continuing connected transactions were conducted
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from
the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of
Rule 14A.31 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK (the “Listing Rules”)) entered into with the holding company
and fellow subsidiaries during the year. The aggregate values of
these transactions are within or consistent with the respective
annual caps applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and
14A.54 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Income or expense arising from transactions involving
subsidiaries, namely DSB, BCM and another subsidiary of the
Group are as follows:

BE R
BER LT BRELEHARA
}RAF14AE B14AE
Excluded/
exempted
Subject to from
Chapter 14A  Chapter 14A
20244F 2024 of the of the
LB F oI5 HKS000 Listing Rules Listing Rules
BAFE GEi) Interest paid (Note (i) TEFR N/A (13,799)
BUERTTFEE GHi) Bank charges received (Note (i) TiEFA N/A 1,955
B ERERAEEIRE MBZ (i) Rentals and related building management
fee and charges received (Note (ii)) iEFH N/A 2,484
BENEERERAEEIEE RS Gii) Rentals and related building management
fee and charges paid (Note (jii)) iEFA N/A (3,293)
BUNEIEE (Fv)) Management fees received (Note (iv)) AT N/A 13,081
BURE RS RENE GEv) Insurance commission and referral
fees received (Note (v)) 29,375  AERAN/A
ERERE FEvi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (40,855) AEF N/A
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

300

subsidiaries (Continued)

BE, R
Bt L™ Bt EmRA
FRAIE14AE F14AE
Excluded/
exempted
Subject to from
Chapter 14A  Chapter 14A
20234F 2023 of the of the
LOEMEF o5 HKS 000 Listing Rules  Listing Rules
BEAFE G) Interest paid (Note (i) A N/A (21,391)
BWERTTFEE (FX) Bank charges received (Note (i) A N/A 1,705
B SRR AEEIRE M (i) Rentals and related building management
fee and charges received (Note (ii)) A N/A 2,484
BN REAESEE KA (Gii) Rentals and related building management
fee and charges paid (Note (jii)) A N/A (3,264)
BWERE Management fees received A N/A 12,131
BURIEAERENE GEv) Insurance commission and referral
fees received (Note (v)) 29,012 FEAN/A
ERERE (Vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (25,681) IR N/A
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43,
(a)

Note:

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Group provide standard banking services
to members of the holding company and fellow subsidiaries not being
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including
cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card
merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and
deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way as they
are provided to other customers of the Group under standard account
opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities and co-
brand credit card arrangements are provided under normal commercial
contracts and are at market standard. The standard market practice for
credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed term, but allow
for termination at the option of the bank by giving written notice. The
co-brand credit card arrangements between the Group and the DSFH
Group can be terminated after the first two years by either party giving
not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking services, by
their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term. Accordingly, the
banking arrangement between the Group and the DSFH Group are not for
a fixed term.

The banking services provided by the Company’s banking subsidiaries
to the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by the Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by the Group to the DSFH Group enables the Group
to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of the
banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of the Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual course
of their businesses. Such services and products include the taking of
deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and deposits at call).
Customers who place deposits with the banking subsidiaries of the Group
include members of the DSFH Group. For purposes of the Listing Rules, the
placing of deposits provided by members of the DSFH Group constitute
continuing connected transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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43,
(a)

Note:

(i)

(iif)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group (Continued)

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of the Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security over
the assets of the Group is granted in respect of such financial assistance.
On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are exempted from
complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. Other
banking services are fall to be de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76
and is exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSI and MIC and DSB and BCM

DSB and BCM have leased certain of their owned properties to members of
the DSFH Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited (“DSI”) and
Macau Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB
and BCM received from DSI and MIC the lease rentals, and air-conditioning
charges, building management charges and other utilities charges based
on the actual amount of costs incurred. The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of property by DSB from HS

A lease back agreement has been entered into by DSB with High Standard
Investment Limited (“HS”). Pursuant to which, DSB paid to HS the lease
rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management charges and
other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred.

With the implementation of HKFRS16, when the Group enter into a lease
transaction as a lessee with its fellow subsidiaries and recognise the right-
of-use asset, the lease transaction is regarded as an one-off connected
transaction (i.e. an acquisition of capital assets) under the definition of
transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(a). The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43,
(a)

Note:

(iv)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)
Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH Group

A computer and administrative services agreement has been entered
into by DSB with DSFH. Pursuant to which, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following (collectively,
the “Services”):

. computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

. administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

. secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH Group.

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB which
historically has been operating to provide administrative and computer
services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-recovery
basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a fee enables the
Group to continue to expand its scale and operational capabilities while
costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services are recovered from
the DSFH Group. On that basis, such continuing connected transactions
are exempted from complying with the reporting, disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.98 of the Listing Rules. Computer and administrative services are
exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC

On 31 December 2019,

(i)

(i)

(i)

DSI entered into the distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and distribution
of general insurance products through the branch network of
DSB for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January
2020 and ending on 31 December 2022;

Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) entered into the
distribution agreement and underlying agency agreements
with DSB for the marketing and distribution of general
insurance products through the branch network of DSB for a
fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2022; and

MIC entered into the distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with BCM for the marketing and distribution
of general insurance products through BCM's branch network
for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020
and ending on 31 December 2022.

To continue the distribution and agency arrangement between
members of the Group with members of DSFH Group, on 30
December 2022,

(i)

(i)

(i)

DSI entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and
distribution of general insurance products through the branch
network of DSB for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025;

DSIA entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and
distribution of general insurance products through the branch
network of DSB for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025; and

MIC entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with BCM for the marketing and
distribution of general insurance products through branch
network of BCM for a fixed term of three years with effect from
1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC
(Continued)

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by DSI with
DSB (the “New DSI Distribution Agreement”), DSB will market and
distribute such general insurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through its branch and
other distribution networks.

Pursuant to the New DSI Distribution Agreement, DSB entered into a
new agency agreement with DSI (the “New DSI Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of certain general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the New DSI Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by DSI to DSB shall, initially, be between 20%
and 55% (depending on the product type) of each year's premium
received in respect of a new or renewal policy, but which may vary
between the parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “New DSIA Distribution Agreement”), DSB markets and
distributes such general insurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time through its branch and other distribution
networks.

Pursuant to the New DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB entered
into a new agency agreement with DSIA (the “New DSIA Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
products in return for commission payments, as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the New DSIA Agency
Agreement, the commission payable by DSIA to DSB shall be 50%
of the commission earned by DSIA or at such rate as agreed by both
parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by MIC
with BCM (the “New MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets
and distributes such general insurance products of MIC as agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution networks.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2024

305



306

43. BRAEATZXRS @
() B AT REIRMBATINGS @

)

v) DERAREREREMEZENRE @

(F) BRORSRTIREE ~ A IR R AUIE B B P 1R B

STz iR RIE R @

RIBFEDRFIRE DS BRI
IRITELRPIRBEE B ES T — R
Ems] B RS (THsTRPIRERA
B BEGTNE S REREZM
SRIERBITRPRBEAEREZ
R B PR Bk — IR AR B 2 dR B R P
BEBTELZAS RN AHIRENE
RIRE 2 BFWEVRE BN F10%ZE50%
2R CERFERBERME) EBrH]4
& RSB o

FURT 5T AT IR B ~ AR B AUIE B R P
R IR (B THET D 8515581 M
B KRB R AT FREBEAERSER
ARHIRIT > MBFIREAEEPIE EIR
TEMSHNZBERS  SEMRT
BEHERRZERESLE HERE
mIBEESAREREITHME DS
Z Hfthali A Ko sz

EEMIIDHEBEBZEEEBEREE
w7 BEFERA=F > 52023F181H
AR > 202512831 H 4R LE o #izT K
iR s KRB AR RRPIFRM A
Wik 1B T I E)) & B8R4
BIEBREEET BEEHA=E B
2023F 185 1HEBAER > £2025%12H31H
BRI HEERAEREBERREZKX
MRBEX BEEBHWE A LE

LRI DRI IE R (BEE A
ZEBBEAMEIIZAERE) A FE
B RORPIT B IRTT R B R IR B R
BABBZ—MREBZH TR REE
ERITMBEADEFIRERERERKR
B BBAMIRTRBFIBERTZE
BIRTT DT R EM D IHBAE D IH AR
Bl = R i E DA B 3 < R B S A
ZHREWARHREBEA > HEEER
B

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC
(Continued)

Pursuant to the new MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM entered into a
new agency agreement with MIC (the “New MIC Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of certain general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the New MIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of general insurance
products shall, initially, be between 10% and 50% (depending on the
product type) of each year’s premium received in respect of new or
renewal policies, but which may vary between the parties from time
to time.

In respect of each of the New DSI, DSIA and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “New Distribution Agreements”), DSI
and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and MIC shall
reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses including the
registration fees for licences for the bank staff to sell insurance, sales
incentives, marketing expenses and other costs and expenses related
to the performance of the New Distribution Agreements.

Each of the New Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-
exclusive basis and will be for a three-year fixed term with effect from
1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. Each of the new
DSI, DSIA and MIC Agency Agreements (collectively the “New Agency
Agreements”) is on a mutually non-exclusive basis for a three-
year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31
December 2025, save that the provisions relating to the payment of
outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force until payment is
received in full.

The New Distribution Agreements and the New Agency Agreements
described above, including the commission rates set out in the
various sets of such Agreements, are consistent with normal
arrangements between banks or other insurance agents and
insurance companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and
will provide the Group with insurance products and services to be
offered to the customers of the banking subsidiaries of the Group.
The distribution of different types of insurance products through the
respective bank branches and other distribution networks of DSB
and BCM in return for a commission income to be paid by the DSFH
Group will also produce fee income which will be of benefit to the
Group.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b)

Business referral services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH. The cooperation agreement will be on a
mutually non-exclusive basis and for a fixed term of three-year
with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December
2022. On 30 December 2022, the Company entered into a new
cooperation agreement with DSFH (the “New Business Referral
Services Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years with effect
from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. Pursuant
to the New Business Referral Services Agreement, the Company
shall provide and shall procure members of the Group to, either
directly or via their sole agents (if any), provide members of the
DSFH Group with business referral and insurance brokerage services
in relation to obtaining applications for general insurance policies
to be underwritten by members of the DSFH Group. There is no
commitment on any member of the Group to refer to member(s)
of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or maximum
number and/or amount. Where concluded between the relevant
parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of such business
referral services shall be, if required, reduced into individual written
agreement(s). Payment under the New Business Referral Services
Agreement or the individual written agreements made thereunder
shall be made by cheque(s) or other payment means in arrears.

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of the Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.
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43,
(a)

Note:

(vi)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)
Insurance services provided by DSI and MIC

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with DSFH for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive). On 30 December 2022, the Company and
DSFH entered into a new cooperation agreement (the “New Cooperation
Agreement”) for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2023
and ended on 31 December 2025 (both days inclusive).

The general insurance policies underwritten by DSI and MIC are in the
name, and for the benefit, of members of the Group and their respective
customers.

DSI underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of members of the Group and their respective customers including
policies covering vehicle, property all risks, public liability, money,
electronic equipment, medical, employees’ compensation and group/
personal accident. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

MIC underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of BCM and its customers including policies covering medical,
personal accident, employees’ compensation, vehicle, properties, civil
liability and money. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable in
arrears on a monthly, yearly or other basis, depending on the type of
insurance policy.

The insurance policies are procured by the Group to enable certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with relevant
regulatory requirements in reducing risks to the Group’s assets, businesses
and operations and/or to provide additional services to the Group’s
customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the insurance services
provided by DSI and MIC are effective and the fees proposed by DSI and
MIC respectively are comparable to those offered by other insurance
companies in the market.

Under the New Cooperation Agreement, either party to the agreement
may terminate the agreement by giving one month notice in advance to
the other party without having to incur a penalty.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and
key management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits
from the Group’s key management personnel, their close
family members and entities controlled by them. For the
year ended 31 December, the following balances were
outstanding:

LOB T3 HKS000 2024 2023
BERRBSR Loans and advances 634 645
T Deposits 522,480 390,312
Rz B Undrawn commitments 3,335 3,274
R Guarantee = -
R Note:

2023F 12831 Z FARABNBEZERARZ
SHEBETED UREaEREEZ TR

(i) TEEEANSHZE

ARNBTEEEAEAEST  HFWE
EEEARETIFRHIEELR2

(R) B E AR RHEERBERZ X B RE
AR

FR O AEEBRIBEBHEATDEEIRT
287,558,00078 77 (20235 : 198,237,000787T) AR B
A e 122024128310 » AEE T HEIES
BEIRITEHNE S 29 (20235F | |BAERX) ©
FRAEERESHEBERERZER M
H1$20245F 12531 H 7 #4585 73303,041,0007E
70 (20234 113,786,000/ 7T) o A » AEH
W EI R+ [E] eI 22 5224,980 oooi%ﬁ: (20234 :
20,140,000787T) BZEUNA < 1B LER 5 M AG BRI
HHBEBEER—R rﬂ%ﬂ%#ﬂﬂ?%ﬂ%
FRE4 -

The amounts of deposits and undrawn commitments reported for the
position of 31 December 2023 have been revised to conform with current
year’s presentation.

(ii) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are directors and
their remunerations are included under Note 12.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Group received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$287,558,000 (2023: HK$198,237,000). As
at 31 December 2024, there is no outstanding balance of trade
bills issued by BOCQ accepted by the Group (2023: no outstanding
balance). During the year, the Group took deposits from jointly
controlled entities and the balance of deposit as at 31 December
2024 was HK$303,041,000 (2023: HK$113,786,000). During the
year, the Group received from a jointly controlled entity dividend
income of HK$24,980,000 (2023: HK$20,140,000). The transactions
and balances were provided in the ordinary course of business and
on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation
paid to directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 12.

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Schemes (the “DSBG
Share Option Schemes”) and the Share Option Schemes of its
holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“DSFH Share Option Schemes”), equity-settled share-based
compensation is available to directors and senior executives
of the Group.

(1) DSBG Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on
27 May 2014 (the “Old DSBG Share Option Scheme”)
had expired on 27 May 2024. On 31 May 2024, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Share
Option Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Share Option
Scheme since the date of its adoption to the date of its

wr expiration are as follows:
BEaEE
KEnER1T
£H
RREHEF
KRIPEE SRITEE
Number of &)
DSBG shares Exercise
171EHA in share price per
#¥FH8 =1l B AR Exercise options share
Date of grant Type Vesting period period granted (HKS)
2018F4526H DUPetEse 20185F4F26HE 201954H26HE 1,500,000 18.24
20235F4H26H 202454 526H
26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 -

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

26 April 2023 26 April 2024
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(2) DSFH Share Option Schemes

On 31 May 2024, the shareholders of DSFH approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
DSFH Share Option Scheme”) and, at the same time,
the termination of the share option scheme adopted
by DSFH on 27 May 2015 (the “Old DSFH Share Option
Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the Old DSFH
Share Option Scheme since the date of its adoption and
no further share options can be offered under the Old
DSFH Share Option Scheme after its termination.

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to
consolidated income statement is as follows:

LB F o5 HKS000 2024 2023
DU HESZ (S 2 R AR Equity-settled options = 55
ARG HES: {1 22 SRR 1 Equity-settled options

LI AR ERTT SR B EE SR AR R 5 BIPT I%
Tz LR EX BRI HINE T H
ZAFEDU=ZEAREEEREE
o

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the
Old DSBG Share Option Scheme described above, the fair
value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing
Model at the date when the options are granted.
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4. LUIRIn AEERINETE @ 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(FR) LABGHESZ (FLARRD A EREERINETE @ (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
() LR IEST (152081512 4 (a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
LARGRES: {1 2 SBRGHE @@ Equity-settled options (Continued)

BT 2 RS B R E T 91THE Movements in the number of share options granted and their
ZEEBWT related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
KISRTEEETREHE) AidREIRERE
0ld DSBG Share Option Scheme 0ld DSFH Share Option Scheme
2024 2023 2024 2023
RY %8 RyokE
KISEeT Yo EFA%E EYuRE
£@ £9 Kind Wi i

2R WERR o e EEER BB ope s
BHBE  GER  mone e BGMA GER  menE oo

Number of (B7)  Numberof ()~ Numberof (B Numberof (B
DSBG shares Weighted  DSBG shares Weighted * DSFH shares Weighted  DSFH shares Weighted
in share average in share average in share average inshare average
options  exercise price options  exercise price options  exercise price options  exercise price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
1E1R At 1 January 1,200,000 1824 1200000 1824 - - -

i Granted = - - B . . B

BiEEREHY Expired and lapsed (1,200,000) 18,24 - - - - -

B Brercised 5 8 - . , . B

2Rk Forfeited - - - - . = -

RAYA At31 December - - 10000 1824 - - -

LENAAAE Erercisable at 31 December - - 1,200,000 1824 - - -
122024F 128310 W WA RIKITHEZ There is no share options outstanding under the Old DSBG
AIIRITEBEDRES B 2 VA Share Option Scheme as of 31 December 2024 (2023:

(2023%F | RITEZRBREZTHES outstanding share options with exercise price of HK$18.24 and
182478 70 e L INAE A9 I 6757 8 BT 4% a weighted average remaining vesting period of 0.32 years). In
0.326F) BN AEBMEERERITEA respect of directors and senior executives of the Group, there
BR#E A2 Kb > 1020245F is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31 December 2024
RARRBERITEZ KR RE (2023: Nil).

(203%F  RAETTEZ M) °
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

AT 2021898 9H 434 0 HA
PR 4104

TABHAEERBZEAIEENES
(BEATESR FATEENE
VIFRITER) IR EKRSHEILE

glo

RN EEERATRED
12 BB RSB S 15RO E
ftheR o

RUERMEBEREDSEA &
/BB BITIRES

(1) KRR LRSS

STEI722021 98 9 H #5740 (722022453
B308 85T & it202455831H E—
FEFTAET) - BN BIEE2024
F12831H 1 BFHRMGBUT :

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) Share award scheme

The Company and DSFH have each established a share award
scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Share Award
Scheme” and the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” respectively)
as another long-term incentive plan to recognise the
contribution or value of certain employees or directors, and to
motivate and incentivise them in furtherance of the long-term
business objectives of the Group. Details of the schemes are
as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Both schemes were adopted on 9 September 2021 for a
term of 10 years.

Any employee or director (including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive
director) of the Company or any other member of the
Group is eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The Board or its Delegate shall determine the vesting
schedule, vesting criteria and other conditions in the
Award Letter.

The Award Shares should be acquired via on-market
purchase and/or issue of new shares.

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021 (updated
and amended on 30 March 2022 and further amended
and restated on 31 May 2024). Award shares granted
under the scheme since the date of its adoption till 31
December 2024 are as follows:

BRATE

BT IRERNEE (&)

#FH Number of FREHAR Fair value per share

Date of grant award shares granted Vesting period (HKS)

20225F1286H 358,100 2022F 12360 E 18.34
2027F12856H
6 December 2022 6 December 2022 -
6 December 2027

2023F483H 848,782 2023F4H3HE 20.15
20265F443H
3 April 2023 3 April 2023 -
3 April 2026

2024F483H 1,132,790 2024430 E 19.34
2027F443H
3 April 2024 3 April 2024 -
3 April 2027
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4. LUIRIn AEERINETE @ 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(FR) LABGHESZ (FLARRD A EREERINETE @ (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(Z) B174ZEIE1 2 6@ (b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) KIrERLERIDIZRIETE @ (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)
LEr e W AR RESE 2 D 1R BN Share award expense charged to consolidated income
BT statement is as follows:
LGB F U3 HKS000 2024 2023
D EhsZ Share award expense 19,795 14,054
BT RANIZENEE 2 ST Movements in the number of award shares granted as
follows:

R E R LB 21 RnsRITE B 1Rt 2I

DSFH Share Award Scheme DSBG Share Award Scheme
2024 2023 2024 2023
A& Kirert  AHSBITEER AHRTER
EhE (] auEE! bk S nEE
Number of Number of Number of Number of
DSFH shares DSFH shares DSBG shares DSBG shares

181H At 1 January 1,133,022 358,100 - -
i Granted 1,132,790 848,782 = -
=B Vested (353,862) (70,940) = -
e Lapsed (480) (2,920) = -
12A31H At 31 December 1,911,470 1,133,022 - -
SRz ATE Fair value per share HK$19.47 HK$19.70 = -
FRRDIRES B TRHFS - Details of award shares granted during the year:
SR ATE R AR
BFRA RS (87T) Vesting period

=] Number of award Fair value per share 2] £
Date of grant shares granted (HKS) From To
20245F4H3H 1,132,790 19.34 2024F4H3H 20275F4H3H
3 April 2024 3April2024 3 April 2027
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4. LURRInAERERNETE @ 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(FA) LABGHESZ (FLARRID A EREERINETE @ (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(Z) B174ZEIE1 2 6@ (b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) KIrERLERIDIZRIETE @ (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)
AP IREN ST RIRIERET B AR ¢ Remaining vesting periods of award shares outstanding:
2024FF12H31H 20235128315
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
SREEEE  ROBE TSEEEE  BONE
Remaining Number of Remaining Number of
RIPIRFHE Shares granted in vesting period shares  vesting period shares
202251286H 6 December 2022 2,935 212,820 3.93% 284,240
2.93 years 3.93 years
2023F453H 3 April 2023 1.25% 565,860 2265 848,782
1.25 years 2.26 years
2024F4H3H 3 April 2024 2.25% 1,132,790 - -
2.25y€ar§
FRaeTETEERBIUNIA As a reward to eligible employees to recognise their
REE2024F 124310 EFEFH contribution for the year ended 31 December 2024,
HERL 2024F ENRIBIEALEN 2024 performance bonus was advised to or paid to
2025FF3A28HE M T EIEESHS eligible employees including directors of the Group as
BERET AEENETETIKRES of 28 March 2025. For certain employees and directors
(MBRITEAE]) 5R2024FHIFRIT (“Senior Management”) of the Group, their 2024
AR ERIBFFELURIEZ H A performance bonus was granted in the form of deferred
AR R202FNEZFERG remuneration similar to prior years, and starting from
EARTTEA B BIERMS FE T IR RN & 2022 performance year, a portion of the deferred
T AR & AR (7 2B 518 22 UE remuneration payable to the Senior Management is in
IR 0 292024 RIRTEAL T & the form of deferred shares granted under the DSFH
MITHRA BN ZEE BELURES Share Award Scheme. The arrangement of the payment
WA WD » BRL20255E3H28 of 2024 performance bonus to Senior Management,
HR AR TES G R AN/ including granting to them deferred shares, was
BEEGRBE - ATERITHRABE approved by the Board of DSB and the Board of DSFH on
#2024 F RIFICAL RV IR EM & 2 1 28 March 2025. The deferred shares granted as a portion
ZERTFELERD  EEFENTS of the deferred remuneration to the Senior Management
REIRE NP BT EIEH AT as their 2024 performance bonus will be vested in three
BERVER B R R AR i = equal tranches over a three-year period, subject to
FHIRA D =B KRR vesting and satisfying other conditions per the bonus

and share award letter given to the Senior Management.
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4. LUIRIn AEERINETE @ 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

316
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(FR) LABGHESZ (FLARRD A EREERINETE @ (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(Z) B174ZEIE1 2 6@ (b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(2) KIERITEBRDIZEETE (2) DSBG Share Award Scheme
STEI72021 989 H KA (7220245 The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021
5H31HEETMET) o 852024412 (amended and restated on 31 May 2024). By the end of 31
H31H K&2023F 128310 » I LR December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no award share
R IRIBE IR TE B IRH 2B 5 was granted under DSBG Share Award Scheme.
S -
(Z) UIREZ SRS ES BRI TR (B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
RABAXHEMERII—BMIREZ T The Company and DSFH have each adopted cash-settled share-
B 150 2 B i 2 SRENRER St 8 (D524 TAHIR based incentive option schemes (hereinafter referred to as the
ITEESRBRENFT R K TS rAEEIER “DSBG Incentive Option Schemes” and the “DSFH Incentive Option
5T > ER BN EEN KRR 8 Schemes” respectively) as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise
employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Schemes

On 5 December 2023, the Company approved the adoption
of a new incentive option scheme (the “New DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of
the incentive option scheme adopted by the Company on 20
March 2018 (the “Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme”).

No further incentive options can be offered under the Old
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme after its termination, but the
provisions of the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
allow grantees to exercise incentive options granted prior to
the termination of the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of termination.

No incentive options had been granted under the New DSBG
Incentive Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Schemes (Continued)

Incentive options granted under the Old DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December

T 2024 are as follows:
SRITEHEE
(&)
#¥H =l R AR 1T{EHA Exercise price per
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HKS$)
201854526 H LIREX 2018F4H26HZE 2019FF4H26HZE 18.24
20237F4H26H 202454426 H
26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 -
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
20195F6H5H LIREX 20196 H5HE 20206550 E 13.66
20245F6H5H 20255F6H5H
5June 2019 Cash-settled 5June 2019 - 5 June 2020 -
5 June 2024 5 June 2025
2020 7H22H LIREX 2020F7THR2HE 2021F7THRAE 7.33
2025 7H22H 2026 7H22H
22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 - 22 July 2021 -
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
2020E8H28H LIREX 20205F8H28H E 20215F8H28H E 7.44
2025F8H 28 H 2026F8H28H
28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 - 28 August 2021 -
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
20214E10529H LIREX 20211052950 E 20224E10H29H E 7.46
20264F10H529H 20274E10529H
29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 - 29 October 2022 -
29 October 2026 29 October 2027
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Schemes

On 5 December 2023, DSFH approved the adoption of a new
incentive option scheme (the “New DSFH Incentive Option
Scheme”) and, at the same time, the termination of the
incentive option scheme adopted by DSFH on 20 March 2018
(the “Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme”).

No further incentive options can be offered under the Old
DSFH Incentive Option Scheme after its termination, but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
allow grantees to exercise incentive options granted prior to
the termination of the Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of termination.

No incentive options had been granted under the New DSFH
Incentive Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31
December 2024.

Incentive options granted under the Old DSFH Incentive
Option Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December
2024 which are related to employees of the Group are as

follows:

BRI1THEE
(&)
#FH b=l SREB AR 1T7fEHR  Exercise price per
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HKS)
2020495 28H LRSS A 2020F9H28H E 2021FF9H28HE 19.89

20255F9528H 20265F9528H

28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020 - 28 September 2021 -

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Schemes (Continued)

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Old DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme. The exercise
prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC on
behalf of the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on the
basis no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule
17.03E of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the SEHK and were determined as no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of DSBG's/DSFH’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of DSBG's/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the Old DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing
from the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to
the fulfilment of the vesting conditions set out in the option
award letter, the grantees may exercise their vested options.
No shares of the Company or DSFH will be issued to the
grantees of the options under the Old DSBG Incentive Option
Scheme and Old DSFH Incentive Option Scheme which
are essentially deferred cash incentive schemes linked to
the performance of the grantees and the share price of the
Company and DSFH.

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to
consolidated income statement is as follows:

HKS'000 2024 2023

DIRES A Z R

Cash-settled options - -
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4. LURR{n #ERERIEE @
(2) UREZ TP ERERERIM &) @
LUREZ T ZHEF

BRYERES ZEMNHE RHEINETITE
BZEET

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans (Continued)
Cash-settled options

Movements in the number of options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

KiRHERERAERN D) KiTERERBEN
0ld DSBG Incentive Option Scheme 0ld DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
2024 2023 2024 2023

R¥miEg RTIEE bRl 1 HTIEE
AT MBS AERAT I8! AR METY AR METY
EEER 16 E@ER I8 ) ffEE 4l e
L (Bm)  HRAHHE (#En - wkAYE (Bm)  FRHHE (&)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
DSBG average DSBG average DSFH average DSFH average
sharesin exercise shares in exercise sharesin exercise sharesin exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
1718 At1 January 13,550,000 1239 14,250,000 1231 400,000 19.89 400,000 1989
&7 Granted - - - - - - - -

[Shat:i Expired (4,300,000 1824 - - - - -

Bf7ff Erercised - - - - - - -
Bl Forfeited (150,000) 144 (700,000) 1062 - - - -
DA3IH At 31 December 9,100,000 911 13,550,000 1239 400,000 19.89 400,000 1989
LANFFTE Brercisable at 31 December 7,870,000 1008 10440000 1348 320,000 19.89 240,000 1949

FERFT 2RSS G2 EN > REBM
SHRAZEHELATENCAKREREA
12,000,000/ 7T (20234 © 12,000,000787T) ©

R AEEESRERITHRASRNER K
IRITE B EREEN B R A SRIER
EhER 58] 722024512831 A R TEZ IR
LM EFNITHEED BN F1.338T
F13.66/87T (20234 © 7.33B 0 218.2487T0) K
19.89787T (20234 : 19.89/87T) » KR ELINHEFS
FIERERBHID B 20674 (20234 © 1.226F) &
0.744F (20234 : 1.755F) ©

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has
recorded liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2023: HK$12,000,000) with
reference to the fair value of the options at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding cash-settled options
under the Old DSBG Incentive Option Scheme and the Old DSFH
Incentive Option Scheme related to directors and senior executives
of the Group have exercise price in the range of HK$7.33 to
HKS$13.66 (2023: HKS$7.33 to HK$18.24) and at HK$19.89 (2023:
HK$19.89) respectively, and a weighted average remaining vesting
period of 0.67 years (2023: 1.22 years) and 0.74 years (2023: 1.75
years) respectively.



45. TRIEERGRIVEHE

HEA AR LEH R TR P B A
EEMRBEZEHEINESEE WA BLUPER
EENHEHAPREREERFERRE

AR EmEEREEEESH

() KFREEIRRBEL EEAEHHR
MERAHEZEMEEREE

REBBBEESBHREEFRAT
RREE ) BERZIRPARPETREES
7R

REENRZIRKRENEBTREE &
IR B S B REHE 2 FEINTIE4AERE
Te FEA R IB4REE o 122024125 31 H %2023
128310 3R AR NARIB RS HHIEE30
Rz TEWRIE R FEIEE | BRIBR o IR 2
SREE o

LGEEET Tl g)m

45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As
at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 30. The amounts offset are shown below.

HKS 000 2024 2023

PR EBrhRIEE 2~ IREER

BB RIEE 2 IREER
FERE B RIGE P

() Z3EEEETHEEBEESMBERNR
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁZﬁmﬂﬁE&ﬁTﬁ

BRE PR R X

AEBEEA SRR S BT BRF RS
B2ih LUREEERE - FBREEHHER
€ —BHIRENEMN MESRRZHTZ
R Z TG > MPAE & R IER B
BRPEREE MR EBOSEMN FrE R
FLZRHGUBREER—RIEHERESR
BRI EERER.

Gross amount of accounts receivable from

HKSCC 62,098 146,241
Gross amount of accounts payable to HKSCC (5,122) (13)
Net amount due from HKSCC 56,976 146,228

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all
outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be terminated
and all amounts outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except
for the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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45, TRISEHNGENEHE® 45, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (continued)

() Z P E TR BT RS SRR (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
RAHEZEMEEREE @ agreement but not offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)
AR R E @ Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TRINITZHEE S BARWN 2 BRI FERG The following tables present details of financial instruments
BB R ERREPT RN SR T EF S subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements.

W4ELAIA At 31 December 2024
WA HS000

THEE Financial assets
IR Derivative financial instruments
24E1A3A AAt 31 December 2024
WEBETI HS000

Ea= Financial liablities

HIER Deposits from banks
IR Derivative financial instruments
BERAERNEE Trading labilties
HinRERER Other accounts and accruals
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45, TRISEHGENHE @ 45, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (continued)
(C) R EETHHERBEESMHERNR
RAHHZz TMEEREE @

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

B PR R 4

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

AR UREEAHBRIRR
HEvEEl  RMReNE HHEEEE
SHEEEE  HRRA Relatedamounts notsetoff
Gross  GIRZ&R  inthe consolidated statement of
amountsof ~ EEFE finanial position FERAKE
recognised  Netamounts T
financial ~ offinancial  $FIE A
CRAER liabilites asets  (EEFRE RS
BEuE setoff  presented it k]
Gross inthe inthe Financial Bk Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments RelH not subject
recognised  statement of statement (including Cash B8 toenforceable
ABFLANA At 31 December 2023 financial financial ~ offinancial  noncash  collateral Net netting aat
WEBTTIT HKS 000 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total
SHEE Financial assets
fE4®IA Derivative financial instruments 3304635 - 33U (19733%) (1493009 103429 M54 3566149
RoAEE  RRAME  IRERSHBKIRA
RARR WRRA HEZEHEE
HEZOHE  GITz&R Related amounts notsetoff
SHEEEE  BEFE  inthe consolidated statement of
Gross Net financial position
amountsof  amounts of PIRAKE
recognised financial ~ SETE HHHTZ
BEZ finenddl  labiltes  (B7EERE FETH
SHEEBE  asetsset  presented gt vk
Gross offinthe inthe  Financial R Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments  FRIEIE not subject
recognised  statementof  statement  (including Cash F8  toenforceable
ABELFA At31 December 2023 financial financial ~ offinancial non-cash collateral Net netting it
WEETTAIT HKS 000 liabilities position position collateral)  placed out amount  agreements Total
At Financial liabilties
HIER Deposits from banks 1,849,838 S L (1,84983) s = 635206 2485044
fESMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,086,501 - 1,086,501 (797,336) (2285572) 60,593 192,918 1219419
RIERGRENAE Trading liabilities 99,853 = 99,853 (99,853) s = s 99,853
HinRERER Other accounts and accruals M3 = uIam (447317) 8 - IEBAT 802065
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KRiEERBEMBER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Ty ABERAAER 2 BRMEAR S FHBRE The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as

ZEBAMIINE R B IR B RS B HR part of the accompanying information to the consolidated financial

RZ—BMDo statements and does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

1. BFXFTELEE 1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
2024%F 20235
12A31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
BEARRBLEE Capital adequacy ratio
— ZiBRE—AR - Common Equity Tier 1 16.9% 16.2%
——#R - Tier1 17.6% 16.9%
— e - Total 21.0% 21.2%
2024F12H31H K2023F12H31HZ BAR T E The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2024 and 31
EER T AFTERITRVAR S (B FERPIpg £ 4R December 2023 represents the consolidated position of DSB
TRAHIRTT (M) REGRITE (B 18 (covering BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis in
AN EERBENERSTE - ZEATE accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy
EEEFHEEE BRI TIZR AR ERLR ratio takes into account market risk and operational risk.
RIEEABIRITEGG AIRITASTBEM DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
BT EETEATELLERBER R the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
HEIRTAETHEBBRMRITEESNREK Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
KHIRTT (FED) BETHERETEIRITEES regulations and DSB China is subject to the Mainland banking
BYFRTE © regulations.
2. 1EIRLEE 2. LEVERAGE RATIO
2024%F 20235
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
EIREEE Leverage ratio 11.6% 11.2%
T RHRE T ES R T EE R RIRE AR The above ratios represent the consolidated position of DSB
KRR BRAGSERTE and are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital

adequacy ratio.
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3. RENEAMERLEE

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2024 2023

MENEAERFEER

BN LU TS ARTERT (BT RPIR IR
FRAFFINT (FED) P B S EEA M
TR AT IS LT RO B TR
AR L S T IS (RT3 CREDIS) 3RA))
St

KEIRIT A BB EMRITARBESE BIRITHE
REBTREMESENRRPIHERITA

BT ARRPIRTEEENRE RAMIRGT
(FE) ‘RETERPEIIRITREENRE

4. SMERE

T AT024F12A31A 2 E TN EEENE
s> HNESFEE (B A2 INE P 2B FT A YNE
JFEALI0%) S EARE 2 LEEREE o

722024512831 H 5202312831 H » A&
I AT Rl AE A M SN R AR VR RE o HARE B VSRR
ThiRIEFTESMERRE AN 2 SREB RS
AERE

Liquidity maintenance ratio 64.2% 64.0%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated LMR of DSB (covering BCM and DSB
China) for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance
with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is
subject to the Mainland banking regulations.

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD
and other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of
the total net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December
2024 and the corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The net position is calculated
in the basis of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency
option contracts.

ek HAthyhx SMESE
2024F12A31H At 31 December 2024 ESw N Macau Other foreign Total foreign
HEER EEET Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
REBE Spot assets 86,544 16,024 9,382 9,705 121,655
REEE Spot liabilities (62,076) (15,871) (10,013) (10,501) (98,461)
BHIBA Forward purchases 219,156 61,169 = 24,289 304,614
EHREY Forward sales (240,063) (63,041) = (23,499) (326,603)
HArEPE Net options position (1,323) 1,516 = 58 251
&/ (8 B5EB Net long/(short) position 2,238 (203) (631) 52 1,456

il HAgpig sME B
2023F 128318 At 31 December 2023 eI Bt N Macau  Otherforeign  Totalforeign
WHEREEET Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Euro Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 80,496 1,054 16,286 10,028 10,091 117,955
REaR Spot liabilities (56,183) (1,580) (15,414) (10,625) (7,521) (91,323)
BHEA Forward purchases 87,748 2,429 31,383 = 19,741 141,301
EHE Forward sales (110,039) (1,577) (32,820) = (22,389) (166,825)
R Net options position (420) (34) 532 = 3 81
&/ Q) BB Net longj/(short) position 1,602 292 (33) (597) (75) 1,189
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5. {BREREREEZ EBSMOHA 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

() #BITESB|ZEFERRBTEEE UE (a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
AR ERUZIRIFRAEN B 2L classified according to the usage of loans and analysed by

326

Bax i) percentage covered by collateral
2024F12H31H 2023F12831H
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
BRRBEEE BRRESEEE
SRR R IRME %?E_&?Eﬁuﬂ%ﬁa
ZERL A=bne
% of gross % of gross
loans and loans and
KEBLER advances KEBHEH advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by
LOBBF oI5 HKS 000 balance collateral balance collateral
HEEFERNEN Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEER Industrial, commercial and financial
R ES - Property development 6,425,975 60.6 6,908,262 60.1
/S - Property investment 23,066,021 91.0 23,767,506 914
—ERIbE - Financial concerns 5,154,554 4.8 3,607,794 14.0
—RELL - Stockbrokers 1,441,956 62.8 1,240,252 46.9
—MEETEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,298,542 82.6 4,791,670 88.5
—BliEx - Manufacturing 1,400,285 63.2 1,684,066 67.7
— B RERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,883,028 71.0 2,662,549 80.8
—REEE) - Recreational activities 48,882 9.3 62,840 99.1
—BRE - Information technology 48,392 43.1 29,760 50.8
—EAh - Others 5,665,507 67.4 6,062,815 75.7
50,433,142 72.5 50,817,514 77.1
A Individuals
-BEEEEHEHE - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
MAZEERHE K Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
MAEEHEE Participation Scheme and Tenants
BFEM Purchase Scheme 414,186 98.5 467,752 993
—BEEHMETYEEMN - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 33,561,360 99.8 34,954,353 99.9
—(ERREM - Credit card advances 3,645,014 - 3,841,087 -
—Hfth - Others 13,998,682 53.7 13,530,504 50.4
51,619,242 80.2 52,793,696 79.9
EEEFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 102,052,384 76.4 103,611,210 785
B5RE X)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 4,902,455 65.7 5,624,799 73.1
EEBELUMERNER GX2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 31,419,446 58.5 33,813,467 56.8
138,374,285 72.0 143,049,476 732
5 Note:
1) LI zEZHEASETEETEREL (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports

ZABRAIES MRS
BB UkERBEZRES 2 EMe

@ TEEBLUMERRER
BEEBLUMERZER

BEOSHOMBORN

BERTEBER

to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers

located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. REREREZEEININ @

() HITEDEZEREMKEMEE UE

MARDERUZIRRRRENE DL

2R @

RSP RBRER BRI BB EEL0%
S ERIITE  HRIGREEREE  BIHIE
B8~ PR3 S P ERU PR R BN T ¢

(Continued)

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector

classified according to the usage of loans and analysed by
percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of loans and
advances to customers, the attributable amount of impaired

loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment
allowances are as follows:

2024512H31H At 31 December 2024
LOBBF SR HKS 000
TEEFERNEMR Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEse Industrial, commercial and financial
—NERE - Property investment
fBA Individuals
—EEHMEEMEEN - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties
EEELUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong
=V
HAEEE
BEAREER
Bif3Ea PEERIR:
Gross PESER2
REE™M loans and P ER3 BEERE
(F5ES3) advances FEER  Stageland
KERLER Impaired overdue Stage 3 Stage 2
2023 12H31H At 31 December 2023 Outstanding loans forover  impairment  impairment
LWL i5T HKS 000 balance (Stage 3) 3months  allowances  allowances
EERBEANENR Loans for use in Hong Kong
Tt Industrial, commercial and financial
—ypins ~ Property investment 23,767,506 470,739 546,729 31,720 64,506
BA Individuals
—BEEHMEENEERN - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 34,954,353 170,938 179,532 31,933 27,440
HEEBLUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 33,813,467 1,269,535 995,898 147,671 149,084
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5. {BREKREREEZZEINDT @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(Continued)

(Z) HREAREERNERE

REEBEERERITE GRE) HA) » UTH
PEREEBNGRZONHESREEBESE
[5 ¥ PRI A ok 75 FR ¥R R PR 1) 2 JEERA T
RSB FERERERBRBEUSE
H QEEAHIRITREAIRITIRE A S
BT 2 RBR RS RIERER °

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities,
which includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by DSB
and its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

328

BOTAR R ELI B A B)A]

SEAT (HEAT)

20245 2024
LGBIET 7Tli5)m HKS 000
FRDRIELAT s ARIELFT#A 1. Central government, central government

- owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures (“JV”s)

. HISBUT M5 BUS#ESE 2. Local governments, local government-
BB R E W B AT owned entities and their subsidiaries
==VA] and JVs

. BEETEAMZERS 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
FEFRE Pyt R I B E At China or other entities incorporated in
iR ENE AR Mainland China and their subsidiaries
==VA] and JVs

. RBHELME—IEZZ 4. Other entities of central government not
AR O RO EL At A8 reported in item 1 above

. RBMELMETIEZMW > 5. Other entities of local governments not
75 BRI E AhigiE reported in item 2 above

. BEEFEAMMUSINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
TR EA S China or entities incorporated outside
B3 BIHEAE > T e Mainland China where the credits are
BRI A granted for use in Mainland China

. HMIXZZ%F HEREE 7. Other counterparties where the
BAREH PRI A RE exposures are considered to be non-
JEIRTTHAR P VEREE bank Mainland China

KAMERIT M E IR T Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
B B 20k subsidiary bank after provision
BEREzEESST
BEEABBRANNEREE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
EEESSTAEDLE total assets
. LM ERFBEEETFERBERAEMBR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
FPREZEEE other balances of claims on the customers.
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5.

(2) HPEAEEHNRE @

RIERERERZ FRIM A @@

(b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(Continued)

BEBBRRN BEAEBERS
BIERER HIERER HEEREE
20236 2023 On-balance Off-balance
LOBIS 3T HKS000 sheet exposure  sheet exposure  Total exposures
1. REF PRBFF#E 1. Central government, central government
BUMAE R EL T B A BN - owned entities and their subsidiaries
BENE and JVs 5,335,030 - 5,335,030
2. HABUR #SEIT#A 2. Local governments, local government-
BUMAE R EL T B A BN owned entities and their subsidiaries
BENE and JVs 767,841 599,965 1,367,806
3. BEEFEAMZEIRS 3. PRCnationals residing in Mainland
TEFRE AR I R EL At China or other entities incorporated in
iR EM B AR Mainland China and their subsidiaries
BENE and JVs 9,281,772 1,578,580 10,860,352
4, KRBELWE—IEE#HZ 4. Otherentities of central government not
FR LB TR EL A S reported in item 1 above 4,812,981 69,574 4,882,555
5. RAMELMETIEEMWR 5. Other entities of local governments not
5 BT B B At S reported in item 2 above 760,676 135,329 896,005
6. BEETEAMLINZ 6. PRCnationals residing outside Mainland
TR China or entities incorporated outside
BRI BV > T R RY Mainland China where the credits are
BRI MR granted for use in Mainland China 9,777,277 274,183 10,051,460
7. HhZZZ%F EHEREE 7. Other counterparties where the
AR EE PR APETE exposures are considered to be non-
IRITHER P IVERRE bank Mainland China exposures 475,299 344 475,643
31,210,876 2,657,975 33,868,851
RHTERIT R LI ERTT Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
P EEpA= e[ 55 subsidiary bank after provision
BEBzEESS 242,059,031
BEBBERNINEREE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
EESSTAEDLE total assets 12.89%
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5. REKREREEZEEINIT @

@) REHAH 2 E A SRR BREERE
R

BERENRBRZEBEAMHRBEEZRR
REB R ZXSHFAEMDE —RME
EERVBRFRDUIRARZHF AR ZEE
Wy > SRR AR RS o

TRABFERRBNEEE HETFER
KR (EER3) ~BHRE R BB B R
3 PRI B B BB R R E B D A o

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross loans and advances to customers and
overdue loans by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
classified according to the location of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer
applies when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an
area which is different from that of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers, impaired loans and advances to customers (Stage 3),
overdue loans and advances to customers, Stage 3, and Stage 1
and Stage 2 impairment allowances by geographical area.

REER

BMREMR FsE&1

ERERRK (P&E83) BEER RebsER2

Bz Impaired BARB® PEER3 BIEERE

Gross loans and Overdue WE%EH  Stageland

loans and advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2

2024F12831H At 31 December 2024 advances to customers advances to impairment impairment

LGBIEF TS HKS 000 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
5B Hong Kong 108,718,160 4,018,261 3,391,470 753,706 537,887
FRE Ryt Mainland China 13,729,341 221,449 219,787 69,748 73,190
BPY Macau 13,527,103 197,973 197,973 49,535 35,765
Hith Others 2,399,681 - - - 12,514
138,374,285 4,437,683 3,809,230 872,989 659,356

HEZER

BRURER PsERL

BERERK (F5ER3) HEIER edi2)

PARUBRE Impaired BB PESER3 BEEE

Gross loans and Overdue BEERE Stage 1and

loans and advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2

2023F 12831 () At 31 December 2023 (Note) advances to customers advances to impairment impairment
LB F 5 HKS000 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
&8 Hong Kong 112,872,652 1,867,122 1,570,531 351,322 523,344
FRE Ao Mainland China 14,163,149 726,783 407,022 98,187 74,568
P! Macau 14,012,453 185,656 185,656 35,746 19,272
Hith Others 2,001,222 - 4,380 - 10,817
143,049,476 2,779,561 2,167,589 485,255 628,001

a

0 BHE2023F12831HFZ2R2SBEETE
5 UREAREE YR
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Note: The amounts presented for the position as at 31 December 2023 have been
revised to conform with current year’s presentation.



5. {REXREREEZERINIT @

(T) EpRERE

B ERENEES BRRINERRE  RiE
RZHFFEMMIRE NI ZH TR
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(Continued)
(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures
to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and
is derived according to the location of the counterparties after
taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk
from one country to another is recognised if the claims against
a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a different
country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Only regions
constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international claims
after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are disclosed.

FESRITRAANENS
Non-bank private sector
FEIRTT
TRIEE Elo
Non-bank YN
2024fF12H31H At 31 December 2024 $R1T BEAHE financial  Non-financial {EHE4EEE
BEET In millions of HKS Banks Official sector institutions  private sector Total claims
BERID Offshore centres 2,460 9,445 7,544 144,685 164,134
—Hrp  &FE - of which: Hong Kong 1,923 8,240 7,268 128,335 145,766
BEHPDRE Developing Asia and Pacific 30,642 1,314 4,502 21,870 58,328
—HA  RER - of which: Mainland China 18,724 879 4,341 15,065 39,009
FERITRANIERE
Non-bank private sector
JESRTT
SRS FEE T
Non-bank FANIEAE
202312310 At 31 December 2023 BT BA%E financial ~ Non-financial BREEEE
BE8T In millions of HKS Banks  Official sector institutions  private sector Total claims
BEEAL Offshore centres 5913 8,819 7,129 158,640 180,501
—H &E - of which: Hong Kong 5,197 7,109 6,728 142,097 161,131
EEPDAE Developing Asia and Pacific 25,060 1,271 3,173 16,882 46,386
—H : PEAH, - of which: Mainland China 15,920 1,100 3,016 11,550 31,586
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 117 to 323, comprise:

«  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

«  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,

«  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

+  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

+  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

« the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,532,345 thousand
in respect of its advances to customers.

The determination of the impairment allowances
involves complex methodologies and significant
management judgement. During the year, the
uncertainties in economic environments in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, including but not limited
to the dynamic situation in the real estate sector,
have continued to impact the inherent risk and
estimation uncertainty involved in estimating
impairment allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

. Segmentation of portfolios based on credit
risk characteristics, selection of appropriate
model methodologies and determination
of key measurement parameters and
assumptions;

. Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit risk
(“SICR”), or a default;

. Determination of macro-economic forecasts,
and the application of economic scenarios
and weightings; and

. The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3.

Impairment allowances on advances to customers
is an audit focus due to the high inherent risk given
the uncertainty of estimates, adoption of complex
models, involvement of significant management
judgements and assumptions.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls for the measurement of
impairment allowances on advances to
customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

. We tested the key controls over selection
of ECL model methodologies and
segmentation of portfolios, determination
and approval of key measurement
parameters and assumptions such as
internal credit rating, staging, macro-
economic forecasts and their related
probability weightings;

. We involved our credit risk experts in
evaluating the model methodologies for
ECL measurement including segmentation
of portfolios, key measurement
parameters and assumptions;

. We tested the key controls over timely
identification, assessment and reporting
of credit-impaired advances to customers;

. We tested the key controls over estimated
future cash flows and calculation of
present values with respect to advances to
customers in Stage 3;

. On a sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, management’s judgements used
in determining significant increases in
credit risk and identification of credit-
impaired advances to customers based on
the borrowers’ financial and non-financial
information and other evidence provided
by management;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

. We evaluated management’s selection
of macro-economic forecasts, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned.
We independently assessed the
reasonableness of the macro-economic
forecasts by comparing them to available
public information, and other current
macro-economic conditions;

. For selected samples of advances to
customers in Stage 3, we assessed the
reasonableness of key management
judgements and estimates used in the ECL
calculation such as estimated future cash
flow from borrowers, collateral valuations,
range of scenarios and scenarios
weightings; and

. We checked and evaluated the financial
statements disclosures in relation to the
measurement of impairment allowances
on advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the models, significant
judgements and assumptions, as well as key
parameters used by management in measuring
impairment allowances on advances to customers
were supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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FEMBIRIT— 21T
MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

4317 Branch

it Address

EEE Tel

{EHE Fax

KHIRITAIRAR
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
EEBEDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

EARFRT
Aberdeen

HEBERORT
Admiralty Centre

iRIEE DT

Causeway Bay

PESTT
Central
MaWLsT
Fortress Hill

BT
Happy Valley

BIEWD1T
Heng Fa Chuen

HEEBEST
Johnston Road
BT

North Point
ERKERDT
Queen’s Road East

BHEEDT
Shaukiwan
AREBRT
Shek Tong Tsui
EES1T
Sheung Wan

KEWDT
Taikoo Shing

ERFPROEIEE = —SRERME

Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3,

Aberdeen Centre

BRiE1850E E 0 E S — 121055 &

Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,

No. 18 Harcourt Road

IR ST FEFHB4685E & B FE P 0t T A

G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,

No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

TEEEE 195 IR IR A E H T ASR &R

Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central
16A 35 2 185293-2995% e = A& 1 T 15-225% & Ko i &
Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,

Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

S M ERS 135 B A E M TASRES

Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, 13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley
S R AR 110055 25 1 E PR A5 TEHT I 21823423555

Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,

100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

BT 2E1645%

164 Johnston Road, Wan Chai

I 2 E433 4375 BRI E

Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road

BT 2 [ RIEER24857 KT Rh AR /O TG, GTAK G851 &
Shop No. G7, GTA & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

S E B E57-8T5R A LB T G8st A

Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road

&[G AIEFR4434535k 3 1516575

Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

FIRTEEIE 2885k 7 i i S KB it P B2SR EE —1EBE
G/F &1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

7B SRR SIS 1SR LR & #th 501558 56

Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road &
No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

25291338

28912201

25218134

29223389

25720708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

23218912

25685271

28577473

28516281

28844802

‘

25540843

31102818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

25720718

28892520

28913743

28114474

2598 5300

2567 5904

21084539

25812216

2884 3151
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4347 Branch ik Address EEE Tel {EE Fax

KETIRITHIRAE]
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEERTT

Kowloon Branches

RVERT RIDBIE889TRZER! R/ T 1575

Cheung ShaWan Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road 23610951 2958 0985

BIEHDT ERIB RN E1957% B I A EE 5 ] T ASRER

Chong Yip Street Shop A, G/F., Montery Plaza, 19 Chong Yip Street, Kwun Tong 23893911 23898239

AT AT BEpFe A 17285 2 PR B T 3ReasikEr > B8k & KA B35k 5

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop No. 3 on 2/F, 23658110 23635917
Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EBR1T 1= M EE3355%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 23850161 27820993

EEHMIBRIT 25 F T8 A HARE 75 1E 10AM N26E K FofE i

Mei Foo Sun Chuen Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 23702660 23702006
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

AT BE A R EB6975E

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 23944261 23919104

BREHDT B R ZE AT 105 3 T AR

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 21918103 21918723

ERIEES1T Be BB RE S — HA T 18F5A-FAASE

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 29274130 27554967

KRIVIEFT LRIV IEE S E66-T05E B THAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 23669121 23111491

BAWLST BAMEALFL FEEEH FG3CTEER

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin 23265165 2350 08%4

JHRRH 1T SR S OB 56155

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 27821339 23859285

MAEDT

New Territories Branches

MED1T 58 B A ER 885 (AR B 5 H TNAL1-A1452110-11255 4

Fanling Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza, 2677 8830 2669 9950
88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

BERT 2E55 WS PR 1785% B B 3h TN 28k A

Kwai Fong Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung 2487 8033 24891253

RIS 1T 16 B R 1A BR 195 The LOHASER 141841455 &5

LOHAS Park Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road, 28382023 27196373
Tseung Kwan O
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4347 Branch

ik Address

EEE Tel

{EHE Fax

KETIRITHIRAE]
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
WREDT

New Territories Branches

BERLES DT
Ma On Shan Plaza

BXRBAT
Maritime Square
BB DT
Ocean Walk
IIHER T
Sha Tsui Road
PHEBT
Shatin
£KB1T
Sheung Shui
KFERT

Tai Po
KEZT

Tai Wai

KIKE 21T
Tin Shui Wai

RER
ERER RO 1T
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza
BEST
Tsuen Wan
BRI T
Tuen Mun

RABDT
Tung Chung

TCERE WWE ST
Yuen Long Castle
Peak Road
#=NB1T
Shenzhen Branch
w2 1T
Shenzhen

FEER L7 7D FRe08TE S #2115 = 183355k &

Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,

Ma On Shan

FINE A EE335% 5 7] 10108 D-ESE R

Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
P22 B5168-23655 8 R 17115 93-955% &4

Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
7718 1E286-28855 1 T

G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

7O RS E At oSk &R

Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

KT & E855-5951 JKRRIE H T BSRER

Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
RIHL R FR15E A IR EE S5 ] 15350 S2545/% &

Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, On Tai Road, Tai Po

7D KB iE55-565 R R 1 14- 1858 S B E R N 125 8
Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,

14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
FKBEIRIBFHTSR R BRI R B 5 11811205k &

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,

Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai

7 B8 BMCP Discovery—1£1275%

Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O
EERIBEI4IGREERNE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan

B FIEB S F iE52-6250% B8 A 18 H 45 Ke557% &

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

KU SRR SR AT 1SR BRI /& B 3t T 2355 5

Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

TCRAE LLI/A BT RAER162- 16857 Hif 5 1 ith T CSRER
Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

RELRY I L EE L EERSRTEE 2B O

PO EA21%2301522304-b (EB4R : 518000)

Unit 2301 & 2304-b, Phase 4, Tower 2, Qianhai Kerry Centre, Qianhai,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China (Postcode: 518000)

29294137

24351368

2404 6931

26151510

2606 3533

26715030

2667 2588

26911272

24489008

29272101

2492 8102

24416218

2109 3484

2479 4555

(86-755) 29392399

26333432

24351582

2404 7130

26151099

26012413

26721533

2664 3637

2606 1531

24489112

27022305

24150984

24416613

21094353

24794522

70
‘

(86-755) 28839871
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4347 Branch

ik Address

EEE Tel

B EHEIRITIRDBRAE

BT

Macau Branches
REET

Main Branch
REST
Almirante Lacerda
WHEDT

lao Hon

BERT

Kin Wa

‘

S ST
Mercadores
EHA1T
Nape

BEMDT
Palha
StEEHD1T
Pedro Coutinho
ablsiT

Toi San

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

K RS 85725

Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

R LE T4 B K FE BB 43-BS:

Avenida Do Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B
WENN S — 455 th R TEARE (5 —HR) #h TACEE
Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase ) R/C AC
RIVIREIE FE BR245R IR 5 K B SR 13/8E H TNARRE
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13R/CA

K AT4055 T ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/CA

N E A [EI53635% 1 2 K R0\t TSORE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D'’Assumpgao, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B B T4t AR

Rua da Palha, No. 4,R/CA

=it S 1125-DIt & 42 B N BEE

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

& LBV S +— i T TC R S5 1888 ] T~ CCRE
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 28316191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 28572610

(853) 28722515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 28216523

(853) 2823 8483

KIFEDTT

Taipa Branch

UKFRFIEWA1T

Prince Flower City
Taipa

UKFIR R TR F eI — RERT R it T IEE
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C |, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BIRE 21T

Coloane Branch

EIRDT

Coloane

FRIR B IR TSR DR
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 28882374
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4317 Branch ik Address EEE Tel

K#ER1T (FE) BRAR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

#a1T R332k A BR R 501657 R X 100K [EAEEL5HE

Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey100 Building, 5016 Shennan Road East, (86-755) 2519 9033
Shenzhen

#FEWLZT Y lEte O T2t s E R 50 (&) 4 TiRIEIE1235]

Shenzhen Nanshan Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North), (86-755) 2519 9069

Sub-Branch Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

BEM 71T ERE EMN TS E A RIEEE6045E AR T AIELE

Guangzhou 1/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604 North Renmin Road, (86-20) 8116 0888
Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

L8717 eI D& A# 50155 _F 8 H kR EIS15/E06, 0788 7T

Shanghai Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza, (86-21) 5551 2808
No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai

Maa1T B R E TR E & 81365712

Nanchang 1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi (86-791) 8688 7333

SEINT JIER IR L Th R @ AR ER595%

Zhenjiang 59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu (86-511) 88809996

#BLZTT [ 51 B LU T 1B 128 (& 47/ 98 37 2 e B85 TR A P 75 R0

Foshan Sub-Branch

15E1E 5531
31/F, Tower 1, Poly Business Center, 8 Wenhua South Road,
Lecong, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-757) 85133555

RIRITERBRAT 2024F F R



Dah Sing Banking Group Limited X#R1TEBERLQF

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

EREFERKRKER248FAAFMER AP 0261

Telephone EEE : (852) 2507 8866 o i

FaCS|m|le %E . (852) 2598 5052 \Q PﬂpsrlSupportingrsiponsibleforestry
FSC HER | X AREOME

Website  #8ik : www.dahsing.com o

FSC® C176382
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